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Financial highlights 2006

Grougp revenue

TN T Ll
Pl ieyes L el t. 2005 £10,073m

Total operating profit*

SN e N
- TSN

& . 2005: £496m

~
PR

e

Basic eamings per share*s

. — 2005:10.9p

Free cash flow

2005: £227m

Return on capital employed*

LINPIEN

-. \/ /% 2005:10.7%

All figures based on contiinnng operations,

20005 figures are restated w TFRS,

* Before exceptional items, including profit of associates.

A Refore exceptional items and hedge accounting
ineflectiveness.

Because of our shared values, everyone
in Compass i1s committed to consistently
delivering superior service in the most
efficient way to create value for our

customers, shareholders and emplovees.

We are specialists who help clients either
outsource or establish a foodservice or support
service, or sometimes both, to suit their needs.

How we do that draws on our global resources
and o understanding of different cultures and
market sectors, YWe work in partriership with our
clients, usually in their premises. And by using
their facilities and equipment we keep capital
investment o an absolute minimum.

Looking at the world map today shows how
far we have come since 1992, We have grown
from a domuestic operator to a global plaver.
That journcy has given us a great platform
to build on and enabled us to benefit from
opportunities far and wide. Making the most
of these opportunities siarts, as ever, by being
clear about why we are in business.

Our aim is to be the premium operator in the

contract foodservice and support services market
with an outstanding reputation for quality, value
for money and client and consumer sausfaction.

“To achicve this means maintaining our market
leading positions in the world’s key regions with
major brands in our chosen business sectors. But
1 also means applying fresh thinking to the way
we run our business, re-energising the 1alents that
have made us a leader while looking at new ways
of maxirising value from our core operations.

We have to be more disciplined — simplifving
what we do and how we do it. Focusing on our
core contract catering operadons. Leveraging
client relationships by growing the range of our
support services, Maximising synergies for
clients, organic profit growth for us and
enhanced value for our sharcholders.

The whole organisation is focused on achieving
this and our vision encapsulates this commaon
purpose. Quite simply we aspire to be a
world-class provider of contract foodservice
and support services, renowned for our great
people, our great service, and our great results.

How our values
help drive value

Our values
These define what, collectively, we believe in
and govern the way we behave:

Openness, trust and integrity

W set the highest ethical and professional
standarcs at all dmes. We want all our
relationships 1o be based on honesty, respect,
fairness and a commiunent o open dialoge
and transparency.

Passion for quality

We are passionate about delivering superior
food and service and take pride in achicving this,
We look 10 replicate success, lcarn from mistakes
and develop the ideas, innovation and practices
that will help us improve and lead our markert.

Win through teamwork

We encourage individual ownership, but work
as a team. We value the expertise, individuality
and contribution of all our colleagues, working
in support of each other and readily share
good practice, n pursuit of shared goals.

Responsibility

We take responsibility for our actions,
individually and as a Group. Everyday,
everywhiere we look to make a positive
contribution to the health and wellbeing
of our customers, the communitics we
work in and the world we live m.

Can-do

We take a positive and commercially aware
‘can-dlo” approach to the opportunities and
challenges we face,
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Group at a glance

We provide contract
foodservice and support
services o chients in
over 7() countrics.

Qur business

How we work

We work in partnership with our clients,
usually in their premises, uulising their
cquipment and facilites to provide foodservice
and suppaort services solutions tailored to the
needs of consumners.

Contracts with our clients are usually based
around one of four models:

Management fee

All of the operating costs are paid by the
contractor and recharged 1o the client along
with an agreed fee. This type of arrangement is
most often used where the client is subsidising

the food offer.

Fixed price

The client pays an agreed price for a specified
range of services. This may be varted,

for example, if the number of consumers
changes considerably,

Profit & loss

T'he foodservice contractor has control over
the offer to the consumer and sets the price.
This type of arrangement usually oceurs where
there is lintle or no client subsidy.

Concessions

The loodservice contractor pays an agreed
percentage of revenue for the right 1o trade a
the clients’ premises. This tvpe of arrangemem
1s widely used in the leisure sector.

Market overview and trends

Overview
Contract foodservice and support services offer
significant growth opporwunitics.

The global contract foodservice market has an
approximate value of £150 billion with around
50% outsourced to contractors like Compass
and our market grows at around 5% a year.

The support services market (including
catering, soft services such as cleaning and
hard services such as building maintenance)
has an approximate value of £700 billion.
Circa 35% of this is outsourced to contractors
with the outsourcing market projecied o grow
at around 10% a vear.

Trends

Both the markets in which we operate have
significant growth potential. The 1rend by
organisations over the last decade 10 reduce
subsidies and 10 outsource their foondservice
requirernents is continuing, Clients are moving
away from management fee contracts o
arrangements where the contractor bears the
risk, Approximately 70% ol our contracts are
now fixed price or profit & loss. This means that
we have o adopt diflerent operating disciplines
that are more retail orientated in order o grow
profitability and returns for sharcholders.

We are also seeing organisations accelerate

the consolidation of a range of support services
such as cleaning and reception as well as
catering under one outsourced contract, We are
ideally placed to offer an mtegrated solution to
clients, Our challenge s to leverage these growth
opportunities profitably and sustainably in order
to create value for sharcholders.

Our market sectors

Focused businesses operating m clearly defined
nurket seetors,

We operate in six clearly defined market scctors:

&) Business & Industry
We are the world leader in providing a
wide range of consumer-tacing foodservice
solutions 10 people at their place of work.

Fine Dining

We have an unrivalled reputadon for fine
dining in corporate boardrooms and w
prestigious social and hospitality events
around the world.

80 Healthcare & Seniors

A1 = e L
I'his is the most sophisticated and
demanding market in which we operate.
Success requires the highest standards of
customer service and food satety plus a
detailed understanding of the nutrinonal
needs of those we care for.

A0 Education

From nursery schools to the world’s
most prestigions universities, we ofler
tasty and nutrittous food for tomorrow’s
healthy generations.

4 Sports & Leisure
From local museums to the most imous
sporung and iconic cultural venues, we
provide foodservice sotutions for consumers
and corporate events.

<) Defence, Offshore & Remote sites
In difficult and often mhaospitable
cnvirenments we provide an integrated
range of foodservice and support services on
oflshore oil and gas rigs, major construction
sites and at remote mining locations,

Where there is a demand we can also offer
vending across any of our six markel scctors.

Vending

An integral part of the food and heverage
aperation for most modern organisations.
We provide high quality and innovative

vending solutions for customers across the
USA and Europe.
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Global reach

Our aim is 1o be the premum eperator
in the global contract catering and

suppart services markets.

North America
USA
Canada

Rest of the World
Latin America
Argentina

L | —
Group North America

Continental Europe  United Kingdorm

N
Rest of the World

Split of revenue

£4,290m

2005: £3,761m

Group revenua

£10,815m

2005: £10,073m

Split of revenue

£2,863m

2005: £2,830m

Solit of revenue

£1,705m
2005: £1,500m

Split of revenue

£1,957m

2005: £1,982m

Total operating profit*?

Split of operating profit* Split of operating profit* Split of operating profit* Split of operating profit”

UK et et B £508m £246m  £169m £115m £55m
I}imimll;ll‘ml}gf]nT . gnlnmll{w'[a 2005: £496m 2005: £218m 2005; £169m 2005; £114m 2005; £53m
cpublic of lrelan ‘osta Rica
P Mexice .
Continental Europe Peru ';:thgw“ based oln con:mug\g olp;fanons,foogs ligures are restated 16 IFAS.
Austria Veneruela mn:::ﬂ:::;p;::t:luams and including profit of associates.
Belgium
Croatia Middle East
Cyprus and Africa y -
Czech Republic Algeria AN - o Som e e
Denmark Angota AR s =
Estonia .-\zfrh;li_iun é?\ibt'dm o F . ‘:," he
Finland Botswana i) 4 PEEN . K ST, -
France Lyt (\V\A\t‘«(! . : - e
Germany Gabon -E ¢ -2 et N _‘/,JV
Greece Ghana - Cdl | 5 T
Hungary Isracl / \-\\\ ’% T, e
Iceland Kazakhsum - N g2y - * W
ltaly Malawi [N . kI
Kosovo Mali ; - N P
Lavia Mozambigue . AL ST
Lithuania Namibix \ i i ~
Luxembourg Nigeria T, . K
Netherlands Oman N N ~. -
Norway Qarar _’t Ryt L N .
Poland South Alrica . X - 'i*_]
Portugal Sudan . N - H N
Romania Turkey )
Slovikia UAE .
Spain Zambia AN .,
Sweden \ -
Switzetdund Asia Pacific . o LIS
Austradia - . * ~
Bungladesl , P y
China / : [ - ’
Last Timor ' - e \‘
Hong Kong [ i Iss
fndia T <
[ndonesia i [
Japan e
Malaysia
Mongnlia
New Zealimd
Papua New Guinea
Philippines
Russia
Smgapore
Thaland
. . Operuing AMrket secuor Operating Markel seetor
SeCtOF Operatlng CompanleS ('n}mpmlyk and region ('c)]mp.‘m’\'b and region
Unrivalicd expertise from sector-leading brands., )-0, @ @ @ @ @ T @{\ @ @
) ) ) . Eurest = Chartwells &
We are unique in having a sector-focused
ki ac Ve r speciadised se 5 .
'1ppm'mll.1)m Sltf\t,l;])p‘lllg? s‘pf udllm d “Tnlllll‘u[:l.h ‘ BON APPETIT @ @ @ @ @ @ @
to our clients’ foodscrvice and support services  sersarerse cannans QO SCOlar‘eSt i

needs. Tor our clients this has the benefits of
giving them access to unrivalled experience,
tailored solutions relevant to their specific
needs and specialist employee skills,

Where there is suflicient marken density in
a country we have a pordolio of companics
that operate in specific market sectors

¢.g. Eurcst in Business & Industry:

In countries that do not yet have critical
mass we have a single operating company
providing multi-sector solutions e.g. Onama
in ltaly or Seivo in Japan.

Restauerunt Rssociates G_O @ @ Lﬁym @ Q-O @
mst. SB80® ESS 0oeeee
Al Ja
o 5 2 NG
& North America @ Conti 1E
Cottall 5 Sum, Qumma
=) D& a9s sevo roop svstemsnove Xy S5 A L, 69

o
oNAMA
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Chairman’s statement

Our priority 1s to manage your business
with the creation of shareholder value
firmly at the top of the agenda.

Delivering greater
shareholder value

Sir Roy Gardner Chairman

I was delighted to take over as Chairman

of Compass in July: This is a good business.

We have a significant presence in the countries
and sectors in which we want to trade. Our
people are passionate about what they do and
are proud to work for us. We also continue to
achieve excellent levels of contract retention
demonstraung that we have a sausfied client base,

These are solid foundations on which to build.
Our priority now is 1o create value for
shareholders.

During the year we took the actions necessary
o improve our future performance. We have
sireamlined and reshaped the management
team to better reflect the needs of the business.
We have improved financial discipline and
governance right across the Group, giving

the Board much better visibility as to the
performance of the business.

[n_June we sald our travel concessions
husiness, Select Service Partner ('S8PY, for

£ 1.8 hilhion. This disposal will enable us

to focus on our contract catering operations
and exploit the significant growth opportunities
in support services.

In November we announced our plan to

sell our European vending business, Sclecta.
As the business derives only 9% of its revenue
from our contract foodservice clients, it is not
a core part of our operations.

These actions provide the basis for improving
Our strategy I returns to shareholders.

Focused on our contract Strategy ] o
I'he creation of shareholder value is our priorty.

Contract foodservice oflers atiractive and
sustainable growth potential which, allied 10
support services, represents our core activities,

foodservice business.

Growing our support

services busmess. ‘The business nmodel is sound and our focus now
is on better executing our strategy to deliver
Commitwed (o qi\'inq our sustainable growth and profits. We will do this

by growing our business in a more disciplined

-ustomers superior bevels 50 ' .
customen Ul) ot h \('lk’ \\'ay_. CDn[l“u]ng jLa) gl\'e OUT customers Sllpcnor

of service. levels of service whilst being focused on driving
‘ ) cost efficiencies for the shared benefit of our
l'(_)(‘USlI]g‘ on Cll'l\'lng‘ cost customers, shareholders and employees.

cfliciencies.

U, -
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Returns to shareholders

The Board is propesing a final dividend of

6.7 pence per share for payment in March 2007,
bringing our fult year dividend to 10.1 penec,

a year-on-year increase of 3%. Whilst we
remain committed o growing the dividend in
real terms, our objective over the medium term
is to move the dividend cover more towards the
two times level

In June 2006 on completion of the sale of

our travel concessions business, SSE, we
commenced a £ 500 million on the market share
buy-back programme. As of 30 September 2006
we had purchased shares for cancellation to the
value of £149 million.

Once the planned sale of Selecta is completed,
our aim will be to achieve a balanced usc of the
net proceeds and this will include an extension
of the current share buy-back programme.

Management

Since becoming Chairman T have looked at the
management skills needed to meet the future
needs of the business. I have begun a process
of re-invigorating the Board.

During the year Sir Francis Mackay, Chairman,
and Michacl Bailey, Chiel Exccutive, left the
Company. On behalf of the Board I would like
to acknowledge their role n establishing Compass
Group as the global leader in contract foodservice.

In June we appointed Richard Cousins,
previously Chief Executive of BPB plc, as
our new Group Chicl’ Exccutive. Richard’s
track record in operational management,
business transformation and the ercation of
sharcholder value s already been invaluable
in mapping out the Group’s future strategy.

In December Val Gooding will step down
from the Board after seven years. On behalf
of the directors I would like to thank Val for
the ecnormous dedication and commitment
she has shown to the Group.

Peter Gawdron, who has been a member of

the Board since 1993 and is currendy Deputy
Chairman and Senior Independent Director,
will retire from the Board at the Annual General
Meeting in February. 1 would like to thank Peter
on behalf of the Board for his outstanding

contribution to the Group and on a personal
note for the support he has given me since
taking over as Chairman.

[ am delighted to welcome two new additions
o the Board. Sir Inn Rebinson, formerly
Chiel Executive of Scottish Power and
currently Chairman of Ladbrokes ple
(formerly Hilton Group plc) and a Director
of Siemens Holdings ple will join the Board
as a non-executive director on 1 December.
His experience of developing international
businesses will be enormously valuable to us.

Gary Green will join the Board as an executive
director on 1 January 2007. He has been at
Compass for over 20 vears and has successfully
led the development of our business in North
America since 1999.

Corporate governance

The way the Group is managed has been a
matter of concern for sharcholders. During the
vear [ have taken a number of decisive steps to
improve corporate governance. YWe have put in
place more robust centralised controls to ensure
cffective decision making. I have also established
a sub-committee of the Board to focus on
corporate responsibility. Its terms of reference
include looking at all aspects of business
conduct, safety, health and environmental
management and responsible business practice.

United Nations

This has been an unfortunate episode in the
Group’s history. The Board has instituted a
number of changes to control procedures as a
result of the lessons we have learned. In March
2006 two competing food companies brought US
lawsuits totalling some {600 million against ESS,
Compass and various ESS staff. Though these
claims would have been resolutely defended we
deaded that 1t was in the best interests of the
on-going busincss and sharcholders to settle
these claims without prolonged litigation.

In Octoher, with no admission of legal liability,
we reached final setdement of all claims for less
than £40 million. We continue 10 cooperate

fully with the relevant UN and US authorities

in their on-going investigations.

Our people
This has been another tough vear for our
people. They have supported one another as

we have taken the actions necessary to improve
our performance and restore our reputation.
They have also acted professionally to produce
the highest level of customer service, On behalf
of the Board T want to record our appreciation
of their continued dedication and commitment.

Outlook

The results we have reported for 2006 are a
benchmark front which 1o measure our future
performance. Fundamental changes have been
macle during the year, including new leadership,
a comprehensive review of the business, and
establishing clear strategic priorities for the
future. We have improved financial discipline
and governance across the Group and we are
now well placed to leverage the significant
oppertunities our global platform gives us. These
actions will, in the years ahead, improve our
performance and deliver value for sharcholders.

Us Gpim

Sir Roy Gardner
Chairman
29 November 2006

Full year dividend
SRS L e e D
et [ S .\;:/C

Sale of SSP

e —

[ERNEEIN

(RN

Compass share price performance
vs FTSE 100 2006

«—=— Compass Group
300 — FTSE 100 Index

280 .

w | Poior”

240

220 WW
200

180

160

30/09 3011 3101 0D 31/05 31707 29709
2005 2005 2006 2006 2006 2006 2006

The FISE 100 index has been rebased (o the Compass
Group shire proce on 30 Seprember 2005 {206.25 pence).
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Thinking and acting
like one business

Chief Executive’s statement

Our objective is to maximise sharcholder
value through delivering profitable and
sustainable growth in our chosen markets.

Richard Cousins Chiel” Exccutive

N

Profit drivers

We are {ocused on two elements
of the income and expenditure
account — revenue growth and
cost clliciencies.

Revenue growth

marketing

Client sales and

Consumer sales
and marketing

A4

v

(Grediediiganc afperiognaucol
cluvesishatebholdegvaltel

FaN

Cost efficiencies

Fay

A

Food costs

Unit costs

Above unit
overheads

First impressions

In my first three months I visited 15 of our
largest countries and received presentations
on a further 30 key markets. It is clear to me
that our customer service is excellent and that
our people are committed and passionate
about what they do. We have strong client
relationships and market leading positions

in our core markets. We also have a global
footprint that should enable us 1o leverage
our scale and expertise to develop growth for
the future.

Hence my conclusion 1s that fundamentally
this is a good business with a sound strategy.
However, the model has been a litde
overstretched and in some parts of the world
governance and control have been lacking,
We therefore need to create a more intensive
performance culture, This implies the need
to support customers locally but asking our
managers across the world w operate within
simple global frameworks. We seek intelligent
top-line growth and a more disciplined approach
to reducing our global cost base,

Very simply we need o build on our strengths
and correct our weaknesses. We have to create
a management and performance culture that
has at 1s core the delivery of profitable growth
to maximise sharcholder value. Aligning the
business around this single unifying objective is
the prionty for me and my management team.

Business strategy

"To he successful we must deliver the highest
quality and performance, whilst relentlessly
driving to be the lowest cost, most eflicient
provider. Our focus going forward will be

on the creation of real shareholder value
delivered in a disciplined and sustainable way.

At the moment we trade in too many countries
where future growth prospects do not offer
adequate returns. Over the next 12 months we
will reduce the number of countries we operate
in to 60-65.

Our core business will remain contract
foodservice. We are focused on 1t and excited
by the opportunity. The market s some
£150 billion in size and, with outsourced
penctration still at around 50%, our markct
grows at about 3% a year.
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There is clearly a growing trend amongst some
clients to source catering and other suppuort
services, such as cleaning, from a single provider.
This market, including catering, has a value

of around £700 billion, and with circa 35%
owssourced, growing at around 10% a year,
Support services already account for around
10% of our revenue and we are ideally placed
to leverage our existing client relationships to
ofler them integrated food and support services.
We will only do this, though, where 1t makes
sense and enhances value for shareholders.

Oflering clicnts an imegrated foodservice and
vending solution has been a key competitive
achvantage in North America. Our European
vennling business, Sclecta, though highly
profitable, only has 9% of its revenues with our
contract foodservice clients. We have decided
that this business 1s not a core part of our
operations and will be sold. We will continue to
offer European clients an appropriate vending
solution when they require it.

The sale of Sclecta following other disposals
(such as SSP, Moto and An Bon Pain) and the
graciual withdrawal from a number of small
countries will mark the end of a phase for
Compass. From this new, tighter core Compass
will be able to grow in a sustainable way. Capital
expenditure, which three years ago exceeded
£300 million a year will, for the next two-three
vears be held an circa 2% of revenue a year.

Profit drivers

Our objective over the next two-three years will
be to drive disciplined profitable growth with the
focus more on organie growth and much less

on acquisitions. Within that philosophy we will
drive performance by concentrating upon five
simple profit drivers:

Client sales and marketing: winning new
business ts, and will continue to be, a clear
strength for Compass. However, as we improve
discipline and focus on unit margins, organic
growth rates may, for a period, slow a litde
before increasing back to trend rates. We will
work closely with clients to deliver like-for-like
revenue growth secking to balance the needs
of value for money, cfficiency and a fair reward
for a joh well done. In the medium-long term,
we will work harder to demonstrate to potential
clients the benefits of outsourcing,

Consumer sales and marketing: we will scek
a more innovative approach to our consumers
improving the quality of our offer, restaurant
designs and point of sale displays. Like-for-
like volume growth will be an important key
performance indicator and where we face
nflationary cost pressures we will seek
reasonable price increases.

Food cost: we spend over £3.5 hillion a year
on food. Cur objective must be to procure the
optumal quality and range ol food to meet

the needs of our customers at the lowest cost,
This means having an efficient supply chain
that leverages our scale whilst being much more
disciplined about rationalising our supplier and
product base. Driving in-unit compliance with
approved purchasing lists through a much more
systematic approach 1o menu planning and
portion control will be critical.

Unit costs: we spend nearly £6 billion a year on
unit costs. We will work closely with clients and
employees o improve labour scheduling and
efficiency and to reduce unit overheads.

Above unit overheads: we tose too much of
our unit profit to overheads. We need a simpler
madel with fewer layers of management and
less burcaucracy. This year we have achieved
our target of £50 million of overhead savings
and arc secking a similar reduction once again
in 2007. Thereaficr, the drive for overhead
efficiency will continue.

Focus on management and

performance {{ MAP?)

I have dismantled the divisional structure so
that we have greater visihility of the underlying
performance of local businesses. New monthly
reparting processes and regular business reviews
with country management teams will ensure
that all of us are constantly focused on the same
things. As part of this process the five profit
drivers outlined previously are being
orchestrated into a global performance
framework called *MAP'. Local managing
directors are empowered 1o run their business
within clearly defined corporate governance
rules and MAP.

The actions that have already been taken w
improve financial discipline and governance
are focusing management on value creation.

There are three simple questions that managers
at all levels in the business are beginning to use
in their decision making, Does it fit with our
strategy? What are the risks and rewards?

Daocs it create value for sharcholders?

Through creating a performance-driven culture
we are increasing the focus and intensity with
which we manage the business to deliver value
for sharcholders.

Conclusion

2006 has been a transitional year for
Compass against which we can benchmark
our performance.

By stepping up the intensity with which we
manage the performance of the business,

and with a disciplined focus on the key profit
drivers, we are well placed o ereate and deliver
sustainable sharcholder value.

i) G

Richard Cousins
Group Chiel Executive
29 November 2006

Effective decision making

To help us make the nght uperational decisions,
we use a simple process that confirms value
genuinely exisis,

Does it @it vith our strztogy?

What ara tive risks znd rowards?

Does it create value for shareholders?
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The results so far

Delivering on a
grand scale.

Sector: Sports & Lelsure

From pretzel stands to fine dining restaurants,
from the world's leading eoliral venues 1o
icanic sporting locations, cating and drinking
is an essential part of the visitor experience.
Weare the leader in food service solutons
from up-seale corporate hospitalivy 10 grab
anel go concession studds with the capabilities
16 cater for 100 or TOOGOU visitors.

Adthe Charlote Bobeats Avenicswe have
developed o range of offers o meet the
necds of over 12,000 haskethall Fans.

Operating review

North America

Our business in North America has had
another excellent year as we continue to
leverage the leading positions we have
established in each of our chosen market
sectors.

Market pesition and trends

Through our portfolio of specialist operating
companies we are the largest contract
[oodservice company in the USA and Canada.

The largest market in the world, North America
remains a significatt opportunity with around
H0% contractor penetration. The most attractive
future growth opportunities are in Healiheare
and Education, where less than 40% of the
market is outsourced.

In Business & Industry despite the relative
maturity of the market there are sull significam
opportunities to drive volumes and spend per
head through product innovation.

Healthy eating is the dominant consumer trend.
Concerns over obesity and the composition and
provenance of foods are continuing to drive
consumer purchasing habits. Balanced Choices
is our global healhy eating programme designed
o help consumers make the right choices for
their chosen lifestyles, Using iconography on
wieny cards and packaging, allied to healthy
cooking techniques such as grilling as opposed
to frying, consumers can seleet from a range

of options low in salt, fats and sugar. Over

700 of our accounts in North America arc

now implementing the Balanced Choices
Programme and we have rained over 2,800 of
our chefs and unit managers to the required
operating standards.

Overview of the year

Organic growth was 2% fuelted by stgnificam
new business gains across all the sectors.
Contract retention for the vear was 96% with
muajor renewals including a five-vear extension
o Morrison’s cotitract with BJC Health System
worth $47 million in annual revenues and a
10-year extension to Chartwells” contract with
Florida Adantic University worth $9 mitlion in
annual revenues.

We continued 1o focus on profitability
and working capital management to drive
improvements in return on capital employed.

We also completed the acquisition of
1the remaining 51% of Levv Restaurants for
8250 mllion.

Canteen, the world's largest route vending
compary, completed the rollout of is [-vend
route accountability and cash contral system
which is reducing shrinkage and improving
labour efficiency,

Product and service development

During the year 203 senjor exccutives have
been through an miensive two-day training
programme, Managing for Value, designed

to develop their strategic thinking and improve
cash management and return on capital
cemployed in their businesses.

As part of our commitment to tackling
childhood obesity we have developed a
nutritional awareness programme, ‘fat, Learn,
Live’, specifically for our Education sector,

It encourages healthy eating through helping
students gain a better understanding of what
foods to cat, the health benefits and the link
between good nutrition and academic
atrainment,

We have signed an exclusive 10-vear agreement
with the Dieticians of Canada as sponsor of the
Nauonal Nutrition Month which has as its focus
tackling childhood obesity,

As part of our commitment o sustainable
sourcing, in March we announced a change

to our seafood purchasing policy with a
commitment to buving one million pounds of
sustainable scafood annually (this accounts for
around 20-25% of our total seafood purchases).

Qutlook

In 2007, we expeet to sce continuing good
revenue growth but at lower levels than
those seen in 2006.

North America contract gains

Bon Appétit Management Cowpany and Chartwells
tuwe won a tive-year contract with Duke Universiy
waorth $10 million in annuaal revenues.

Morrison and Canteen have won a 10-year contract
with the State University «f New York Health Sciences
waorth §7 million in annual revenues.

In Canada, Eurest won a live-year contract with
the Ontario Science Centre worth $3 million in
annual revenues.

Split of revenue

£4.290m

2005: £3,761m

Split of operating profit”

£246m

2005: £218m

* Before exceptional items and including profit of associates.
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Targeting growth
industries with innovative
products and services.

Sector: Business & Industry

LEmployees want foodservice offers a their
place of work that deliver the choiee, quality
and value for money available on the high
strect. For our clients o growils indusirics

such as financial services, legal and I'T we

are developing innovative new products and
services that respond 1o the needs of discerning
consumners for all-day dining and healthy Cé(firlé_.t

Operating review
continued

Continental Europe

Trading remains challenging reflecting the
on-going weakness of a number of Continental
European economies. We are focused on
improving the performance of poorer
performing countracts and on restructuring
country management teams to create a robust
platform for sustainable growth in the future.

Market position and trends

The contract foodservice market in Europe has
an approximate value of £43 bithon and with
outsourcing at below 30% represents an exciting
opportunity. We have established strong positions
in all the major Continental European markets.
Where there is sufficient market density we are
scctorising the business o better tailor our offer
tor the specific needs of clients.

In the most developed markets, as in the UK
and North America, the rend, particularly in
Business & Industry; is moving away from client
subsidy to profit & loss and fixed price contracts.
In response we are adopting a more retail
oricnted approach to drive consumer volumes
and spend per head.

‘There is growing consumer interest in healthy
cating. Qur global programme, Balanced
Choices, is being introduced across Europe
and is being well received by both clicats and
CONSUIMeEers.

Overview of the year

Organic growth was 2% with {lat operating
profit in line with our expectations and reflecting
the continuing weakness of a number of major
economies. We saw strong growth in the Nordic
countries as a result of the continuing strength
of the oflshore oil and gas secior and in Spain
with douhble-digit growth in both the Education
and Healthcare sectors as well as significant
growth in the senior living market.

In Germany we saw some modest organic
growth but a significant improvement in the
operating margin, particularly in the Business
& Indusiry sector. In France, Switzerland and
the Netherlands the actions taken by the new
teadership tearns to simplity the management
structure and the adoption of a shared services

approach has stabilised the business and resulted
in improved performances. In Taly and Portugal
we have put in place new management teams
who are restructuring the business to reduce
operating costs.

Product and service development

In Trance, working in partnership with
renowned Michelin starred chef] Yannick Alleno,
we have launched a new brand, “Millessenee’,
targeted at corporate hoardrooms and the

Fine Dining sector.

In Healthcare, Medirest has introduced wo
new conceps in the Nordic countries, “Meals
for Life’ has been devcloped specifically for

the residential and long-term care markets to
respond to the demand for healthy, nutritious
and high quality food prepared o the very
highest food hygiene and traceability standards.
“Your Private Chef” is targeted at meals-on-
wheels customers to offer a wider choice of
appetising and nutritious meals. We have also
ntroduced steam technology in Sweden and
the Noorlands University Hospital contract,
which is being mobilised during January, will
be the largest to wilise this revolutionary sicam
technology in Continental Europe.

In Germany and the Netherlands we have
introduced programmes to reduce absenteeism
and labour turnover through increasing
employee loyalty and satisfaction.

Int sports stadiums and arenas in Germany we
have begun using biodegradable corn cups as
oppused to plastic. These environmentally
friendly cups use 35% less fossil fuel to produce
and are completely compostable.

Outlook

In 2007, we expect to see similar levels of overall
revenue growth as we continue to be selective en
new business. With the significant reorganisation
activity undertaken in 2006 we would expect to
hegin to see some margin progression.

Continental Europe contract gains

In Norway, ESS won a five-year contract with Statoil
for four site camps, worth over €18 million a vear in
annual revenues.

In Germany, Eurest won a new contract with Moterola
with annual revenucs of €3 million.

In Italy, Onama won new contracts with Bergamo
Haspital and 3rd Age Housing in Turin with cambined
annual revenues of €4 million.

Split of revenue

£2,863m

2005; £2,830m

Split of operating profit*

£169m

2005: £169m

* Before exceptional items and including profit of associaics.




10 Compass Group PLC
Annual Report 2006

- b

i:_*.i'.siﬂs'_"'ﬂ.»i'f

Maximising the value
of healthy eating,

Sector: Healthcare

We are constantly looking for new ways 1o
help hospital patients cat better. At London’s
Charing Cross Hospital we are using
revolutionary steam technology o deliver

a wider choice of appetising and nutritious
meals that aid their recovery: Patdents are
cating 36% maore food and food going to
waste has reduced by one third.

Operating review
continued

United Kingdom

The stabilisation of the UK business is
progressing well under a new leadership team.
The introduction of a simplified and more
focused business model will underpin the
delivery of improved financial performance,

Market position and trends

We are the leader in contract foodservice
in the United Kingdom and have market
leading positions in many of the seciors in
which we operate.

Across all the sectors there 1s increasing demand
from customers for options that promote healthy
eating, In the Education sector we have been

at the forefront of helping schools meet the
Government’s new standards for school meals.
Over 60% of the contracts we operate already
mect the 2008 nutrient standards and exceed
the guidelines on fresh fruit and vegetables and
meat and portion sizes. We have also launched
a ‘Putting the Fun into Food” Programme to
raise the profile of healthy cating in primary
and secondary schools.

In Business & Incustry the trend away from
client subsidy to protfit & loss and fixed price
contracts is continuing, Meal times are
shortening, with the average lunch break
now less than 30 minutes. There is also a
marked trend towards all-day snacking

and this is increasing the demand for

‘grab and go’ products,

Overview of the year
Owr priority has been to start stabilising the
business and build a firm foundation for future

growth. We have made good progress in creating

a more robust contract base by renegotiating or
exiting poorer performing ones. The impact of
these actions has been offset by new contract
gains enabling us to achieve a simitar level of
financial performance to last year,

The Education sector has again heen
challenging as we have responded o the
Governiment’s drive to improve school meals.
There are now clear signs that this sector is
beginning to stabilise and during the summer
we won new contracts in Reading, Sheffield,
Kent and West Sussex,

In May we appointed lan El-Mokadem,
previously Managing Dircector of Onetel,
to run the UK business. He has a wealth
of experience in business strategy and in
consumer and retail markets, which will be
invaluahle as the business responds to the
trends in the marketplace.

Product and service development

As contract structures move onto a more
commercial basis and client subsidies reduce,
we are continuing to invest in developments
that extend our product portfolio to meet
customer necds and drive efficiencies.

Using innovative steam pressure technology 1o
cock appetising and fresh food quickly while
preserving the nutritional content, is generating
new growth opportunities in the Education,
Healtheare and Business & Industry sectors.

Though not a substitute for traditional
production kitchens it provides a high-quality
and cost-effective alternanve for schools wath
neo hot meals service. In West Sussex Scolarest
has won a contract with the County Council 1o
provide meals tor 238 primary schools as they
transition {rom a packed lunch to hot meals
service. When fully mobilised we will provide
over four million meals a vear.

In Healthcare one of the challenges for NHS
Trusts is to provide high-quality nutritious
meals that increase patient satisfaction and aid
recovery. Utilising steam technology Medirest
is able to offer clients and patients a morce
extensive cholee of hot meals cooked to order
at ward level. We are currently supplying over
103,000 such meals a day across 30 hospitals,
To meet demand we have developed a ‘Cuisine
Centre” in St Albans capable of producing
35,000 meals a day.

In Business & Industry steam technology is a
cost-cflective option at client locations where the
number of on-site stafl’ would not commercially
justify a tradidonal meal service.

Outlook

We expect business to remain challenging in
the UK in 2007, particularly in the Education
sector. We will, however, continue to simplify
the business to generate cost efficiencies and
focus on improving the margin, particularly on
paorer performing contracts.

United Kingdom contract gains

Medirest secured a seven-year contract worth over

L9 million in annual revenue 1o provide full hotel services
at two hospitals in Merseyside for the St Helens and
Knowsley Hospitals Trust.

Scolarest won a new contract with Westninster Ciry
Councll worth over £2 million in annual revenue to serve
over 14 million meals annually at 39 primary and two
secondary schools.

Leith’s won a [0-year contract w provide full catening
services for Beaulien Enterprises Lid, worth £1 million
a year in annual revenue,

Split of revenue

£1,957/m

2005: £1,982m

Split of operating profit*

£115m

2005: £114m

* Before exceptional items and including profit of associates.
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Understanding idividual
needs, all over the world.

Sector: Defence, Offshore & Remote sites
For people working on offshore o1l and gas

rigs and remoete construction and niming sies
a hot nutriious meal, a clean bed and a freshly
lnundered uniferm are vital “home” comlorts.

We recognise the importance of these basic,
hut essential, needs. That’s why we go 1o the
encs of the carth, literally: to deliver the
highest levels of customer support and service,
Most miportantly of all we need w do it safely
and with consideration for the environment.

Operating review
continued

Rest of the World

Organic revenue growth was driven by strong
performances in Australia and Latin America
as a result of the buoyant offshore oil and gas
and remote site mining sectors. We completed
the planned exit from our Middle East military
catering operations and continued to exit the
high street retail restaurant market in Japan.

Market position and trends

The contract foodservice market wnn the Rest
of the World has an approximate value of
£47 billion with outseurcing a little over 50%
but with significant opportunitics remaining
in the Education, Healthcare and Defence,
Oftshore & Remote sites sectors.

Over the last 10 years we have established a
presence in those countries that offer attractive
current and future growth prospects, During this
time we have established leading positions in
Australia, Japan, Asia and Latin America and
have clients in over 40 countrics.

In the more developed markets, such as
Australia, we have begun to sectorise our offer
to respond to the specaific requirements of
clients in the Healthcare and Fducation sectors,
In markets such as China and India we are
continuing o ensure that our business is

well placed to respond and benefit from the
projected growth of these emerging cconomies.

‘The trend towards healthy living 1s continuing
and we are adaptng our global healthy cating
programme, Balanced Choices, to meet the
different culturaj and culinary requirements of
our consumers.

Qverview of the year

We saw organic growth across all sectors up
13% overall. The Defence, Offshore & Remote
sites sector grew by 24%, as a result of strong
performances in Australi and Latin America,
and now represents 35% of the Rest of the
World business. In Japan we are continuing
our planned exit from the high street retail
restaurant market and this held back organic
growth to 4%.

We have seen good profit growth in Australia
and other countries with remote site operations
reflecting the buoyvancy of the oil, gas and
extractive industrics. Overall operating profit
for the Rest of the World has been held back
in part by the impact of the nationalisation of
the extractive industry in Venezuela following
a change of government,

China offers significant future growth prospecs
and we are very pleased with the development
of our business in this important market. During
the year we won contracts with Nokia, Bayer
Polymers, Tianjin Denso Electronics and
Foxxcon International. As planned we have

now completed our exit from military catering
operations in the Middle East.

Product and service development

Health and safety is the number one priority
for us and our clients in the Defence,

Offshore & Remote sites sector, In Australa,
we have launched the ‘Compass Care” initiative
to promote excellence i health and salety
management and to facilitate the rehabilitation
and return to work of 11l or injurcd employees.

In Japan, we are responding to our clients’
increasing focus on the management of
their environmental impacts by increasing
the number of our units with ISO 14001
(Environmental Quality Standards)
Accreditation. We now have 360 of our
units achieving the required standards.

Also in Japan our ‘Dessent Forest” menu
development trial designed to boost sales by
encouraging customers to select an additional
itemn has resulted in a 3% increase in sales.
The programme will now be rolled out across
all our Business & Industry operations.

Outlook

In 2007 we would expect 1o see more moderate
revenue growth but would now expect 1o begin
t0 See some margin progression.

Rest of the World contract gains

In Australia, we have heen awarded a five-year contract
with the Sydney Central Garrison Support worth over
AS30 millicn in annual revenues,

MMedirest in Australia has won contracts for three years
with Jewish Care and Masonic Homes with combined
annual revenues of AS7.5 million.

In China, Eurcst has won three-year contracts with

Yew Chung International School of Shanghai Gubei
and Hemggiao Campus and the Beijing Internadonal
Singapotrean School.

Split of revenue

£1,705m

2005: £1,600m

Split of operating profit*

£55m

2005 £53m

* Before exceptional iems and including profiv of associates,
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Working with local
producers, wherever
they are in the world.

Sourcing food responsibly

We recoguise the importance of working
with supplicrs in emcerging markets to huild
sustainable supply chains That is why we

are working with Iocal producers 1o tmprove
their skills and producton capabilities o help
them develop new markets and support their
local community.

We have invested 0.2% of our revenues from
Angola in local community projects and are
working with the Quengucela community project
to source vegetahles and eggs fur our sites,

Acting responsibly in business

Acting responsibly is not new to Compass.
We believe that meeting stakeholder
expectations is an essential building block
for business sustainability and growth in
shareholder value.

Governance of social responsibility

Our traditien of encouraging local ownership
provides a firm foundation on which to build.
We believe there is more we can do and have
this year set up a Corporate Responsibility
Committee, chaired by Sir Rov Gardner.

Its remit is to provide strategic direction and
guidance on all aspects of business practice
and responsibility ensuring consistent
implementation everywhere we operate.

Solid foundations to achieve

industry leadership

In 2006 we have taken steps to improve our
environmental, social and cthical performance.
We have put in place “Speak Up’ lines so that
our employees can raise any concerns about
how we conduct our business on a confidential
basis. Most significantly, we have reviewed the
values that are at the heart of Compass. They
guide us on how we conduct business regardless
of where we are in the world. Our values are
Openness, Trust and Integrity; Passion for
Quality; Win Through Teamwork; Can-Do
and last, but not least Responsibility, a clear
commitment to embedding responsible business
practice as part of our culture.

To help focus our attention we have also set out
a clear framework of responsibilities that are
specific to Compass as well as those which

are common to all large businesses.

A future priority for us is to establish a commaon
set of performance indicators. This will provide
us with a means to monitor and manage
performance at a Group level complementing

existing measures at an operating company level,

Our responsibilities

Business integrity

The Compass Group Code of Ethics sets out
our social, ethical and environmenial
commitment towards cach of our stakeholders
and the communities in which we operate.
The Code is the bedrock of our corporate
responsibility programme.

Safety, health and the environment

Our number one operational priority is safety,
health and environment. We believe that each
of us at Compass Group has a moral obligation
to safeguard cach other, our customers and the
environment by operating a safe, injury free and
healthy workplace, serving food that 1s always
safe to eat and which minimises our impact on
the cnvironment.

We take our environmental responsibilities
seriously, believing that effective environmental
management is in the interests of both our
husiness and our clients in whose premises we
operate. Our Environmental Policy sets out
our commitment and our Safety, Health and
Environment Forum (SHEF) promotes policy,
sets standards and monitors best practice across
the Group.

We asked Trucost PLO to assess our
environmental performance and our key
impacts. Utilising the model used by the

British Government to select the KPls relevant
to cach secior of British industry they identificd
greenhouse gases, particularly COy cmissions
and waste as our key impacts, Next year we
will set out the actions we will take 1o better
manage our direct impacts and thereafter we
will report annually on our progress.

Diet and nutrition

As a global toodservice company we know that
we have an enormous influence en what our
20 million consumers a-day choose to cat and
drink. As such, our contribution to their dict
and nutrition is our most significant impact.

We are working closcly with our clients,
suppliers, governments and regulators across the
world to respond to the emerging public health
issues associated with obesity and diet. We aim
to provide a wide choice of menu items so that
consumers seeking healthier options to suit their
particular lifestyle are well served,

Culinary tastes vary across the globe, so

we do not aim for a consistent approach,
but rather basic principles that place healthy
caling as a primary responsibility across the
globe. Prioritics in North America will be
very different from countries in, say the
Asia-Pacific regions.
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Sourcing food responsibly Setting a course for industry leadership
The purchasing decisions we make have l

implications for food production and e
environmental sustainability. We expect our

E‘_M:.w peagooa)

Industry leadership in corporate responsibility

suppliers to have the same high social, ethical A
and environmental standards as we aspire to, Developing a leadership position
(Bl oty areameilalily e ffr Geldikerwiss S0 ese s ]
Cur people "Diet & nutrition Climate change Local community
Cur ])‘:“P]C are our greatest asset and the face Salt, sugar, fat Energy & resource Emplovee voluntecring
Compass presents to the world. We want them Obesity Fransport As an emplover
10 be mativated and engaged, we value their Sourcing Lol sourcing
diversity and are committed 10 providing them A A A
with development and training opportunities to Cenfirming our focus
fulfil their potential. We also encourage [ Cromprereits iy BELES SFRGE my F 8 TED emivensrTss ]

employee voluntecring to support the

communities in which they live and work, Safety, health Business integrity Stekeholder Supply chain Gavernance and
i and environment Employability engagement risk management
. Diversity
Community
We have a strong track record in community
. : A A A A A

engagement. Compass in the Community,
established a decade ago, recognises the best
community-based initatives from across the
world. Projects promote healthy lifestyles,
tackle social exclusion, improve employability
and promote sustainability and diversity.
Compass in the Community rewards successful
teams with a donation to support their project.

Firm foundations

How are we doing?

External recognition such as inclusion in

the Dow Jones Sustainability Index provides

a benchmark for our performance. Our
commitment 1o the United Nations Glabal
Compucy, the Percent Club and other relevant
organisations dumonstrates our infent.

In 2007, we will be preducing a Corporate
Responsibility report which will explain our
approach to managing our social, ethical,
environmental and broader economic impacts
in more detail.
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Financial review

These are the first full year results prepared
and presented in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRS’) and
comparative figures have been restated
accordingly. Discontinued operations have
been excluded throughout this review, except

where otherwise stated.

Andrew Martin Group Finance Director

The Group achieved 7% organic revenue
growth in 2006 with strong performances in
North America and the Rest of the Waorld
regions, but more difficult trading in the

UK and Continental Europe. Actions arc
underway to improve [Iinancial performance,
with continued focus on delivery of strong
free cash {low and improved returns on capital
cmploved ({ROCE’) over the medium term,
The Group has announced medium-term
{2006-2008) objectives 1o improve ROCE

by 100 basts points and to generane free cash
flew from continuing operations over the

period of £800 million- 850 millton.

Group performance
The Group’s reported financial summary for the
year encled 30 September 2006 is set out below.

Increase/
2006 2005' (decrease)

Continuing_bperations
before exceptional items

Revenue £10,815m £10,073m 7.4%
Operating profit? £508m  £496m 2.4%)
Operating margin3 4.7% 1.9%  (20)ps
Profit hefors: ax

- underlying? £363m  [3Hm 5.5%
- reported £3Mm 34w 9.7%
Free cash {low £265m  [227Tm  16.7%
Basic carnings per share

- underlying 11.4p 10.49p 4.6%
= reported 11.7p 10.7p 9.3%

Total Group after
exceptional items
Basic. earnings per share 13.3p Wi 47.H%
Dividend per ordinary share 10.1p Wip 3.0%

! Prior perind figures have been restated from
UK GAAP w IFRS.

2 Includes share of profit of associates.

4 Lxcludes share of profit of associates.

4 Underlying profit hefure tax and basic earnings
per share excludes exceptional items and inceme of
L£11m (2005: charge £{3)m) in respect of hedge
accouming ineffectivencss, and basie, carnings
per share: excludes these items net of tax,

Discontinued operations

On 15 June 2006, Compass completed the
sale of its travel concessions catering business,
Select Service Partner, including Creative
Host Services in the US {together, *S5P),

for net consideration afier transaction costs of
£1.798 million, S5FP's revenue and operating
profits in 2005 were £1,804 million and
L112 million respeetively on an 1IFRS basis.
During the period, the Group also completed
the sale of its European Inflight catering
business for net consideration after transaction
costs of £65 million, the RA Patina public
restaurants business in the US and the

Strand Palace Hotel in London for a total of
£85 million and a number of other small travel
eoncesstons related businesses for a total of
£7 million. The revenue and operating profits
of these husinesses in 2005 were £ 342 million
and £12 million respectively,
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The resubts of all these businesses are treated
as discontinued operations and are therefore
excluded from the results of continuing
operations in 2006. The 2003 resulis have
been restated on a consistent basis. The results
of the Selecta vending business are reported
within continuing operations.

The Group has completed the withdrawal from
its Middle East military catering operations.
The revenue and operating profits before
exceptional items in 2005 from these activities
were £175 million and £34 million respectively.
The results of these operations are also treated
as discontinued operations and are therefore
excluded from the results of continuing
operations in 2006, The 2003 results have

been restated on a consistent basis.

The Group uses the following key performance
tndicators 10 measure progress wowards objectives.

Key performancg indriEalors:

Organic revenue growth % %
ongmic revenue groeswth is calculated

by adjusting for acquisitions (excluding

urrent vear acquisitions and including

afull year in respect of prior year

acepuisionsy, disposals (exeluded from

both years) and exchange riate movements

(transhating the prior period at the

current period exchange rates)

Operating margin A 4.9%
befure the Group's shire of protic

of associates

Earnings per share

excluding inance costs in respeat
of hedge accouming ineffiretiveness,
netof tas

1L4p  109p

Capex as a percentage

of revenue

gruss capital expenditure: (including
intangible assets and assets acquired
uncker lnance leases)/ revenue

2.3% 2.8%

Free cash flow £265m
comprises net cash from operting

activities. purchase of property, plant

and equipment and imangible assets,

less proceeds from sale, dividends paid

to minority interests, dividends received

from ussociates and interest received

£927m

Return on capital employed 10.7% 10.7%
totid vperning profit excluding the

Group’s minority partner’s share

net of tax/average capital emploved

(ner debt added back 1o net assets)

All KPIs are caleulated hefore exceptional
items for continuing uperations only.

Revenue

Onerall, the Group delivered revenue growth
of 7% on a reported basis, 6% on a constant
currency basis and 7% organic growth
(previously referred o as like for like growth).

The main factors that affected the period on
period change in revenue are summarised below:

Continuing operations %
Chganic growth 7
Acquisition and disposal adjustiments 1))
Movements in transhuion rites |
Reported growth 7

The tahle below sets out organic growth by
sector for each geographic segment. Organic
growth is calculated by adjustng for acquisitions
(excluding current vear acquisitions and
inclucking a full year in respect of prior year
acquisiions), disposals (excluded from both
years) and exchange rate movements (translating
the prior period at current period exchange
rates), and compares the results against 2003,

- Group
Continuing  na CE UK ROW  total
operations £ % Y% % %
Contract:

Business &

Indusiry 12 1 0 9 5
Healtheare 12 3 2) 13 8
Education 11 0 4 14 6
Sports &

Leisure 26 7 2 P4 14
Delenee,

Oitshore &

Remaote 45 18 3 24 21
Fotal Contract 14 2 i) 14 8
Vending 2 1 ] - (1}
Travel

Concessions! — 4 - (14) (10)
Total 12 2 0 13 7

b Residual tavel concessions principally comprises:
motorways in Japan and Portugal.

Operating profit

Operating profit from continuing operations

including associates is £508 million

(2005: £496 million), an increase of 2.4%.

Finance cost

Net finance cost for the vear is £134 million
{2005: £155 million} including £11 million
non-cash income on hedge accounting
ineflectiveness (arising on the revaluation of
interest rate hedging instruments that do not
qualily for hedge accounting under IAS 39)

{2005: charge £(3) million), Excluding this
hedge accounting ineflectiveness, the underlying
net finance cost for the vear is {145 million
(2005: £152 million). We currently anticipate
underlying net linance costs to be around

L1105 million-£ 110 million for 2007 principally
reflecting a full year’s henefit of the net disposal
proceeds received during the course of 2006,

Profit before tax

Prolit hefore tax from continuing operations
before exceptonal items is £374 million
(2005 £341 million) up 9.7%.

On an underlying basis, before hedge
accounting ineffectiveness, profit before tax
from continuing eperations increased by
5.3% to £363 million (2005: £344 million).

Income tax expense

The overall Group wx charge before
exceptional items for the year s £113 million
(2005: £96 million), giving an effective tax rate
of 30¢% (2003: 28%). We expect the Group's
effective wax rate o average around the 30%
level for the foresceable future.

Basic earnings per share

Basic carnings per share are 13.3 pence

(2005: 9.0 penee) up 47.8%. Excluding
exceptional items and discontinued operations,
basic carnings per share on an underlying
hasis, before hedge accounting ineffectiveness,
are | 1.4 pence (2005: 10.9 pence) up 4.6%,
Auributable profit and basic earnings por
share are reconciled below.

Attributable
profit Basic earnings per share
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m fm pence pence Change
Reported 285 145 13.3 0o 418%
Discontinued
operatjons and
exceptional items {34) 36 {1.6) 1.7
Hedge acenunting
inctivctiveness
= after tax {7) f) {0.3} 0.2
Underlying 244 235 11.4 1.4 1.6%
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Financial review
continued

Dividends

The recommended final dividend is

6.7 pence per share resuliing n a total
dividend of 10.1 pence per share for the year
(2005: 9.8 pence), a vear-on-year increase of
3. 8% over 2003, Dividend cover for 2006
was |1 tmes underlying earmngs. Whilst we
remain committed (o continue to grow the
dividend in real terms, our objective over the
medium term remains to move the dividend
cover more towards the two times level.

Acquisitions

The acquisition of the remaining 5 1% interest
in Levy Restaurants not already held was
completed on 18 April 2006 for $250 million
(6134 mllion).

The Group’s strategic focus continues to be

on the organic development of its existing core
businesses. As a result, only a small number of
minor acquisitions were completed where these
reinfurced sectoral presence in certain areas.

The Group does not currently anticipate any
significant new acquisitions during 2007 and
pavments of deferred consideradon in respect
of past acquisttions and the buvout of minority
interests is currently expected to total around

£30 million in 2007.

Discontinued operations

On 15 June 2006, the Group completed the
sale of its travel concessions catering business,
Select Service Panner, including Creative
Host Services in the US. The Group has

also completed the exit {from its Middle East
military catering operations. During the period,
the Group completed the sale of a number
of its other non-core comcessions businesses,
including 11s Eurapean Inflight catering
husiness, the RA Patina public restaurants
business in the US, the Strand Palace Hotel
in London, the Italian motorways business
and Krispy Krente in the US. The results

of these operations have all been classified

as ciscontinued.

Operating profit before tax and exceptional
items for the period from these discontinueel
operations was £ 23 million (2605: £158 million).
The loss after tax and exceptional items from
discontinued operations was £(30) million

{2005: profit £73 million). The profit after
tax on disposal of net assets of discontinued
operations is £20 million (2005: [nil million).

Disposal of Selecta

On 29 November 2006, the Group announced
its intentien o dispose of its Sclecta vending
businesses operating in 21 countries in
Continental Furope and in the UK.

These businesses generated revenue of

£476 million, carnings before interest and

tax (EBIT) of £45 million and carnings before
interest, tax and depreciation (EBITDA} of
L£87 million in 2006. Net capital expenditure
in 2006 totalled £46 million.

Pensions
The Group now accounts for pensions in
accordance with [AS 19,

Significant one-off contributions were made

to the two main UK defined benefit schemes
during the year totalling £280 million following
the disposal of the 8SP business and the Strand
Palace Heotel.

As a result, the toal pensions delicit was
significandy reduced at 30 September 2006
to £282 million (2003 £555 million).

The Group has reviewed its pension
assumptions and continued to move to more
prudent assumptions in determining the deficit,
inclucling life expectancy assumptions which
have again been inereased in 2006,

For example in the UK, life expectancy
assumptions at age 63 for a pensioner have
been increased to 19.7 vears {male), 22,6 years
(female) (2005: 17.8 vears {male), 20.7 years
{female)) and for non-pensioners life expectancy
assumptions have been increased o 20.9 vears
(male), 23.7 years (female) (2005: 19.4 vears
{male), 22.4 years (female)).

The 1o1al pensions charge in the year was
£33 million (2005: £26 million) for defined
contribution schemes and £35 million
(2003: £53 million) for detined benefic
schemes. OF the defined bencefit scheme
costs, £/ 11 million (2005: £ 14 million) was

charged to net finance cost.

Return on capital employed

Return on capital emploved (ROCE) was
10.7% (2005: 10.7%) based on the comtinuing
business before exceptional trems, excluding
the Group’s minority partner’s share of total
operating profit, net of tax at 30%, and using
an average capital emploved for the year of
£3,232 miltion (2003: £3,137 million)
calculated from the IFRS balance sheet.

Capital employed has been calculated by
adding back net debt to net assets. The capital
emploved in the business as at 30 September
2006 and 2005 is detadled in the table below:

2006 2005

£m £m

Nt assets 2,312 2,278

Net debr 1,095 2425
Capial employed — continuing and

discontinued operations 3,407 4,703

Capitdd employed — discominued operations - 1.647

Capital employed - vontinuing operations 3.407 3.0536

Under UK GAAD mcluded within average
capital employed was goodwill previously written
off to reserves, now extnguished under [FRS,
and goodwill amortised prior to 30 September
2004, the date at which the net book value of
goodwill was frozen under TFRS, Including these
adjustments, average capital emploved for the
year, for the continuing businesses, would have
been £6,294 million (2005: £6,051 million) and
return on capital employed for the continuing
business would have been 3.9% (2005; 5.9%).

e

Financial targets

The Group’s three year targets for the

continuing business for 2006 — 2008 remain

unchanged at:

* 100 basis points improvemens in ROCE;

+ free cash flow from continuing operations
of £800 million — £850 million,

Cash flow

Free cash flow from the continuing business
totalled £265 million (2005: £227 million).
The major factors contributing to the increase
were: £24 million reduction in net capital
expenditure and £+ million lower working
capital outflow, offset by £14 million higher
net interest payments and £29 mallion higher
net tax payments.
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2006 revenue split by sector % 2006 revenue split by geography %
Business & Industry 41 North America B 40
Defence, Offshore & Remote 9 United Kingdom 18
FEducation 13 France 8
Healthcare 16 Germany 4
Sports & Leisure 11 Tialy 3
Vending O Spain 2
Travel concessions 1 Switzedand 2
Total 100 The Netherlands 2
Rest of Eumpe 3
Japan 5
CAMEA 3
Australia 3
Latin America 3
Asia Pacilic 2
Total 100

Net capital expenditure, which two years ago
exceeded £300 million will, for the next
two-three vears, be a1 a level of around 2% of
revenues post the disposal of the Selecta vending
business. We are working hard at improving our
working capital performance and now expect to
see an average annual outflow of approximately
£20 million. Given the scale of the working
capital balances, there are however likely to

be fluctuations between years.

The Group’s cash tax rate for the year was
27% (2005: 20%), based on underlying profit
before tax, We expect the average cash wx rate
to remain at a similar level for the foresecable
future, but again with some potential
fluctuations between vears,

The net interest eutflow of {174 million in
2006 includes an outflow of £20 million over
and above the income statement charge relating
to the swap reversal transactions carried out

in 2004,

Acquisition payments were £167 million
{2005: £121 million) comprising the
acquisition of the remaining 51% interest in
Levy Restaurants which was completed on

18 April 2006 for $250 million (£ 134 million),
£8 million freom the huyout of half of the
remaining 10% of Onama in Italy, £8 million
of deferred consideration in respect of prior
years’ transactions and £18 million in respect
of other sundry acquisitions less 1 million
of cash acquired.

Disposal proceeds net of transaction costs
comprises consideration of £1,935 million less
£118 million of cash disposed and £45 million
consideration deferred to future periods, plus
£15 million of deferred consideration received
in the vear relating to prior vears’ transactions.

Performance review by geographic segment
The able below summarises the performance
of the Group’s continuing operations by
geographic segment and for the Group on

an underlying basis.

Segmental performance
Year ended 30 September 2006

Constant
Reported  currency  Organic
change change growth
2006 2005 % % %
Continuing
operations
Revenue (f/m)
North
America 4,290 3961 I+ Il 12
Cuntinental
Furope 2,863 2,830 1 2 2
United
Kingdom 1,957 1,982 (n n -
Rest of
the World 1,705 1,500 14 14 13
Tonal 10815 10,073 7 |+ 7
Operating
profit! (£m}
North
Anerica 245 218
Continental
Eurape 169 164
United
Kingdom 114 114
Rest ol
the World 55 3
Unallucated
overheads (L)) (h4}
Associates 2 -
Total 508 196
Operating
margin? (%)
North
Americi 5.7 5.8
Caminental
Lurope 5.9 G.0
Linited
Kingdom 5.8 5.8
Rest of
the Woild a2 3.5
Total 4.7 4.9

I Opeeating profit includes share of profit of’ associates
North America £1m (2005: Unil) & UK Clm (2005: £nil).

2 Operating margin is based on revenue and operating profit
excluding share of profic of associates,

North America

40% Group revenue (2005: 37%)

North America enjoved another successful

vear delivering 12% organic revenue growth

o £4,290 million (2003: £3,761 million}.
Revenue growth has been strong across all of
the contract sectors. The Healthcare sector,
with organic growth of 12%, has benefited from
the continuing success of the support services
business, Crothall, which has won a number of
large contracts often with a significant cleaning
and laundry component. The Business &
Industry sector, with organic growth of 12%,
has continued to win a number of important
new clients and to drive like for like sales from
existing contracts, Levy Restaurants, which
operates our Sports & Leisure business, has
shown very strong organic growth of 26%, in
part reflecung the sporting success of many of
the teams who are our clients. In April 2006, we
completed the acquisition of the remaining 51%
of Levy for $250 million {£ 134 million) taking
our total investment in Levy to $337 million.
The negative revenue growth in Vending reflects
our strategy (o operate on a franchise basis in
areas where we do not have sufficient scate

and density which helps improve profitahility.

Total operating profit on continuing activities
cxcluding share of profit of associates increased
to £245 million {2003: £218 millicn). The
contract catering business generally performed
well across all sectors. Rising fuel costs impacted
the bustness as a whole, and vending in
particular, The disposal of 75%

of Au Bon Pain in the second hall’ of 2005

also resulted in a £4 million negative impact

on operating profic in 2006.

A 5 cent movemnent in the average US dollar to
Sterling exchange rate impacts annual revenue
by circa £ 100 million and operating profit by
circa £7 million.
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Financial review
continued

Continentali Europe

26% Group revenue (2005: 28%)

Revenue in Continental Europe grew hy
2% on an organic basis to £2,863 million
(2005: £2,830 million). This lower level of
growth reflects our being both more selective
on the new business we take on and the
continued focus to improve the performanee
of lower margin contracts or to exit these
where appropriate. The Nordie region grew
well, with organic growth of 7% driven hy
strong demand from the ol and gas scctor
Spain and Switzedand also showed good
organic growth of [1% and 5% respectively,

Operating profu for the year was £ 169 million
(2005: £169 million). We have made some
good progress in France, Nordic and the
Netherlands, which are all showing signs of
improving performances. Ttaly performed less
well and is in the carly stages of recovery.

A D cent movement in the average Euro to
Sterling exchange rate impacts annual revenue
by circa £90 million and opcrating profit by
circa £4 million.

UK

18% Group revenue (2005: 20%)

In the UK, revenue was flat at £1,957 million
(2005: £1,982 million). We are continuing to
make good progress in addressing lower
margin contracts. This initiative contributed
towards the higher than normal level of lost
business, in line with our expectations.

Parts of the Education sector continuc to be
challenging, with organic revenue declining by
4% overall. This is largely a result of reduced
participation particularly in siate secondary
schools as the take up on healthier aptions

remains slow. We have also exited a number of

poorer performing contracts in the state sector.

Operating profit excluding share of profit
of associates for the year was in line with
last year at £114 million (2005: £1 14 million).

Rest of the World

16% Group revenue {2005:; 15%)

Inn the Rest of the World, revenue grew hy
13% o £1,705 million (2005: £1,500 million)
with all scctors performing well.

35% of the business in the Rest of the World
is in the Defence, Offshore & Remote sector.
This scctor grew by 24%, benefiting from the
buoyant il and gas and mining sectors around
the world, particularly in Australia up 26%
and Latin America up 15%. Organic growth
in Japan was 4%, in part held back by the
continued exit from the retail business.

Operuting profit for the year was £35 million
(2005: £53 million), We have seen good
organic growth in Australia, in particular,

The Group has completed the exit from
Middle East military catering operations,

Unaltocated overheads

Unallocated overheads for the year were

£77 million (2005 £58 million). These include
restructuring costs at 4 Head Office level
throughout the year and the strengthening

and addition of certain central functions.

In 2007 we expeet o see a small reduction
in unallocated overheads.

Gearing

The Group has a medium-term interest cover
target of approximately five umes profit before
interest, tax and exceptional items. However,
this is only one of a range of ratios used by
the banks and rating agencies, covering the
strength of the cash flow, income statement
and halance sheet, The ratio of net debx

10 market capitalisation of £5,638 million as
at 30 September 2006 was 19% (2005: 35%).

Financial instruments

The Group continues to manage its interest
rate and foreign currency exposure in
accordance with the policies set out below.

Fhe Group’s financial instruments comprise
cash, borrowings, trade payables and trade
receivables that are used to finance the Group’s
operations. The Group also uses derivatives,
principally interest rate and currency swaps
and forward currency comracts, to manage
interest rate and currency risks arising from the
Group’s operations. The Group does not trade
in {inancial instruments. The Group's treasury
policies are designed to mitigate the impact of
fluctuations in interest rates and exchange rates

Financing — Maturity Profile of Principal Borrowings
£m
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and to minimise the Group’s financial risks.
The Board approves any changes 10 the policy.

Liquidity risk

The Group finances its horrowings from a
number of sources including the bank and
public and US private placement markets.

The maturity profile of the Group’s principal
borrowings at 30 September 2006 is shown
above and the average life is 4.7 years. The
Group’s undrawn committed bank facilities
at 30 September 2006 were £960 million,

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s policy 1s to match its principal
projected cash flows by currency to actual

or cffective borrowings in the same currency.
As currency earnitgs are generated, they are
used to service and repay debt in the same
currency. For the period of the currency loans,
therefore, the objective is to achieve an effective
foreign cusrency hedge in real economic terms.
Where necessary, to implement this policy,
currency swaps arc taken out which, when
applied to the actual currency labilities,
convert these to an effective amount

borrowed by currency. A recanciliation

of the 30 September 2006 actual currency
liabilities to the elfective amount borrowed is
set out below.

Forwards
and cross  Effective
Gross  currency  currency of
borrowings swaps  bomowings
Currency £m m £m
Steding 851 (326) 325
US Dollar 506 375 881
Euro 547 (205) 342
Japanese Yen 23 58 81
Other currencies 26 299 325
Tenal 1.953 1 1,954

€m

Current liabilites Finance ke 15
Bank overd 56

Bank loans 15

[xan notes 33

Non-current liabilitics Finanee leises 42
Bank loans 22

Laxan notes 421

Bondds 1,350

Tental L4954
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The borrowings in each currency give rise to
forcign exchange differences on transtaton into
Sterling. As the borrowings are either less than,
or equale (o, the net investment in overseas
operations, these exchange rate movements are
treated as movements on reserves and recorded
in the statement of recognised income and
cxpense rather than in the income statement.

Overseas carnings streams are translated

at the average rute of exchange for the vear.
This results in differenees in the Sterling value
of currency carnings from year 1o vear, The
-atue of the business is, however, materially
protected through the matching of currency
cash flows to currency borrowings. The 1able
below sets out the exchange rates used for major
currencies for translating the 2006 and 2005
income statements and halance sheets.

Average rate Closing rate

2008 2005 2008 2005

Australian Doltar 2.41 242 2.53 2.32
Brazilian Real 1497 +.73 4.22 3.93
Canadian Dollar 2.06 2.26 2,13 2.05
Danish Krone 10.92 10.83 11.049 10.95
Eure 146 1.46 1.48 1.47
Japanese Yen 200,07 198,34 220,54 20051
Norwegian Krone 11,66 11.76 12,47 11.54
Swadish Krona 13.67 13.35 £3.80 13.67
Swiss Frinc 2.29 2.25 2.34 2,28
US Dullar 1.80 1.85 1.87 1,77

Interest rate risk

As detailed above, the Group has effective
horrowings i1 a number of currencies and is
policy is to ensure thay, in the short term, it is
not materially exposed to fluctuations in interest
rates in 1t principal currencies. The Group
implements this policy cither by borrowing fixed
rate debt or by using interest rate swaps so that
at least 80% of the Group’s projected debt is
fixed for one year, reducing to 60% fixed for the
second vear and 40% fixed lor the third year.

Shareholder retum

The market price of the Group’s ordinary
shares at the close of the financial year was
£2.68 (2005: £2.06).

Going concern

After making enquiries, the directors have

a reasonable expectation that the Group has
aclequale resources to continue in operational
existence lor the foresceable future. For this
reason, they continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial
statements,

Conclusion

The successtul disposals of the travel concessions
businesses including SSP and the exit from the
Middle East milivary catering business have
resulted in a more focused Group and leaves

us in a stronger financial posidon. The focus in
the coming year will be on improving underlying
business performance.

Andrew Martin

Group Finance Director
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Board of directors

Reshaping our leadership - we have thought
long and hard about the leadership skills

we need. It 1s not just about looking at CVs;
it is also about understanding what each
personality brings to our business and how

the team interacts.

01 Sir Roy Gardner

{hairman Age 61

Appointed Chairman in July 20006 haviag heen appoimed
to the Board as Sentor Independent Director in October
2005. He is a senior advisor 1o Credit Suisse, President
of Carers UK and Chairman of the Apprenticeship
Ambassadors Network. He s a former Chief Executive
of Centrica ple, Chairman of Manchester United ple,
Finance Director of British Gas ple, Managing Director
of GEC-Marconi Lid and a Director of GEC ple

and a former non-executive director of Lapone ple.

Sir Roy is Chairman of the Nomination and

Carporate Responsibility Comminees, a member of the
Remuneration Committee and received his Knighthood
in 2002 for services 1o the gas and electricity industries,

02 Richard Cousins

Group Chief Executive Age 47

Appointed to the Board in May 2006 and appointed
Group Chief Executive in June 2006, He was until
December 2005 Chief Execudve Officer of BB ple,
having held a number of positions with that company
since joining it in 1990, He is a former non-executive
dircctor of P&O and his cadier carcer with
Cadbury Schweppes ple and BTR ple. Richard is a
member of the Corporate Responsibility Committee,

03 Andrew Martin

Group Finance Cirector Age 46

Appointed to the Board in March 2004, He was
previously a pariner with Arthur Andersen and held
senior financial pusitions with Fore Ple and Granada
Group PLC. Following the dispasal of the Hotels Division
in 2001, Andrew joined First Choice Holidays PLC as
Finance Director He joined Compass Group in 2004, He
is an Associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and an Associate of the Chartered
Insutute of Taxaton. Andrew is 4 member of the
Corporate Responsibility Committee.

04 Gary Green

Group Managing Director — USA, Canada

and Latin America Age 49

Appointed to the Board with effeer from January 2007,

Joined the Group in 1986 in a senior finance rale in the

UK Division and became a UK divisional dircctor in
1992. Relocated to the USA in 1994 as Chiel’ Finance
Officer of the Group's North American Division and in
1999 became Chief Executive Officer. Appointed Chief
Executive OfTicer of the Americas in January 2005,

05 Peter Cawdron

Senicr Independent Director anc

Deputy Chairman Age 63

Appointed to the Board in November 1993, He is
Chairman of GCAP Media PLC and a non-executive
director of a number of companies, including ARM Holdings
PLC, Johnsion Press PLC, Prostrakan Group PLG,

Punch Taverns PLC and The Capita Group PLC. Peter

is a former dircctor of Arda Foods UK PLC, Christian
Salvesen P1.C and Grand Metropolitin PLC. He is
Chairman of the Remuneration Commiuee and a member
of the Nomination Committee. Peter will retire from the
Board at the conclusion of the 2007 Annual General Meeting,

06 Peter Blackburn CBE

Non-executive director Age 65

Appointed 1o the Board in April 2002, He is a nen-
executive director of 831G ple. He is a former Chairman
of Northern Foods ple, a past President of the Food and
Drink Federation and a former Chairman and Chiel
Exccutive of Nestlé UK. Peter is a member of the Audi
and Nomination Committees and was awarded a CBE
in 2003 for services to the food and drink industry.

07 Val Gooding CBE

Nen-executive director Age 56

Appointed to the Board in January 2008, She is Chiel
Executive of BUPA, a non-executive director of Standard
Chartered PLC and a former non-executive director of
BaAA ple and Cable and Wireless Communications ple.
She is a member of the Council of the University of
Warwick and co-chair of the Advisory Board of the
Warwick Business School. She iy a trustee of the British
Muscum, Vice President of [nternationa! Federation of
Health Plans and a non-executive director of the Lawn
Tennis Associadon. Val is a member of the Nominatiom
and Remuneration Committees ind was awarded a CBE
in 2002 for services 1o business. Val will step down from
the Board on 31 December 2006,

08 Sven Kado

Non-executive director Age 62

Appointed to the Board in Apnl 2002, He 1s Chairman of
Marsh & McLennan Holdings GmbH and was previously
Chief Financial Officer of Nixdorf Computer AG, Chicf
Financial Officer of Dyckerhofl AG and senior advisor
of Principal Finance Group/Nomura Inernational. Sven
1s a member of the Audit and Remuneration Committees.

09 Steve Lucas

MNon-executive director Age 52

Appointed 10 the Board in July 2004, He is Group Finance
Director of National Grid ple haviang been previously
Executive Director, Finance of 1atice Group ple. He is

a chartered accountant and has keld a number of senior
linance positions with Shell Interaional Petredeum
Company and British Gas, More recently he was Treasurer
at BG Group. Steve is Chairman of the Audit Committee
and is a member of the Remunceration and Corporate
Responsibility Commitiees,

10 Sir lan Robinson

Non-executive director Age B4

Appointed to the Board with ceffeet from December 2006,
He is Chairman of Ladbrokes ple (lormery Hiltun Group
plef, a nen-executive director of Scottish & Newcastle ple
and Siemens Holdings plc. He is a former Chairman

of Amey ple, Chief Exccutive of Scottish Power ple

and non-executive director of ASDA ple and RMC ple.
Sir [an is a Fellow of the Roval Academy of Enginecers,

a Fellow of the Institution of Chemical Engineers,

a member of the Takeover Panel and received his
Knighthood in 2000 fur semvices to the electnicity industry.
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Sir Roy Gardner Chairman

Q

The tirst principle of the Gombined Code
concerns the need for an eftective board.
How does the Compass Group Board apply
this principle?

A

The Board is ultimately responsible for the good
management of the Company, The directors
accept that we are collectively responsible for

its success.

This is a large business operating across the
globe. Iis vital tha we have clear Iines of sight
so that we can discharge our duties eflectively.
We have in place a framework to enable us to
exercise control whilst delegating day-to-day
deciston making to those running the business.

I have taken a number of decisive steps o
improve corporate governance. We have

put in place more robust centralised controls.
This gives the Board better visibility as o
the performance of the Group. But the
entreprencurial flair that is essential to
improve profitability and sharcholder value
has not been stifled.

In addition 10 the Nomination, Audit and
Remuneration Committees, [ have established a
Corporate Responsibility Committee. Its terms
of relerence arc to look at all aspects of business
conduct, safety;, health and environmental
management and responsible business practice,

The effectiveness of the Board comes from us
focusing on the things that really matter. Having
absolute clarity as to the distinet roles of the
Beard and the executive management is vital.

Q

The Combined Gade prineiples alse deal
with the role of the board chairman.
How do vou see vour role?

A

My key responsibility is to lead the Board and
make sure that it is daing its job effectively,

Corporate governance - Chairman’s Q&A

All UK listed companies are required to make
disclosures in relation to the Combined Code
on Corporate Governance. Sir Roy Gardner
discusses what steps he has taken to improve
the Group’s corporate governance since

becoming Chairman.

In addition to strengthening the corporate
governance controls my priority this year has
been to ensure that we have a srategy that will
deliver enhanced shareholder value. My role in
strategy development is to probe and challenge
the executive team, 1 do this by utilising the
experience and knowledge that different
directors bring to the Board.

Now that the strategy is in place the Board and [
will regularly review how it is being implemented
by the Chief Executive and his team.

Succession planning is also a key responsibility
of the Chairman. It is vital that we have a
strong Board but also a pool of talented
managers that one day will be candidates for
positions at the highest levels in the Group.

Finally T also play a role in sharehelder
communications. Investor Relations is the
responsibility of the Group Chief Executive
and Finance Director. However, as Chairman
I maintain contact with the Group’s major
shareholders. I need to know tha they are
happy with the performance of the business.
I also need to be in a position to keep the
Board informed of their views,

Q

There have been a number of changes to e

membership of the Board his year Whit do

these changes mean 1o the etfectveness of the
Board?

A

The overriding priority for the Nomination
Committee was the appointment of a new
Group Chief Executive. Qur requirement

was for an individual with a combination of
business transformation skills, international
experience and a strong wrack record of creating
value for sharehalders. We have found this
combination in Richard Cousins,

The composition of the Board is also evolving
It is vital that the independent non-executive
directors and executive directors have the
skills and experience that reflect the needs

of the business. The appoiniment of Sir lan
Robinson and Gary Green has begun the
process of reinvigoration.

Q

A key aspeet of corporate governance is the
means by which a board satisfies iself that

2 company’s finmcial controls and svstems of
risk management are robust and defensible
and that fmancial information is accurate and
can be relied on. How does Compass Group
apply this principte?

A

The Board has overall responsibility for the
svstem of internal controls maintained by

the Group. The Audit Commirtee, acting on
behall’ of the Board, is responsible for regularly
reviewing their effectivencss. The Chairman

of the Audit Committee reports to the Board
on the Commiuee’s activides on a regular basis,

Each year the Board has a separate scssion
reviewing key risks and the actions being taken
to mitigate and manage them,

T'his year the Board has conducted a review of
the effectiveness of internal controls. We have
made a number of changes to make them more
robust and to improve the Board’s visibility of
the performance of the business. (More detailed
information on the Group’s internal controls is
comntained in the corporate governance report
on page 24.)

[ have established a Corporate Responsibility
Commitee. As part of its remit it is responsible
for ensuring compliance with our Code of
Ethics and investigates all issues in relation

to business conduct. We have introduced
confidenual “Speak Up lines covering 86% of
the business 10 enable employees to raise any
concerns or alleged breaches of the Code,
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The directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 30 September 2006.

Activities, results and future prospects

The Company is required to set out in this report a fair review of the
business of the Group during the financial year ended 30 September 2006
and of the position of the Group ar the end of that financial year and a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, The
information that fulfils these requirements can be found in the operations
review, the section below entided ‘Principal risks and uncertaintes’ and
the financial review which are incorparated in this report by reference.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Board has a pro-active approach o aisk management with the aim
of protecting its employees and customers and safeguarding the interests
of the Company and its shareholders.

Compass Group has specific policies in place to ensure that risks arc
properly evaluated and managed at the appropriate level with the
business. A risk assessment exercise is carried out across the Group
cach year and the outcome is reviewed by the Board bi-annually,

Oudined below is a summary of what the Board considers to be the
key risks and uncerwinties to successful delivery of its corporate
objectives and the activities the Group undertakes 1o mitigate against
these key risks and uncertainties:

Description
Food safety

Mitigating activities

— the Group has in place policies, processes and
training procedures to ensure compliance with
its legal obligations in relation to food hygiene
and safety.

our business model is strucuired so that we are not
reliant on one particular sector, geography or client.

Client retention -

People retemtion and motivation  — training and development programmes, succession
planning and performance management are
designed to align rewards with our corporute

ohjectives and to retain and motivate our best people,

Health, safety and environment = our Safcty, Health and Environment Forum (SHEF)
promotes policy; sets standareds and memitors
best practice and reports to the Corporate

Responsibility Commiuce.

10 reduce risk we are focusing on 1raceahility, clear
specification of oor requirements 1o nomtinated
suppliers and the improvement of purchasing
compliance by unit managers.

Purchasing -

Litigation = though we dn not operate in a litigious industry we
have in place palicies and processes in our major

countries to mitigate against third-party litigation.

the Group’s zero tolerance based Code of Ethics
governs all aspects of our relationship with our
stakeholders. The Corporate Responsibility
Committee investigates any alleged breaches,

Reputation -

Directors
Details of the directors of the Company are sct out on page 20.
Richard Cousins was appointed to the Board on 2 May 2006.

, Sir lan Robinson and Gary Green will be appointed to the Board with

ellect from 1 December 2006 and 1 January 2007 respectively. Each

" of Richard Cousins, Sir Ian Robinson and Gary Green will retire and

they offer themselves for election at the 2007 Annual General Meeting,
Andrew Martin retires from the Board by rotation and, heing cligible,
he offers himself for re-clection at the 2007 Annual General Meeting.
Peter Cawdron has decided not to seek re-clection and he will redire
from the Board at the conclusion of the 2007 Annual General Mecting
Sir Roy Gardner was appointed 1o the Board on 1 October 2005. Alain
Dupuis, Michael Bailey and Sir Francis Mackay ceased to be directors
of the Company on | October 2003, 31 May 2006 and 30 June 2006
respectively. Val Gooding will cease to be a director of the Company
with eflect from 31 December 2006.

Directors’ indemnities
As at the date of this report, indemnities are in force under which the
Company has agreed to indemnify the directors and the Company
Secretary, who is a director of certain subsidiary companies of the
Company, to the extent permitted by law and the Company’s articles
ol assoctation in respect of all losses artsing out of or in connection
with the execution of their powers, duties and responsibilities as a
director or officer of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

Directors' interests

Details of the interests of the directors holding office at the end of
the year in the ordinary share capital of the Company are set out

in the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 28 to 35. None of
the directors had any interests in the shares of any of the Company’s
subsidiarics at any time during the year. None of the directors had a
material interest in any contract of significance with the Company or
any of its subsidiary undertakings during the vear.

Dividends and results

A final dividend on the ordinary shares is proposed for the vear ended
30 Seprember 2006 of 6.7 pence per share which together with the
interim dividend paid on 7 August 2006 of 3.4 pence per share makes a
total for the period of 10.1 pence per share (2003: 9.8 pence per share).
Subject to the declaration of the final dividend at the 2007 Annual
General Mecting, the final dividend will be paid on 5 March 2007
sharcholders on the register at the close of business on 9 February 2007.
The: shares will be quoted ex-dividend from 7 February 2007,

Payments to suppliers

The Group’s policy and procedure which is internally rather than externally
set in relation to all its suppliers is to settle the terms of payment with
those suppliers when agreeing the terms of each transaction. The Group
will abide by those terms provided that it is satisficd that the supplier has
supplied the goods or services in accordance with the agreed terms and
conditions. "The number of days’ purchases outstanding for payment by
the Group as at 30 September 2006 was 35 days (2005: 57 days).

Disposal of assets

On 9 April 2006, the Company announced that it had entered into an
agreement 1o sell Select Service Partner, the travel concessions catering
business, including Creative Host Services in the US for an aggregate
cash consideration of £1.8 billion. The sale completed on 15 June 2006.

On 29 November 2006, the Company announced its decision 1o scll
Selecta, its European vending business.

Purchase of own shares

Following the disposal of Select Service Parter referred to above, the
directors have utilised the authority conferred by Special Resolution

14 passed at the Annual General Meeting held on 10 February 2006
to make market purchases of the Company’s ordinary shares. It was
announced on 9 April 2006 that approximately £500 million of

the Select Service Partner disposal proceeds would be returned wo
sharcholders by way ol an on-market share buy-back programme,
During the year 57.7 million ordinary shares of the Company were
purchased and cancelled for a consideration of £149 million and furcher
details are set out in note 23 to the financial statements on page 68.
Following the financial vear end, a further 31.3 million ordinary shares
were purchased and cancelled for a consideration of £86 million so
that as at 29 November 2006, a total of 89.0 million ordinary shares
of the Company had been purchased in the market and cancelled for
a consideraton of £233 million.

The directors intend 1o continue with the /500 million share buy-back
programme. It is anticipated that the share buy-back programme will
complete over the next 6 1o 12 months and accordingly resolution 13
sct out in the Notice of the Annual General Meeting relating to the
purchase by the Company of 1ts own shares will be proposed at the
2007 Annual General Meeting.
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Substantial shareholdings

As at 29 November 2006 the Company had received notification of
material interests in its issued ordinary share capital and American
Depositary Receipts (ADRs) from the [oltowing:

No. of shares  No. of ADRs % of issued

millions milliens capital

Franklin Resources, Inc. and its afliliates 324.0 - 15.0

Brandes hwestment Partners L.P 95.7 55.0 7.0
Legal & General Group ple

and 1ts subsidiaries 86.5 - 4.0

UBS AG 65.2 - 3.1

Harns Associates LB 64.1 - 3.0

Numbers of shares, ADRs and percentage interests are as at the notilication dates,

Political and charitable donations

Charitable donations [or the year amounted to £1,556,000. There were
no donations for political purposes but because the full extent of current
UK legislation in this area is uncertain, the directors will seck 1o renew
their authority to make such expenditure for a further year, Accordingly
resolution 10 set out in the Notice of Annual General Meeting will be
proposed on a precautionary hasis at the 2007 Annual General Meeting
to authorise such expenditure.

Employees

The Group is committed to an active policy of equal opportunity
from selection and recruitment, through training and development,
appraisal and promaotion 1o retirement. The policy promates an
environment free from discrimination, harassment and victimisation
where all emplovees can receive equal treatment regardless of gender,
colour, ethnic or national origin, disability, age, marital status, sexual
oriemtation or religion.

The policy gives full and fair consideration to the reeruitment of
disabled persons. Where disabled persons are employed their training
(including retraining for aliernative work for employees that become
disabled) and development for promotion are encouraged and assisted.
Expert advice is taken on the needs of disabled employees and special
equipment is provided where appropriate.

Group personnel policics ensure that all employees are made aware
on a regular basis of the Group’s policies, programmes and progress.
Extensive use is made of briefing meetings, in-house magazines, notice
hoards and other communications channels including Mercury, the
Group’s global intranet. Mercury facilitates the capturing and sharing
of information and knosledge and provides an important hok 10

the Group’s employees worldwide. The Company operates a range

of employee share schemes and they are described in the Directors’
remuneration report on pages 28 1o 33.

Environment

Information relating to the Group’s responsibilities towards the
environment is given on pages 12 to 13. The Group used Trucost FLC
1o identify the environmental impacts that the Board believes are
appropriate for an understanding of its performance. In Trucost PLCs
opinion, Compass Group PLC has now identified the material KPls
that it should report on in future annual reports in accordance with
Government guidelines.

Auditors
Zach of the directors at the date of approval of this report confirms that:
» 30 far as the director is aware, there is ne relevant audit information
of which the Company’s auditors are unaware; and
» the director bas taken all the sieps tha he/she ought to have (aken
as a director to make himself/herself aware of any relevant aucdit
information and 1o establish that the Company’s auditors are aware
of that mformation.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance
with the provisions of s234ZA of the Companics Act 1985.

In accordance with the recommendation of the Audit Commitiee as
disclosed on page 25 resolution 8, set out in the Notice ol the Annual
General Mecting relating ta the re-appoinument of’ Delottte & Touche
LLP as auditors ta the Company, will be proposed at the 2007 Annual
General Meeting,

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting will be held on Friday 16 February 2007
at 11.00am in the Fleming Room at the Queen Elizabeth 1T Conference
Centre, Broad Sanctuary, Westminster, London SWI1P SEE, The Notice
setting out details of the business to be considered at the mecting is

sent to sharcholders separately with this Annual Report.

By Order of the Board
Tim Mason
Company Secretary

20 November 2006
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Corporate governance

Compass Group is committed to the highest standards of corporate
governance and has complied throughout the year with the provisions
of Section | of the Combined Code (the *Code’). This statement
describes how the principles of corporate governance set out in the
Code have been applied within the Company during the year.

Board membership

The Board currently comprises a Chairman, five non-executive dircctors
and two executive directors. Subject to passing resolutions 4 to 7
inclusive at the 2007 Annual General Meeting, the Board will comprise

a Chairman, four non-executive directors and three executive directors.
Biographical details of the directors are given on page 20. All directors
Jjoining the Board are required to stand for election at the Annual General
Meecting following their appoinument and they are thereafier required

to offer themselves for re-election at least every three vears. The roles

of Chairman and Chief Executive are separate and clearly defined with
the division of responsibilities set out in writing and agreed by the Board.

Chairman

Sir Roy Gardner was appeinted o the Board on 1 October 2005 as

Senior Independent Director and he succeeded Sir Francis Mackay

as Chairman on 1 july 2006. The Chairman is primarily responsible
for the ellective functioning of the Board.

Chief Executive

Richard Cousins was appointed to the Board on 2 May 2006 and he
succeeded Michael Bailey as Chiel Executive on 1 June 2006. Richard
Cousins will stand for election at the 2007 Annual General Meeting,
The Chiel’ Executive is responsible for operating the business and
implementing the Board’s strategies and policies,

Senior Independent Director

Peter Cawdron was Sentor Independent Director prior to Sir Roy
Gardner’s appoinunent to that position on 1 October 2005 and {ollowing
Sir Roy Gardner’s appeintment as Chairman on | July 2006, Peter
Cawdron recombined the role of Senior Independent Director with his
retained role as Deputy Chairman. The responsibilities of the Senior
Independent Director include being available 1o sharcholders should they
have any concerns that contact through the usual channels has failed to
resolve or for which such contact is inappropriate and ensuring that the
performance evaluation of the Chairman is conducted effectively:

Independent non-executive directors

During the year, the Board considered the independence of the non-
executive directors in relation to the Code and determined that each

was independent including Peter Cawdron in spite of htm having served
a period exceeding nine years. The Board concluded that Peter Cawdren
continued 1o perform effectively and demonsirated the objectivity and
commitment necessary to the role of independent non-executive director.
Peter Cawdron was resclected at the 2006 Annual General Meeating for

a period of up 1o ene year only and he will retire from the Board at the
conclusion of the 2007 Annual General Mecting,

Company Secretary

Tim Mason is the Company Secretary and he is responsible for
advising the Board, through the Chairman, on all governance matters,
The directors have access (o the advice and services of the Company
Sceretary. The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary
is a matter for the Board.

Role of the Board

The role of the Board is to promote the success of the Company and
provide leadership within a framework of prudent and eflective conwals
that enable nisk to be assessed and managed. “To enable the Board to
perform its duties eflectively all directors have full access 1o all relevant
information. There is an agreed procedure whereby directors wishing o
take independent advice in the furtherance of their duties may do so at

the Company’s expense and relevant insurance cover has been arranged
in relation to legal action against the directors. The Board sets strategic
aims and ensures that adequate financial and human resources arc made
available to enable these objectves to be met and undertakes reviews of
management performance. In addition, the Board sets the Company’s
values and standards and ensures that it acts ethically and that its
obligations 1o its sharcholders and other stakeholders are understood and
met. The Board has a formal schedule of matters reserved for its decision,
including the approval of overall strategy and objectives, acquisition and
divestment plans, treasury paolicy, major capital expenditure, dividend
strategy; financial statements and senior executive succession planning,
The schedule of matters reserved for the Board is available for viewing
on the Compam’s website.

Board and committee meetings

The Board is scheduled to meet nine times and to hold a one-dav strategy
review gach year. The Board may also meet at other dmes as and when
required. During the vear, the Board met 11 times and held a one-day
strategy review in September 2006. Individual attendance at those
meetings and at committee meetings of the Board is set out in the table
helow. Where n/a appears in the table the relevant director is not a
committee member,

Strategy Audit  Nomination Remuneration
Name - Board Review Committee Committee Commitiee
Sir Rov Gardner 8 1 n/a 0 4
Richard Cousins* + 1 n/a n/a n/a
Peter Blackburn 11 1 6 1 n/a
Peter Cawdron 11 | n/a | 5
‘al Gooding 4 1 n/a 1 3
Sven Kado 11 1 6 n/a 3
Steve Lucas 10 1 6 n/a 5
Andrew Martn 11 1 n/a n/a n/a
Alain Dupuist 0 0 n/a n/a n/a
Michael Baileyt 8 0 n/a n/a n/a
Sir Francis Mackayt 8 0 n/a 1 n/a
Number of mectings
during the year _ 1 1 6 1 5

* Richared Cousins has attended all Board mectings since his appointment as a director
an 2 May 2006,

T Aduin Dupuis, Michael Bailey and Sir Francis Mackay resigned as directors on
L Orctober 2005, 31 May 2006 and 30 June 2006 respectively.

Throughout the vear, the non-executive directors including the Chairman
met independently of their execuative colleagues on a regular basis.

Board evaluation

During the yvear, the Board conducted a formal evaluation of its own
performance by means of a written questionmaire and for the second
successive year, the Institute of Chartered Sceretaries and Administrators
undertook an evaluaton of the collective effectiveness of each of the
Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees. The evaluations
covered arcas including the composition of the Board and its committees,
information needs, decision-making processes, agendas, training and
continuing professional development. The results of these evaluations
were diseussed by the Roard and used ta consider opportunities for
improvement. A performance evaluation of each of the directors was
conducted by the Chairman in one-to-one meetings and the non-
exccutive directors led by Peter Gawdron, conducted a performance
evaluation of the Chairman.

Training and development

Appropriate traming is available 1o all directors on appointment and

o an on-going basis as required. The directors’ undersianding of the
business is developed further by a combinaton of visits to sites in the
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UK and in overseas countries, presentations from local managements
and the opportunity to meet with the Company’s principal stakeholders
and advisers.

Board committees

The Company Sccretary acts as secretary to all Board committees and
minutes of mceetings are circulated 1o all Board members. The terms of
reference of these commitiees are available for viewing on the Company’s
wehsite and are described below.

Executive Committee

The Exccutive Committee comprises the Chairman, the executive
directors and key senior managers, The Committee meets monthly
and it is responsibie for implementing Group policy, day o day
management, monitoring business performance and reporting on
these areas to the Board.

General Business Committee

Certain routine administrative matiers have been delegated to the
General Business Committee which comprises all the executive directors
and meets as required w conduct the Company’s business within the
clearly defined limits set by the Board and subject 1o those matters
reserved for the Board,

Audit Committee

The Audit Committes comprises Peter Blackburn, Sven Kado and is
chaired by Steve Lucas who is considered by the Board to have significant
recent and relevant financial experience.

Summary terms of reference

» Financial reporting — provide support to the Board by monitoring

the integrity of and ensuring that the published linanciat statements and
any formal announcements relating to the Company’s financial
performance comply fully with relevant statutes and accounting
standards.

Internal controls and risk management — review the cffectiveness of
the Company’s internal financial controls and risk management systems.
Internal audit — monitor and review the annual internal audit
programme ensuring that the internal audit function is adequanely
resourced and free from management restrictions, review and

monitor responses to the findings and recomunendations of the

internal auditors.

External audit — 1o recommend to the Board for approval by
sharcholders in general mecting the appoinument, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditors. To meet regularly with the external
auditors, to review the scope and results of the annual audit and its cost
effectiveness and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditors. To satisfy itself that there are no relationships
betwveen the auditors and the Company (other than in the ordinary
course of business). To agree a policy on the emplovment of former
emplovees of the auditors and momitor the implementation of such
policy. To monitor the external auditors’ compliance with relevant
ethical and professional guidance on rotation of audit partners and
matters relating to fee incoitie and regulatary requirements generally.
To review annually and monitor the external auditors” objectivity and
independence, expertise and resources and the effectiveness of the
audit process. To review the management's response to the findings
and recommendations of the exiernal auditors. To develop and
implement a policy on the engagement of the external auditors

to supply non-audit services,

Employee concerns — the Commitice reviews the Company’s
arrangements under which employees may in confidence raise

any concerns regarding possible wrongdoing in linancial reporting

or other matters. 'T'he Committee ensures that these arrangemaents
allow proportionate and independent investigation and appropriate
follow-up action.

Policy on non-audit services

Deloitte & Touche LLP in its capacity as the Company’s external
auditors, undertakes work that it is obliged or, in the view of the
Committee, is best placed to perform. Such work includes tax-related
services, formalities relating 1o financing facilities, sharcholder circulars,
regulatory matters and work in respect of acquisitions, mergers and
disposals. Nevertheless, to provide safeguards against the objectivity
and independence of the external anditors’ being compromised, the
Committee has agreed that, unless there is no other competent and
available provider, the external auditors should be excluded from
providing the Company with general consalancy and all other
non-audit and non-tax-related services.

External auditors

Following the annual review referred to abeove, the Commiuce

confirms that it is entirely satisfied with the level of fees, objectivity and
independence, expertise and resources and the effectiveness generally

of Deloitte & Touche LLP. Accordingly a resolution {resolution 8 set owt
in the Notice) for the reappointment of Deloitte &Touche LLP as auditors
to the Company will be proposed at the 2007 Annual General Mecting,

Nomination Committee

During the year, the Nomination Committee comprised the following
members: Sir Roy Gardner (Chairman}, Sir Francis Mackay {(until

30 June 2006), Peter Blackburn, Peter Cawdron and Val Gooding,

Summary terms of reference

*» To carry out a formal selection process of candidates and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and reappointment
of executive and non-executive directors for the purpose of ensuring

a balanced Board in respect of skills, knowledge and experience.

To make recommendations to the Board in relation o the suitability

of candidates for the role of Senior Independent Director and
membership of the Audit and Remuneration Committees. The
appointment and removal of directors and the recommendation

of the positions of Chairman and Chief’ Exccutive are matters reserved
for the full Board.

To remain fully informed about strategic issues and commercial manters

affecting the Company and to keep under review the leadership needs of

the organisation to enable it to compete effectively in the markeiplace.

The Commiitiee meets as required and met during the year to consider
the appointment of a new Chief Executive to replace Michael Bailey,
whose intention to step down as Chicf Executive had been anncunced
in September 2003, External consultants were engaged in the search and
selection procedure of a suitable candidate leading to the appointment
of Richard Cousins on 2 May 2006. Richard Cousins duly succeeded
Michael Bailey as Chief Fxecutive on 1 June 2006. Following the year
end the Commiitee, with the assistance of external consultants,
recommended to the Board the appointment of Sir Ian Rohinson as a
non-executive director and Gary Green as an exccutive director. These
recommendations were accepted and Sir Ian Robinson and Gary Green
will be appointed to the Board with effect from 1 December 2006 and

| January 2007 respectively. Sir Ian Robinson will undergo a customised
induction process. In accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association, Richard Cousins, Sir Ian Robinson and Gary Green will
seck election at the 2007 Annual General Meeting (resolutions 4, 5 and
6 respectively set out in the Notice).

Remuneration Committee
The Dircctors’ remuneration report is set out on pages 28 1w 35,

Corporate Responsibility Committee

The Committee comprises Sir Roy Gardner (Chairman),

Richard Causing, Andrew Martin, Steve Lucas, the Company
Secretary, Director of Human Resources and Director of Corporate
Policy & Communications.
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The Committee’s primary responsibilitics include; overseeing the
production of an annual Corporate Responsibility Report, Health,
Salety and Environmental practices, business conduct, the promotion
of employee engagement and diversity and community investment.

Disclosure Committee

The Disclosure Committee comprises the Finance Director, the
Company Secretary and certain senior managers. The Committee meets
as required to deal with all matters concerning public announcements
of the Company and the Company’s abligations under the Listing Rules
and Disclosure Rules of the UK Listing Authority.

Relations with shareholders
Compass Group reports formally o shareholders twice a year, with the
interim results announced normally in May and the preliminary final

resufts announced noermally in late November/ carly December. The Chief

Exccutive and the Finance Director give presentations of these results to
the Company’s institutional investors, analysts and the media in London
and other locations, These presentations may also be accessed on the
Company’s website www.compass-group.com. The Chiel Executive and
the Finance Director maintain a close dialogue with institutional investors
on the Company’s performance, governance, plans and objectives through
a programme of regular meetings. These meetings also serve w develop
an on-going understanding of the views and any concerns of the
Company’s major shareholders and arc reported regularly to the Board.
The Board also receives the views of its major sharcholders through the
publicaton of periodic reports and surveys by sector analysts and brokers.
The Chairman, the Senior [ndependent Dircetor and the other non-
executive directors are available to meet with major shareholders on
request and the Chairman will at such meetings engage in discussions
relating to matters of governance and strategy as appropriate.

The Annual General Meeting is considered by the Board to be a primary
opportunity to communicate directly with the Company’s many private
sharcholders. The meeting is held normally in February in London and
is attended, other than in cxceptional circumstances, by all members of
the Board. In addition to the formal business of the mecting, there is
normally a wrading update and shareholders are invited to ask questions
at the meeting itself and are given the opportunity to meet the directors
informally afterwards. Notice of the Annual General Meeting together
with any related documents are mailed to sharcholders at least 20 working
days before the meeting and separate resotutions are proposed on each
substantially separate issue, The level of proxy vates cast and the halance
for and against each resolution together with the level of votes withheld,
if any, are announced to the meeting following voting by a show of hands
and arc made available on the Company’s website. The Company has a
dedicated Investor Relations Department at its head office in Chertsey
serving as a primary point for contact with investors throughout the year.

Internal control

The Company, as required by the UK Financial Services Authority, has
complied with the Combined Code provisions set out in Section | of the
Code on internal control having established the procedures necessary to
implenent the guidance on internal control issued by the Turnbull
Committee and by reporting in accordance with that guidance.

In applying the principle that the Board should maintain a sound system
of conitrol to safeguard sharcholders’ investment and the Compamy's
assets, the Board recognises that it has overall responsibility for cnsuring
that the Group maintains a systemn of internal control to provide
reasonable assurance regarding effective and efficient operations, internal
control and compliance with laws and regulations. It recognises that such
a system can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatcment or loss.

Formal risk management procedures have been in place throughout the

year and those procedures involve on-going analysis, evaluation and

management of the key risks 1o the Group. The Group’s system of

internal control, including the mechanism by which the directors

routinely review the effectiveness of the system of internal control

and risk management, includes the following:

= regular meetings of the Board, Executive and Audit Committees,

the responsibilities of which are set out above;

semi-annual reviews hy the Executive Committee of detailed

risk management reports prepared by the operating businesses,

Such reports cover key risks and include updates of agreed actions

arising from previously reviewed semi-annual reports. The Executive

Commitee prescits its own detailed risk management report 1o the

Board twice a year;

* a process renewed each vear with the Board and the Exccutive

Committee meeting o approve short-lerm and medium-term

strategies followed by regular reviews throughout the year;

approval and regular reviews of annual budgets;

monthly reviews by the Exccutive Committee of key financial

and non-financial business performance indicators of the Group’s

operating businesses;

strict internal financial controls covering capital expenditure — together

with post-investment performance reviews — and treasury operations;

clearly defined organisation structures and appropriate delegated

authorities for executives throughout the Group;

+ Group-wide pelicies, standards and procedures relating to key
husiness activities;

* regular consideration of Corporate Respensibility matters; and

* periodic reports and recommendatons of the infernal audit function.

.

The directors confirm that they have conducted a specific annual review
of the cffeetiveness of the Group’s system of internal control and risk
management in operation during the period up to the date of this
annual report.
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The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the
financial statements, The directors are required to prepare financial
statements for the Group in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS). Company law requires the directors to
prepare such financial statements in accordance with IFRS, the
Companies Act 1983 and Arucle 4 of the IAS Regulation.

International Accounting Standard 1 requires that financial statements
present fairly for each financial year the Group’s financial position,
financial performance and cash flows. This requires the faithful
representation of the effects of transactions, other events and conditions
in accordance with the deftnitions and recognition criteria for assets,
liahilities, income and expenscs sct out in the International Accounting
Standurds Board’s ‘Framework for the preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements’. In virtually all circumstances, a fair presentation
will be achieved by compliance with all applicable International
Financial Reporting Standards. Directors are also required to:
» properdy select and apply accounting policies;
» present information, including accounting policies, in a manner
that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable
information;
* provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific
requirements in IFRS is insutlicient 1o enable users to understand
the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions
on the entity’s financial position and financial performance; and
* prepare the accounts on a going concern basis unless, having assessed
the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, management
either intends to liquidate the entity or to cease trading, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors arc responsible for keeping proper accounting records
which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the company, for safeguarding the assets, for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities and for the preparation of a directors’ report and directors’
remuneration report which comply with the requirements of the
Companies Act 1985,

‘T'he directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of
the Compass Group PLC website. Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements
may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Dear shareholder

This report summarises the remuneration policy that has been applied
for the year ended 30 September 2006 as well as the rernuneration
policy for the year ending 30 September 2007 and the intended policy
thereafter. Remuneration packages have been designed in order to
encourage and reward the executive management team in its delivery
of financial targets, improved performance and value creation.

Information regarding each director’s remuneration, incentive and
pension scheme participation is detailed within the report.

We will continue to maintain an active dialogue with our shareholders
in relation to any proposed changes to our remuneration strategy.

The Board has approved this report and shareholders will be asked
to do so at the Annual General Meeting on 16 February 2007,

Peter Cawdron
Chairman of the Remuneration Commitiee

29 November 2006

Remuneration Committee

During the year, the Committee was comprised entirely of the following
independent non-cxecutive directors: Peter Cawdron, Val Gooding, Sven
Kado and Steve Lucas. Sir Roy Gardner also served on the Commitice
during the year, and remained on the Committee following his transition
from non-executive director to non-executive Chairman. Biographical
details of all the Committee members are set out on page 20. During
the year, the Committee met on five occasions. Attendance details are
shown on page 24.

The role of the Committee is w0 determine the total remuneration of

the Chairman, executive directors and certain other senior executives of

the Group. Its terms of reference are set out on the Company’s website,

www.compass-group.com. Its key responsibilides arc:

* 1o design specific remuneration packages which include salanes, bonuses,
incentive payments, pension rights and benefits;

* to review executive directors’ service agreements;

* to ensure that failure is not rewarded and that steps are always
taken to mitigate loss on termination, within contraciual obligations;

* to review remuneration trends across the Group; and

* to approve the terms of and recommend grants under the Group’s
incentive plans.

Advisors

The Commictee receives advice from external consultants in order
to enable it to fulfil its obligations, During the year, KPMG LLP and
The Hay Group have provided advice on the design of incentive
arrangements, job evalualion and remuneration levels against thosc
of comparator companies.

In addition to providing advice to the Committee, KPMG LLP has
provided transaction and audit services and The Hay Group has provided
advice 10 the Company en general human resource and compensation
related matters, including job evaluation and competency development.
External advice has also been received from Freshfields Bruckhaus
Deeringer in its capacity as legal advisor to the Company, and from
Mercer which provides advice in relation to executive directors’ pensions
and actuarial advice generally.

Certain senior executives have also provided assistance to the Committee
and have been invited to attend Committee mectings on an ad hoc basis.
T'he Group Reward Director, David Walker, has provided advice on an
on-going basis and the Committee also consulted with Richard Cousins
{Chicf Executive) on the remuneration of exccutives reporting to him,

Policy

The aims of the remuneration pelicy are that:

« the components of the Company’s remuncration package continue
to be aligned to the business strategy;

= there is a proper halance between the fixed and variable, and
long-term and short-term components of the remuneration package;

» the various targets for determining performance-related compensation
are linked to the Company’s key business drivers and objectves, and are
easity measurable and regularly reviewed;

» the incentives are easily understood and accepted by shareholders
and senior executives; and

* the Company’s remuneration policy and its various components
are in line with best practice in the market,

In determining the overall remuncration framework, the Committec
maintains an actve dialogue with sharcholder representatives and
continually monitors developments in hest practice.

Components of executive directors’ remuneration

The total reward package is structured into short-term and
long-term incentives, and into a division of fixed remuneration
and performance-related elements.

Fixed remuneration is paid by way of salary and benefits, with the
performance-related element dependent upon achievernent of a scries

of targets. IF minimum argets are not met, no performance-related
remuncralion (as defined below) is payable. On the basis of achievement
of ‘par’ performance, the balance between fixed and performance-related
pay is 47:33; this increases e 25:75 for achievement of maximum targets.

Further details of each individual clement of the remuneration package
are given below.

Base salary

Base salaries are rigorously benchmarked, and reflect role, job size,
individual performance and cffectiveness. They are subject to annual
review cach December, with any increases taking effect on 1 January.

Annual performance-related award

Payment of an annual bonus is based on the achicvement of performance
targets set by the Commiitee. The level of bonus is designed o encourage
performance in a manner that the Committee considers most contributes

to increasing shareholder value and meeting corporate objectives.

The bonus award is made up of basic and enhanced elements:

+ an annual opportunity of up to 75% of base salary based on the
attainment of results against set targets (‘par performance’);

+ a further opportunity of up to a maximum of 75% of base salary
for overachievement of targets (‘maximum performance’).

Performance targets arc determined at the start of each financial year.
For the year ended 30 Scptember 2006, the bonus oppoertunity was
based on the following key Group measures:

+ profit before interest and tax (PBITY (30%);

« free cash flow (as defined on page 15) (FCF) (30%); and

* revenue growth (20%).

A supplementary condition was imposed whereby no bonus would
be payable unless the Group’s minimum PBIT target was achicved.

The Remuneration Committee determined that the resulis of the SSP
business would be excluded from the bonus calculations following its
sale on 15 June 2006.

The amount of bonus paid to each director is shown in the table on
page 32, reflecting the maximum achievement of targets for FCF and
revenue growth, and achicvement between par and maximum for PBI'T
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The honus opporunity for executive directors lor the year ending
30 Scprember 2007 will be based on the following argets:

= profit before interest and tax (PBIT) (60%);

* free cash [low (FCT) (20%); and

* personal target (PT) (20%%),

A supplementary condition has been imposed whereby the amount of
FCI and PT bonus payable will be halved unless the Group’s minimum
PBIT target is achicved,

Long-Term Incentive Plan {LTIF}

The objectives of the LTIP are to align the interests of executives with
those of sharcholders by making a significant part of remuneration
dependent on the success of management in delivering superior returns
to sharcholders, whilst ensuring that the total remuneration package

is sufliciently compettive in the relevant markets to attract and retain
high-calibre exceontives.

Following consulumion with and approval by shareholders, the LTIP
has been the primary form of equity-based incentive for the year ended
30 September 2006 and this will continue to be our policy in the vear
ending 30 Sepetember 2007, As exceutive directors will not normally be
granted share options (see below), the potential reward under the LTIP
was increased during 20006,

Under the LTIP, exccuiive directors may receive a conditional award
of shares which ntay vest alier a three-year performance period, based
on performance conditions being met. With effect from 2006, awards
are normally granted at an annual maximum of 150% of base salary;,
with 200% being reserved for exceptional circumstances. 50% of any
LTTP award is based on the Group’s FCF and 50% of any award on
the Group’s Total Sharchelder Return performance (TSR). The FCF
element focuses executives on the free cash flow ohjective of husiness
strategy and the TSR clement on share price and dividend growth.

FCF portion

50% of any LTIP award is based on the Group’s FCF over a three-year
performance periud. The precise FCF rarget for cach award is linked

to the Group’s wider business targets, and is siretching and set by the
Remuneration Committee at the time of award based on Group
projections and market expectations. No shares are released unless the
Group achieves thresheld performance, 25% of the portion of the award
vests on the achievement of threshald performance. Awards vest on a
straight-line basis between 25% and 100% where FCF is between
threshold performance and the outperformance target.

For awards made in the year ended 30 Scptember 2006, the threshold
and outperformance targets were £8235 million and £900 million
respectively, For awards to be made in the year ending 30 September
2007, the Committee has determined that threshold performance will
be £950 millien and outperformance will be £1,050 million.

TSR portion

The renmaining 30% of any award will depend upon growth in the
Group’s TSR relative to the FTSE 100 companies (determined at the
outset) over a three-year performance period. TSR is the aggregate

of share price growth and dividends paid (assuming reinvestment of
those dividends in Compass Group shares during the three-year period).
100% of the award will vest if TSR performance is in the top quartile
and 25% of the award will vest of performance is at the median.

Where performance is between the median and top quartile, awards
will vest an a straight-line basis between the 25% and 100% applicable
to median and top quartile performances. No shares will be released if
the Group’s TSR performance is below the median,

For awards made since 2004, there is no retesting facility. In addition,
far awards made in the year ended 30 September 2006 and subsequent
years, any vesting of an award at the end of the performance period is

conditional on the Remuneration Committee being satisfied that the
underlying financial performance of the Group justifies such vesting,

The Commitiee considers FCF and TSR to be appropriate measures

for awards under the LTIP. FCF focuses on a key business target for the
Group, while the use of TSR aligns the interests of executives with those
of sharcholders. TSR calculations are periodically undertaken by an
external party, Alithos Lid, and FCF measurements are subject 1o
independent audit,

Other share plans

Matching Shares Plan (MSP}

Under the honus matching shares plan, directors are permitted o invest
up to 50%: of any pre-tax performance related basic and enhanced bonus
in Compass Group shares, H the shares are held for three years and the
director continues 10 b employed by the Group, the director may receive
a proportion of Matching Shares based on the Group achieving
uncerlying EPS average growth over the period.

50% of Matching Shares may be awarded if underlying EPS growth is
an average of RP1 +4% per annum, and 100% may be awarded at an
average of RPI +8% per annum. Any growth between 4% and 8% is
awarded on a straighu line basis. There 1s no performance retest facility.
EPS as defined for this purpose excludes goodwill impairment and
exceptional items, discontinued activites and currency translation, and
this definition is considered a suitable measure of underlying financial
and operational performance. "I'he Committee has the right to vary this
performance target for future grants provided that, in its reasonable
Judgment, the new target is no less challenging in the light of the
Group’s business circumstances and internal forecasts.

For the year ended 30 September 2006, executive directors elected not
to take up the opportunity to invest part of their bonus entitlement in
the MSP. For the year ending 30 September 2007, the Committee has
decided not to make the MSP available to directors and executives.

Share Option Plan (SOP)

In the year ended 30 September 2006, no executive directors were
granted options under the SOP in light of the Committee’s policy

of using the LTIP as the primary long-term equity related incentive.
It is not intended to make future grants of options to executive dircctors,
other than in exeeptional circumstances (which would be fully explained
to sharcholders ac the tine),

Under the SOP, options may he granted up to an annual maximum
of 200% of hasic salary, at an exercise price not lower than the market
alue of the Company’s shares on the day prior to grant. They may
normally be exercised between the third and tenth anniversaries of the
dute of grant after which they will lapse.

Options are excrcisable on a sliding scale, subject to satisfaction of an
EPS performance condition. For grants made since February 2005, 30%
of options are exercisable it EPS growth over the three-vear performance
period is at least an average of RPI + 4% per annum. 100% of options
will vest at RP@ + 8% per annum. Options are exercisable on a straight-
line basis between these two points.

The SOP was amended during the year by the removal of the retesting
facility. The early exercise provisions were also amended so that, where
an individual is a ‘good” leaver, his opuens will continue, subject to

the performance conditions, as i the optionholder had not ceased
employment. Only when the performance target is tested will the
option becotne exercisable to the extent that the target is met, and any
entitlement will be time pro-rated. The exercise period for good leavers
under luture option grants will therefore become the six month period
from the third anniversary of the date of grant.
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In circumstances of a change of control of the Campany, the
performance conditions apply. In this event, options are only exercisable
to the extent that the performance conditions are satsfied over the period
to the change of control and will be further scaled down pro-rata w the
length of time since they were granted.

Further minor amendments have been made to the rules 10 take
account of the Employment Equality (Age) Regulations 2006
(the Age Regulations).

Management Share Option Plan (MSOF)
For executives below executive director level, the Company currently
operates the MSOP. Options are granted at no lower than the market
price on the day prior to grant. They may normally be exercised between
the third and tenth anniversaries of the date of grant after which they

. will lapse,

" A performance target geared o the Company’s key business measure

was introduced into the MSOP during the vear with the approval of
sharcholders so that options may only be exercisable subject 10 meeting

t a FCF rarget, determined by the Committce at the time of grant. For
options granted in the vear ended 30 September 2006, the target was

. the achievement of a FCF target of £825m in the three-year period from
1 October 2005 to 30 Scptember 2008. There is no retesting facility:

In the year ended 30 September 2006, approximately 700 employees
received option grants under the MSOQP.

During the year ended 30 Sepiember 2006, the same amendments that
were made o the SOP were introduced to the MSOP in relation to
retention of performance conditions for leavers and to take account

of the Age Regulaions.

Savings-related share option scheme

Executive directors may participate in the Company’s all-crnployec

share plans on the same basis as other employees. Details of the Scheme
are sct out in note 25 o the financial statements. No grants were made
during the year ended 30 September 2006.

Shareholding policy

In order that their interests are aligned with those of sharcholders,
executive directors are expected to build up and maintain a personal
sharcholding in the Company of at least 100% of base salary. New
directors will undertake to build up their sharcholding within four years
of their appointment.

Retiremeant benefits

The Group’s policy is not o offer defined benelit arrangements o new
emplovees at any level. Incoming exceutive directors are invited either
to join the Company’s contracted-in money purchase arrangement or to
take a fixed salary supplerment.

At 30 September 2006, there are no executive directors participating in
any Compass Group defined benefin pension arrangements. Richard
Cousins elected to receive a 35% salary supplement in licu of pension.

In the light of the A Day pension legislation, Andrew Martin alse took
up the 35% salary supplement election with effect from 6 April 2006,
He gave up all rights to his final salary pension, money purchase pension
and unfunded unapproved pension with effect from 15 March 2004 and
ceased to accrue any pension in relation to his employment from this
date (save for that which he had built up during his earlier employment

+ with Ferte ple, Granada Group ple and Compass Group PLC between
June 1994 and September 2001). In connection with these revised
arrangements, he recetved a payment of £338,895 in respect of his
accrued pension scheme and unfunded pension benelits in relation

to the period from 15 March 2004 to 31 March 2006, and a payment

of £168,450 in respect of his accrued money purchase pension for
such penod.

Andrew Martin’s pension promises, built up in respeet of his earlier
period of service with Granada and Torte on both a funded and unfunded
bagis, are deferred pensions pavable from age 60 which, revalued at

30 September 2006, amount 10 £25,694 per annum and £27.523 per

annum respectively:

Sir Francis Mackay retired as a director on 30 June 2006, but (as indicated
in the 2005 Directors’ remuneration repor) ceased (o accrue pension
benefits from 1 October 2005.

Michael Bailey reured as a director on 31 May 2006, and hecame entitled
to accrued pension benefits (comprising an unfunded pension promise

1o provide for a level of benefits broadly similar 1o that applying to UK
executive directors in the Executive Section of the UK Pension Plan).
The capital value of these pension henefits was 15,053,000 (equalling
the transfer valuc of his accrued pension benefits as at 30 September
2005). He was entitled 10 these pension benefits in lump sum form on
retirement. Of this total amount, £1,991,302 has been paid to him in
respect of the US element of this pension. The balance of 13,061,698

accrues a market rate of interest pending payment to him.

Chairman

The fee for the Chairman is set by the Committee. The Chairman is not
cligible for pension scheme membership, bonus or incentive arrangements.
He is entitled to the provision of life and medical insurance for himsell
and his spouse, financial planning assistance and a fully expensed car.

Non-executive directors

The fee for the non-executive directors during the year ended

30 September 2006 was 50,000 per annum, adjusted where directors
held additional responsibilities. Details of the fees paid 1o the non-
exccutive directors for the year ended 30 September 2006 arc set out on
page 32. The base fee has been thoroughly reviewed and benchmarked
by the executive members of the Board and increased to (60,000 per
annum with effeet from 1 October 2006. Non-executive directors are
not eligible for pension scheme membership, bonus, share options or
other incentive arrangernents.

Non-executive directors have letters of engagement. They are appointed
for an initial period of three years, afier which the appoinument is
rencwable at three-year inervals by mutual consent. Details of their
appointments, which are terminable without compensation, are set out
in the table below.

Total iength

of service at

Original date of Letter of 30 September

Non-executive director appoiniment engagement 2006
Sir Roy Gardner 1 October 2005 15 September 2005 1 year
Peter Cawdron 3 November 1993 27 October 1993 12 yrs,
{rev. 31 March 2004) 10 mths

Peter Blackburn 10 April 2002 16 May 2002 4 yrs,
(rev. 31 March 2004) 5 mths

Val Gooding 4 January 2000 1 January 2000 6 yrs,
(rev. 31 March 2004) 8 mths

Sven Kade 10 April 2002 10 April 2002 4 yrs,
(rev: 31 March 2004) 5 mths

Steve Lucas 7 July 2004 17 June 2004 2 yrs,
2 mths
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Service contracts

The executive directors have rolling service contracts with the Company. Their terms are set out below:

Contract term

Richard Cousins

Andrew Martin

Date

23 March 2006

4 Mav 2005

Notice period

Terminable by the exceutive giving one vear’s written
notice or by the Company giving 24 months’ written
notice, recucing to 12 months’ notice on 1 May 2007,
heing 12 months loltowing his appoinument.

Terminable by the executive giving six months’ written
notice or by the Company giving one year’s written notice,

Early termination

The Company has discretion to terminate the executive's
employment by paving the exceutive a lump sum in licu
of any period of notice equating to:
a) his basic salary;
b} his salary supplement in licu of pension;
¢) his benefits o at the Company’s discretion,

an amount of 10% of salary;

d) a bonus equivalem to 75% of salary.

The Company has discretion to terminate the exceutive’s
employment by paving the executive an amount in lieu
of any period of notice, equating to:

a) his basic salary;
b) his salary supplement in lieu of pension;

¢} his benefits or, at the Company’s discretion,
an amount of 10% of salary;

d) a bonus equivalent to 75% of salarv.

Mitigation

Legally appropriate mitigation laciors would be taken into account in determining anv compensation which mav be
pavable on terminaton. Mitigation will depend on whether the early termination clause above is invoked.

Change of control

There is no ability 1o trigger termination by the exceutive in these circumstances,

Cessation

Employment will in any event automatically cease at age 65 or such other age as may be determined as the retirement
age for exccutive directors. This is subject o the Age Regulations.

External appointments

With the Board’s agreement, executive dircetors may take up one noi-executive directorship and may retain any fees.

Directors’ interests in the shares of Compass Group PLC
The interests, as defined by the Companies Act 1985, of the directors, their spouses or civil partners and minor children in the ordinary shares of
10p each of the Company were as follows:

30 Sep 2005

(or date of

30 Sep 2006 appt if later}

Sir Roy Gardner 100,000 -
Richard Cousins 100,000 -
Peter Blackburn 5,000 5,000
Peter Cawdron 24,200 24,200
Vat Gooding 5,502 5,001
Sven Kado 12,500 12,500
Steve Lucas - -
Andrew Martin 110,027 30,027

There were no changes in the interests of the direetors, their spouses or civil partners and minor children berween 30 September 2006 and

29 November 2006,

The Company’s Register of Directors’ Interests is available for inspeeton at the Company’s registered office,
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Directors’ emoluments

The aggregate remuneration of the individual directors of Compass Group PLC for the vear ended 30 September 2006 was as follows:

Salary per*mn’:'?g:'?:::j Termination
. Salary/fee  supplement! Bepefits related bonus payments 2006 2005

Name of director 2000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 000
Directors in service at 30 September 2006
Executive

" Richard Cousins (appointed 1 May 2006) 313 109 11 398 - 831 -
Andrew Marun 461 83 79 606 - 1,229 472
Non-executive

~ Sir Roy Gardner (appointed | Oct 2003) 163 - 25 - - 188 -
Peter Blackburn 50 - - - - 50 50
Peter Cawdron 90 - - - 90 90
Val Gooding 50 - - - - 50 50
Sven Kado? 53 - - - - 53 53
Steve Lucas 65 - - - - 65 59
Directors who left during the year
Alichael Bailey (retired 31 May 2006 651 - 110 830 - 1,591 1,098
Alain Dupuis (resigned 1 Oct 2005)* - - - - 430 430 462
Sir Francis Mackay (retired 30 Jun 2006} 225 - 36 - - 261 5406
Directors who left during the previous year - - - - - - 1,703
Total 2,121 192 261 1,834 430 4,838 4,585

[

! Supplement of 35% of salary paid in monthly instalments in liew of pension participation.
2 The figure shown for Sven Kado for each of 2005 and 2006 includes a fee of €4,000 in respect of his non-executive directorship of Compass Group Dewtschland GmbH.
3 Highest paid director. Michael Bailey wias paic no compensation on cessation of his employment. He was permitted to receive his bonus for the year ended 30 September 2006 prosrated

to his period of employment dunyg the year.

4 Alain Duopuis resigned from the Buard on 1 Ocwoher 2005 and lelt the Group on 31 July 2006 (sce page 35).

3 Sir Francis Mackay was paid no compensation on cessation of his employment.

The directors who left during the year ended 30 September 2005 were Andrew Lynch, Clive Grundy and Denis Cassidy (see page 35 for details of payments made to Andrew Lynch during 2006).

Directors’ pension benefits

Real increase Increase  Accumulated Transfer value Transfer value

in accrued inaccrued  total accrued of accrued of accrued
pension for pension pension at pension at pension at Amount of
i Age at the year during year 30 Sep 2006 30 Sep 2006 30 Sep 2005 Contributions A-B-C
Name of director 30 Sep 2006 £000 £000 £000 £000 (&) £000 (B) £000 {C} £000
Michael Bailey! (retired 31 May 2006) 57 - - 648 13,062 15,053 - (1,991
Alain Dupuis? {resigned 1 October 2005) 62 - - - - 3,363 - (3.364)
Sir Francis Mackay3 (retiree 30 June 2006) 61 - - 830 15,760 L6, 144 - (384

I Details of Michacl Bailey's pension pavments are shown on page 30,

2 Aluin Dupuis had a money purchase fund which was used to fund a defined benefit on retirement. He ceased 1o accrae pension benefits from 1 October 2003 on leaving the scheme,

although o one off amount of £333,000 was puid into his fund at that time.

3 Sir Francis Mackay ceased o acerue pension henefits from | October 2005 and hegan 1o draw his pension from that date. He commuted part of his pension for a lump sum. In aceordance
with the Dircetors’ Remunerution Report Regulations 2002, the transfer vidue shown in column () reflects the actuanial position as at 30 September 2006,

1 The pension entitlement set out above is that which would be paid ar normal retirement date.

3 "Fhe benefits sct out above do not reflect those secured by any additional veluntary conmributions paid by the directors.

6 Transfer values have been caleulated in accordance with Actuarial Guidance Note GN1 1, and with advice from our external actuaries.
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Directors’ bonus matching share awards
No awards were made i connection with directors’ bonuses for the vears ended 30 September 2004, 2005 and 2006 and no awards will be made for
the vear ending 30 September 2007.

Details set out below are entitlements to Matching Shares in relation to bonuses awarded in 2002 and 2003 where directors directly; or via associates

such as family trusts, imvested up to 30% of their annual performance-related bonus in the form of shares. The shares are eligible for matching on
a one-to-one basis and are normally transferred to the directors a the end of the three-year deferral period provided they are still emploved by the
Group. Prior to 2003, the release of Matching Shares was not subject 1o satisfaction of a performance conditon, whereas since 2005 performance
conditions apply. However, as mentioned above, no awards have been made for the years ended 30 Seprtember 2005 and 2006.

Granted Aeleased Market price  Market price
As at during the during the Asat  when award at exercise
30 Sep 2005 year year 30 Sep 2006 made or release
Number Number Number Number pence pence Deferral period
Michael Bailey! 200,472 - - 200472 265.00 - I Oct 2002 — 30 Sep 2005
163,905 - - 163,905 347.00 — I Oct 2003 — 30 Sep 2006
364,377 - - 364,377
Alain Dupuis? 53,066 - 33,066 - 265.00 216.50 I Oct 2002 - 30 Sep 2005
43,227 - - 43,227 347.00 - 1 Oct 2003 - 30 Sep 2006
96,293 - 53,066 43,227
Sir Francis Mackay! 120,377 - - 120,377 265.00 - I Oct 2002 — 30 Sep 2005
120,377 - - 120,377

! Michaed Baitey and Sir Fruncis Muackay are permitted to call fior their masching share awards in full for a period of one year following their departure in line with their weemination agreements.
2 Aluin Dupuis is eligible to receive his remaining nuuching share award an the end of its defeeral petiod in line with his terminstion agreement.

Directors’ interests in the Long-Term Incentive Plan

Granted Released Lapsed Market price
As at during the during the during the At 30 Sep at date  Performance
30 Sep 2005 yaar year year 2006 of grant conditions

Number Number Number Number Number pence {see below) Date of award Earliest vesting date
Richard Cousins - 727,272 - - 727,272 206.25 (b)c) 14 Jun 2006 1 Qct 2008

- 727,272 - - 727,272
Andrew Martin 142 449 - - - 42,449 243.50 (a)c) 21 Dec 2004 1 Oct 2007
— 60,606 460,606 206,25 (b)) 14 Jun 2006 I Oct 2008

142,449 460,606 - - 603,055
Michael Bailey! 188,375 - - - 188,375 371.60 {a)(cl) 1 Cet 2000 1 Oct 2003
134,350 - - 134,350 - a482.00 (@)e) 25 Feb 2002 | Oct 2004
957,547 - — 257547 - 33625 a0 3 Jul 2003 I Oct 2005
201,000 - - 201,000 - 37175 (@)(g) 19 Dec 2003 I Oct 2006
332,143 - - 332,143 - 24350 {a)e) 21 Dec 2004 I Oct 2007

1,113,424 - - 925,049 188,375
Alain Dupuis? 59,275 - - 54,275 - 482.00 (a)(e) 25 Feb 2002 1 Oct 2004
113,208 - - 113,208 - 336.25 a)t) 3 Jul 2003 1 Oct 2005
91,859 - - 91,859 - 37175 (@)(g) 19 Dec 2003 I Oct 2006
151,361 - — 151,361 - 243.50 {a)(c) 21 Dec 2004 1 Oct 2007

415,703 - - 415,703 -
Sir Francis Mackay! 207,210 - - - 207,210 371.60 (a)(d) 1 Oct 2000 1 Oct 2003
134,350 - - 134,350 - 482.00 {a)(e) 25 Feb 2002 1 Oct 2004
141,500 - - 141,509 - 336.25 @) 3 Jul 2003 1 Oct 2005
108,069 - - 108,069 - 37175 (a)g) 19 Dec 2003 1 Oct 2006
170,068 - - 170,068 -~ 24350 (a)(c) 21 Dec 2004 1 Oct 2007

761,206 — - 563,996 207,210

All awards were granted for nil consideration. No shares were exercised or released duning the yvear ended 30 September 2006,

{a) 100% of award hased on grenvth in Compass Group TSR relutive to FISE 100, Secondlary measure whereby increase in EPS must be greater than increase in RPL

{b) 50% of awurd based on FCF and 50% on TSR target (see page 29).

{c) No rerestingr facility on awards made from 2004 onwards.

(d} 5+.4% of this awnrd vested wt the end of it second extended performance period on 30 September 2005, based an the Company being in 44th position in the ranking of
FI'SE 100 companies by TSR at the end of September 2004, There is no funtber opportunity for retesting,

(e} Second extended final performance period ended on 30 September 2006, The TSR arget was net met and o shares vested under the award,

{f}y First extended performance perod ended on 30 September 2006, No shares vested.

(g} The three-year performance period ended on 30 September 2006, No shares vested,

! Under the Plan rules, the TP awards of Michael Bailey and Sie Francis Mackay from Felbruary 2002 and fuly 2003 lapsed on cessation of their employment. They retained an entitbernent
to their vested October 2000 awirds and unwvested December 2003 and 2004 awards. They voluntarily waived any future entidement 1o the two unvested awards which have therefore lapsed.

2 Following his cessation of emploviment, Alain Dupuis’s LTTP awards Tapsed.
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Directors’ interests in share options

Granted Exercised Performance ‘f
30 Sep 2005 during the during the during the 40 560 2006 Exercise P:E: conditions Normal exerciss beriod ‘
year year year p pa {see nates) pe i
Michael Bailey! l
Share option plan 734,000 - - 734,000 - 316.10 (a) 29 Sep 2002-28 Sep 2009
Share option plan 1,101,000 - - 1,101,000 - 371.60 (b) 13 Sep 2003-12 Sep 2010
Share option plan 1,000,000 - — 1,000,000 - 430.00 )] 19 Scp 2004-18 Scp 2011
Share option plan 500,000 - — 500,000 - 422.00 )] 23 May 2005-22 May 2012
Share option plan 185,000 - - 185,000 - 292.50 {b) 30 Sep 2005-29 Sep 2012
Share option plan 950,000 - — 950,000 - 320.00 {h 28 May 2006-27 May 2013
Share option plan 550,000 - — 550,000 - 333.50 {b¥c) 7 Jun 20076 Jun 2014
Share option plan 855,000 - - 855,000 - 229.25 {b¥c) 1 Dec 2007-30 Nov 2014
Sharesave 4,925 - - - 4,925 336.00 {d} | Sep 2007-28 Feb 2008
5,879,925 _ — 5,875,000 4,925
. Alain Dupuis?
Share option plan 275,250 - - - 275,250 3i6.10 (a) 29 Sep 2002-28 Sep 2009
Share option plan 458,750 - - - 458,750 371.60 { 13 Sep 2003-12 Sep 2010
Share option plan 250,000 - - - 250,000 430.00 {b) 19 Sep 200418 Sep 2011
Share option plan 300,000 - - - 300,000 422.00 {b) 23 May 2005-22 May 2012
Share option plan 111,000 - - - 111,000 292.50 b) 30 Sep 2005-29 Sep 2012
Share option plan 400,000 - - - 400,000 320.00 () 28 May 2006-27 May 2013
Share eption plan 250,000 - - - 250,000 333.50 (h)(c) 7 Jun 20076 Jun 2014
Share option plan 390,000 - - - 390,000 229.25 {b)(c) 1 Dec 2007-30 Nov 2014
2,435,000 - - - 2,435,000
Sir Francis Mackay!
Share option plan 596,375 - - 596,375 - 316.10 (a) 29 Sep 2002-28 Scp 2009
Share option plan 1,101,000 - - 1,101,000 - 371.60 (b} 13 Sep 2003— 12 Scp 2010
Share option plan 500,000 - - 500,000 - 356.00 )] 3 Dec 2006-2 Dec 2013
Share option plan 450,000 - - 450,000 - 229.25 {b)c) 1 Dec 2007-30 Nov 2014
Sharesave 3,870 - - = 3,870 436.00 {d) | Sep 2006-28 Feb 2007
2,651,245 - - 2,647,375 3,870
Andrew Mariin
Share option plan 650,000 - - - 650,000 333.50 {b¥c) 7 Jun 2007-6 Jun 2014
Share option plan 365,000 - - - 365,000 229,25 {bc) 1 Dec 2007-50 Nov 2014
Sharesave 3,532 - - - 3,552 266.80 {d) 1 Sep 2007-29 Feb 2008
1,018,532 _ _ = 1,018,532

No options were granted, exercised or released under any of the share option plans during the year ended 30 September 2006,

" {a) Options were awarded under the Compass Group 1999 Executive Share Option Plan, The performance targets on these gramts ceased o apply following the Granada Compass merger in 2000.

(b) Optinns were awarded under the Compass Group Share Option Plan, If average FPS growth is wt least 6% over athree-year period between grant and exercise, 1/3 of shares under option

become exercisable Options are exercisable in full ar 12% growth and exercisable on a straight-line basis in between,
{c) Performance is tested onee only afier a three-year period. There is no retesting facility.

{d) Opaions were awarded under the Compass Group UK Savings-Related Share Option Scheme. There are no performance conditions under the sharesave scheme which is open to all UK employees.
Under the Plan rules, on cessation of their employment, Michael Bailey and Sir Francis Mackay retained a night of carly exercise of all their options. They voluntanily waived their entitlement
to any future benefit under these options and they have therefore lapsed.
They were both permitted 10 exercise their savings-related share options (sharesave) in line with the rules of the Scheme.
2 Mlain Dupuis was permitted to retain unexercised options following his cessation of employment on 31 July 2006 in line with the Plan rules.

L
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Directors’ remuneration report
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Payment to certain former directors
Andrew Lynch

Andrew Lynch resigned as a director on 28 September 2005 and left the
Group in_june 2006 with the sale of Select Serviee Pariner. Under the
arrangements described in the 2005 Directors’ remuneration report,

he received a sale-related payment of £200,000 on 31 March 2006 and
£525,500 at the time of sale, such amount determined by the level of
sale proceeds which surpassed expectations.

Alain Dupuis

Alain Dupuis resigned as a director on | October 2005. He received a
termination payment of £330,000 and entered into a three-year lixed
term service contract at a reduced salary of £200,000 per annum, with
no change to his annual bonus opportunity and benefits during the
period, and a enc-off pension contributien of {335,000 paid at the
start of the period. These arrangements also included a long-term
bonus scheme awributable to the performance of the countries for
which he had executive responsibility. The long-term bonus was subject
to a ceiling of £4 million. [n the period to 31 July 2006, he earned
£167.000 and £250,000 by way of salary and annual bonus respectively.
Tollowing a1 restructure, his service contract was terminated on 31 July
2006 {26 months hefore its contractual termination date) and under a
compromise agreement he received £1,100,000 in settlement of all
claims, with twa further payments of £250,000 on 31 January 2007
and 31 July 2007 respectively, subject to him not having entered into
certain categories of employment at the payment dates.

Ditution limits

All the Company’s equity-based incentive plans incorporaie the 2005
ABI Guidclines on headroom which provide that overall dilution under
all schemes should not exceed 10% over a 10-year period in relation to
the Company’s issued share capital {or reissue of treasury shares), with
the Turther limitation of 3% in any 10-year period on exccutive plans.

The Committee monitors every six months, and prior to the making of
any award, the effect of potential vesting of options or share awards to
cusure that the Company remains within these limits, Any awards which
are required 1o be satisfied by market purchased shares are excluded
from such caleulations,

No treasury shares were utilised in the year ended 30 September 2006.

As at 30 September 2006, the Company’s headroom position was as helow:

Ptan limits headroom
5% in 10 years

10% in 10 years

(0 Headroom
E Exgcutive
(] e

All
employes

IFRS

Since the year ended 30 September 2005, Compass Group has prepared

its financial statements under 1IFRS. In order to achicve consistency
between UK GAAP and 1FRS, EPS and other accounting measures |
used as performance targets for cardier years under cquity-hased

incentive plans have been adjusted.

Compass Group PLC share prices

The mid-market prices of the Company’s ordinary shares on

30 September 2005 and 30 September 2006 were 206.25 pence and
268.25 pence respectively. During the period between these two dates,
the market price of the Company’s ordinary shares ranged between
175 pence and 276.25 pence (21 October 2005 and 26 September
2006).

Total shareholder return

"The performance graph below shows the TSR for Compass Group over
the last five financial vears. The graph shows the value of £100 invested
in the FTSE 100 Index, The Conmitlee considers this to be the most
appropriate comparator group for this purpose as the FTSE 100 index is
widely used and recognised, and Gompass Group has been a constituent
member throughout the period,

160 = Compass Group
=—— FTSE 100 Index

140 /\/_
\/-"‘-f‘“\,,a«””qI

s
2 8

o
o

<

40

Value of a hypaothetical £100 helding

20

¢
2001 2002

2003 2004 2005 2008 '

Compliance

This Report complies with the requirements of the Companies Act
1985, the Directors’ Remuneration Report Regulations 2002 and the
Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authonty. The information
shown on pages 31 to 34 of this report which details individual
remuneration, share options, pension and share interests is audited.
Compliance with the Combined Code is detailed in the Corporate
Governance report on page 2+
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Compass Group PLC

We have audited the Group financial statements af Compass Group
PLC for the year ended 30 September 2006 which comprise the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of recognised
income and expense, the consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated
cash flow statement and the related notes 1 o 38. These Group financial
statements have been prepared under the accounting palicies set out
therein. We have also audited the information in the directors’
remuneration report that is described as having heen audited.

We have reported separately on the individual company financial

statements of Compass Group PLC for the year ended 30 September 2006.

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in
accordance with secdon 235 of the Companies Act 1985. Qur audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s
members those matters we are required o state (o them in an auditors’
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work,
for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the annual report, the
directors’ remuneration report and the Group financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted for use in the European Union are set out
in the statement of directors’ responsibilities,

Qur responsibility is to audit the Group financial statements and the
part of the directors’ remuneration report described as having heen
audited in accordance with relevant United Kingdom legal and
regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing

{UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the Group financinl
statements give a true and fair view in accordance with the relevant
financial reporting framework and whether the Group financial
statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report described
as having been audited have been properly prepared in accordance

. with the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. We

report to you whether, in our opinion, the directors® report is consistent
with the Group financial statements. We also report to you if we have
not received all the information and explanations we require for our
audin, or if information specified by law regarding directors’ transactions
with the Company and other members of the Group is not disclused.

We also report 1 vou if; in our opinion, the Company has not complicd
with any of the four directors’ remuneration disclosure requirenients
specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Scervices
Authority. These comprise the amount of each clement in the
remuneration package and information on share options, details of
long-term incentive schemes, and money purchase and defined beneti
schemes, We give a statement, 1 the extent possible, of details of any
non-compliance.

We review whether the corporate governance statement reflects the
Company’s compliance with the nine provisions of the 2003 FRC
Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the
Financial Services Authority, and we report if’ it does not. We are
not required to consider whether the Board's statement on internal
control covers all risks and comtrols, or form an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's corporate governance procedures or

its nsk and control procedures,

We read the directors” report and the other information contained in

the annual report for the above year as deseribed in the contents section 7

including the unaudited pan of the directors” remuneration report and
we consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any
apparent nisstatements or material inconsistencies with the Group
financial statemenis,

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board.
An audit includes examination, on a test hasis, of evidence relevant w
the amounts and disclosures in the Group financial statements and the
part of the dircctors’ remuneration report described as having been
audited. It also includes an assessment of the significant cstimates and
Jjudgements made by the directars in the preparation of the Group
financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Company’s circumstances, consistently applicd

and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information
and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us
with suflicient evidence 1o give reasonable assurance that the Group
financial stuements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report
described as having been audited are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error, In forming our
opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the Group financial statentents and the part of the
directors” remuneration report described as having been audited.

Opinion

In our opinion:

¢ the Group financial stmements give a true and fair vies, in accordance
with TFRSs as adapted for use in the European Union, of the state of
the Group’s altuirs as at 30 September 2006 and of its profit for the
vear then ended;

* the Group financial statements and the part of the directors’
remuneration report described as having been audited have been
properly preparee in accordance with the Companies Act 1985
and Anicle 4 of the IAS Regulation; and

» the information given in the directors’ report is consistent with the
Group financial statements.

Jotoite & Tomie 107

Deloitte & Touche LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London

29 November 2006
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Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 30 September 2006

Before

Before Exceptional Exceptional
exceptional items Total exceptional items. Total
items (Note 4} 2006 items {Nota 4) 2005
Notes £m £m £€m £m m £m
Continuing operations:
Revenue e 10,815 - 10,815 10,073 - 10,073
Opcerating costs i (10,309) - (10,309) {9,577) {(108) {9,685)
Operating profit 2 506 - 506 496 (108} 388
Share of profit of associates 2 - 2 - - -
Total operating profit 508 - 508 496 (108) 388
Finance income 6 15 - 15 4 - 4
Finance costs 6 (160 - (160) (156) - {156}
Hedge accounting inclfectivencss 6 11 - 11 (3) - (3)
Profit before tax 374 - 374 341 {108) 233
Income tax expense 7 (113) 44 (69) (96) (N (97)
Profit for the year from centinuing operations 2 261 44 305 245 (109 136
Discontinued operations:
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued operations 8 17 (27) (10) 114 {41 73
Profit for the year 278 17 295 359 {150) 209
Attributable to:
Equity sharcholders of the Company 268 17 285 345 {150 195
Minority interest 10 - 10 14 - 14
278 17 295 359 (150) 209
Basic earnings per share 9
From continuing operations 13.7p 3.7p
From discontinued operations {0.4p 3.3p
Irom continuing and discontinied operations 13.3p 9.0p
Diluted earnings per share 9
From condnuing operations 13.7p 5.7p
From discontinued operations {0.4)p 3.3p
Irom continuing and discontinued operations 13.3p 9.0p
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Consolidated statement of recognised income and expense
for the year ended 30 September 2006

o : B

2008 2005
Notes £m £m
Fair value movement on cash flow hedges 4 7
Currency translation differences {7) 14
Actuarial losses on post-employment benefits 24 (37) (157
Tax on items taken dircetly to equity 7 3 33
Net loss recognised directly in equity (37) (103)
Transfer w profit or loss from equity of cumulative translation diffcrences on discontinued activities 2 -
Transfer to profit or loss from equity on cash flow hedges (6) -
Net expense recognised directly in equity (41) (103)
Profit for the financial year 295 209
Total recognised income and expense for the year 2% 254 106
Attributable to:
Equity sharcholders of the Company 248 92
Minority interest 6 14




39 Compass Group PL.C
Annual Report 2006

Consolidated balance sheet

as at 30 September 2006
2006 2005
Notes £€m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill 1 3,451 4,220
Other imangible assets 12 152 168
Property; plant and equipment 13 756 1,657
Interests in associales 14 39 45
Onher investments 15 9 6
Deferred tax assets 7 237 198
Trade and other receivables 17 117 140
Derivative financial instruments 21 22 44
4,783 6,478
Current assets
Inventorics 18 212 253
Trade and other receivables 17 1,424 1,574
Ohverseas tax recoverable 10 9
Derivative financial instruments 21 9 2
Cash and cash equivalents 19 848 281
2,503 2,119
Total assets 7.286 8,597
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings 20 (119 (150)
Derivative financial instruments 21 (2) (20)
Current tax habilities (357 (334
‘Irade and other payables 22 {1,990) (2,437)
Provisions 23 (65) {10)
(2,533) (2,951)
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 20 (1,835) (2,580)
Derivative financial instruments 2] (18) 2
Post-emplayment benefit obligations 24 (282) (555)
Provisions 23 (242) (143)
Deferred tax liabilites 7 {18) (17)
Other liabilitics 22 {46) (71)
{2,441) (3,368}
Total liabilities (4,974) (6,319)
Net assets 2,312 2,278
Equity
Share capital 25 210 216
Share premium account 26 96 94
Capital redemption resenve % 15 9
Less: own shares 26 - H
Other reserves 26 4,288 4,137
Retained carnings 2 {2,303) (2,209)
Totat equity shareholders’ funds 2,306 2,251
Minority interests 26 6 27
Total equity 2,312 2,278

Approved by the Board of directors on 29 November 2006 and signed on their behalf by

Richard ] Cousins, Director
Andrew D Martin, Director
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Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 30 September 2006

2006 2005
Notes £m £m
Cash generated from operations 20 754 699
Interest paid (186) (161)
Interest clement of finance lease rentals {3) (3)
Tax received 4 23
Tax paid {101) (19)
Net cash from operating activities for continuing operations 468 467
Net cash from operating activities for discontinued operations 3¢ 29 181
Net cash from operating activities 497 648
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of subsidiary compantes and investments in associated undertakings m (167) (121)
Proceeds from sale of substdiary companics and associated undertakings 8 1,807 75
Contribution of disposal proceeds to pension plans (280 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (206) (2:48)
Proceeds tfrom sale of property, plant and equipment 27 35
Purchase of intangible assets (30 (20
Dividends received from associated undertakings 2 4
Interest received 15 4
Net cash from/{used in) investing activities by continuing operations 1,168 (271)
Net cash used in investing activities by discontinucd operations 30 {59} {G3)
Net cash from/{used in) investing activities 1,109 (336)
Cash flow from financing activities
Issue of ordinary share capital 2 1
Purchase of own shares {net) (148) -
Net decrease in borrowings 31 (647) (32)
Repayment of obligations under finance leases a1 (15) (16)
Equity dividends paid (213) (205)
Dividends paid o minority interests (1 (15)
| Net cash used in linancing activities by continuing operations {1,032) (267)
Net cash used in financing activities by discontinued operations 40 - (13
Met cash used in financing activities {1.032) (268}
Net increase in cash and cash equivaltents 574 -+
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 281 233
Exchange gains and losses on cash and cash equivalents (7 +
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 31 848 281
Reconciliation of free cash flow from continuing operations
for the year ended 30 September 2006
2006 2005
£m £m
Net cash from operating activities for gcontinuing operations 468 467
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (206) (248)
Proceeds from sale of property; plant and equipment 27 33
Purchase of intangible asscts (30) {20
Dividends received from associated undertakings 2 4
Interest received 15 4
Dividends paid o minority interests (i (15)
Free cash flow — continuing operations 265 227
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 30 September 2006

1 Accounting policies
T'he significant accounting policics adopted in the preparation of the
Group's financial statcments are set out below:

A Accounting convention and basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards {1FRS’) and International
Financial Reporting Interpretations Commitee {IFRIC) interpretations
as adopted by the European Union at 30 September 2006 and with those
parts of the Companies Act 1985 applicable 1o companies reporting
under IFRS. They have been prepared under the historical cost

convention as modificd by the revitluation of certain financial instruments,

The disclosures required by IFRS | “First-time Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards” concerning the transition under UK
GAAP to IFRS are included in note 37 with additional detail set out

in ‘Adoption of Internaional Financial Reporting Standards ‘IFRS’:
preliminary restatement of 2005 financial information’, a separate
decument published in the Investor Relations scetion of the Group
website (www.eompass-group.com} on 1 March 2006 and which is also
available on request. The 2006 financial statements are the first financial
statements to be prepared in accordance with IFRS and the date of the
transition to IFRS is 30 September 2004,

IFRS 1 sets ow the requirements for the first-time adoption of 1FRS.
Generally, IFRS | requires that the accounting policies to be adopted are
compliant with IFRS and that these policies be applied retrospectively to
all periods presented. However, a number of exemptions are permitied 1o
be taken in preparing the balance sheet at the date of transition {‘the
transition balance sheet’} and in preparing the financial information for
the vear ended 30 September 2005.

In accordance with [FRS 1, the directors have net revised estimates
required under IFRS that were also required under UK GAAP as at
30 Seprember 2004 and 30 September 2005 and in addition, where
estimates were not required under UK GAAP, they have been based
on information known at that time, and not on subsequent events.

The Group has clected to take the following permitted exemptions.
The acquisition accounting of business combinations completed
prior 1o the transition date has not been restated. The net book value
of goodwill as at the transition date has been treated as deemed cost
of goodwill under IFRS,

IFRS rerquires the wracking of all cumulative foreign exchange
adjustments taken o reserves. These amounts are reversed upon
any subsequent disposal of the business 1o which they relate. The
cumulative translational foreign exchange difference that has been
taken to reserves for foreign operations prior to the wransition date
has been assumed o be zero.

The Group has previously disclosed fair values for share-hased
payments. Consequently, as permitted by the wransitional provisions
of IFRS 2 *Share-based Pavments” the Group has opted for full
retrospective adoption.

All cumulative pension actuarial gains and losses have heen
recognised in equity i the transition date.

hy addition the Group has clected o adopt carly ‘Amendments o
IAS 19 Employee Benelits’. The Group has selected the option
avatlable within this standard, similar to FRS 17 under UK GAAP,
{or immediate recognition of all actuarial gains and losses outside
of the income statement.

The Group has not clected to defer the implementation of 1AS 32
‘Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation” and 1AS 39
‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement® and has adopted
these with effect from the transition date. It is the intention to apply
hedge accounting where the relevant requirements of 1AS 39 are met.

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
stundards huve been published that are mandatory for the Group’s
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 October 2006 or later

periods but which the Group has not adopted carly. The Greoup has
idenufied IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’, IFRIC 4
‘Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease’, [FRIC 8
*Bcope of IFRS 2* and [FRIC 9 *Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives’
as heing relevant to its business. The impact on the Group’s operations is
currendy heing assessed.

B Use of assumpticns and estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires
management 10 make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affeet
the application of policies and reported amouns of assets aud liabilitics,
income and expenses. These estimates and assumptions are based on
historical C\‘[)(’ricncc and other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, Actual results may differ [rom these estimates.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causmg i
material adjustment to the carrying value of assets and liubilities in the
next financial year are discussed below:

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgment is required in determining the worldwide provision
for income taxes as there are many transactions and caleulations for which
the ulumate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities based on estimates of whether
additional taxes wili be due. Where the final tax outcome of’ these matiers
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differcnces
will impact the resulis for the year and the respective income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the year in which such determination is made,

Geodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in section M below.
The recoverable amounts of cash generating units have been determined
based on value in use caleulations. These calculations require the use of
cstimates and assumptions consistent with the most up-to-date budgets
and plans that have been formally approved by management. The key
assumptions used for the value in wse caleulations are set out in note 11
to the financial statements,

Post-employment benefits

Defined benefit schemes are reappraised annually by independent
actuaries based on actuarial assumpions. Significant judgment is
required in determining these actuarial assumptions. The principal
assurmnptions used are described in note 24 to the financial statements.

C Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements consist of the financial statements
of the Company, entitics controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries) and
the Group’s share ol interests in joint ventures and associates made up to
30 September each year

D Subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

Subsidiaries are entitics over which the Group has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies. The exisience and effeet of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing control.

Joint ventures are entitics in which the Group holds an interest on a

long-term basis und which are jointly controfled by the Group and
other venturers under a contractual agreement. The Group’s share

is accounted for using the proportionate consolidazion method. The
consolidated income statement and halance sheet include the Group’s
share of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

1 Accounting policies continued

Associates are undertakings that are not subsidiaries or joint ventures over
which the Group has significant influence and can participate in financial
and operating policy decisions. Investments in associated undertakings
are accounted for using the equity method. The consolidated income
staterment includes the Group’s share of the profit afier tax of the
associated undertakings. Investments in associates include goodwill
idenufied on acqusition and are carried in the Group balance sheet at
cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets
of the associate, less any impairment in value.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures to bring the accounting policies
used in line with those used by the Group.

The results of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures acquired or
disposed of during the period are included in the consolidated income
staternent from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date
of disposal, as appropriate.

Intra-group transactions

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
climinated on consolidation. Where a Group subsidiary transacts with

a joint venture of the Group, profits or losses are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s interest in the relevant joint venture.

E Acquisitions
The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase

- method. The cost of acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the

fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, hahilites incurred
or assumed, and equity instruments issued plus costs directly attributable
to the acquisition. ldentifiable asscis acquired and habilitics and
contingent liabilities assumed are recognised at the fair values at the
acquisition date, except for non-current assets (or disposal groups) that
are classitied as held for sale which are recognised and measured at
fair value less costs to sell. The cost of the acquisition over the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the cost of the acquisition is less than the fair
value of the net asscts of the subsidiary acquired, the dillerence is
recognised directly in the income statement.

F Foreign currency
The consolidated financial statements are prepared in pounds sterling,
which is the functional currency of the parent company.

In preparing the financial statements of individual companies within the
Group, transactons in currencies other than pounds sterling are recorded
at the rates ol exchange on the dates of the transaction. At each balance
sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominaged in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates on the balance sheet date. Gains
and losses arising on retranslation are included in the income statcment
for the period, except for where they arise on tems taken directly to
eqquity, m which case they are also recogrised in equity.

In order to hedge its exposure to certain foreign exchange risks the
Group enters into forward contracts {see section Q) below for the
Group’s accounting policies in respect of derivative financial instrumenis).

On consolidation, the assets and Liabilites of the Group's overseas
operations (expressed in their functional currencies, being the currency
of the primary economic environment in which cach entity operates)

are translated at the exchange rates on the halance sheet date. Income
and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified as equity and
transferred o the Group's transluion reserve. Such translation differences
are recognised as income or expense in the period in which the operation

is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjusuments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as asscts and labilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate.

G Revenue

Revenue is recognised in the period in which services are provided in
accordance with the terms of the contractual relationships with third
parties. Revenue represents the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable lor goods and services provided in the normal course of
husiness, excluding trade discounts, value added tax and similar

sales taxes.

H Rebates and other amounts received from suppliers
Rehates and other amounts received from suppliers are (reated as a
deduction from the related operating costs or cost of assets acquired.

| Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised in the income statement in the period
in which they are incurred.

J Operating profit
Operaiing profit is stated before the share of results of associates,
investment revenuce and finance costs.

K Exceptional items

Exceptional items are disclosed and deseribed separately in the financial
statcments where it is necessary (o do so to provide further understanding
of the financial performance of the Group. They are material items of
income or expense that have been shown separately due to the
significance of their nature or amount.

L Tax

Income tax expense comprises current and delerred tax, Tax is recognised
in the income statement except where it relates wo items taken directly to
equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
period, using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheer date.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet lability method,
providing for temparary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts
used for tax purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the externt that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible emporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference anses
from goondwill or from the initial recognition (ether than in a business
combination) ol other assets and liabilites in a wransaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred 1ax habilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiarics and associates, and interest in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary dilference
will not reverse in the fureseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred 1ax assets is reviewed at each balance
sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxahle profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the liability is settled or the asset realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset against cach other when they
relate to income taxes levied by the same tax jurisdiction and the Group
intends to seutle its current tax assets and labilities on a net basis.
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1 Accounting policies continued

M Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
assets and habilities of the acquired subsidiary, associate or joint venture
at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment
and is carried at cost less any accurnulated impairment losses.

Goodwill is allocated 1o cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing, If the recoverable amount of the cash-gencrating
unit is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is allocated first
1o reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated 10 the unit and
then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment is immediately
recognised in the income statement and an impairment loss recogniseed
for goodwill is not subsequently reversed.

On disposal, the atributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions before the date of transition 1o [FRS
has been retained at the previous UK GAAP amounts subject to being
tested for impairment at that date. Goodwill written off to rescrves under
UK GAAP prior 10 1998 has not been reinstated and is not included in
determining any subsequent gain or loss on disposal.

Other intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately arc capitalised at cost or, i’ acquired
as part of a business combination, are capitalised at fair valuc as at the
date of the acquisitton. Internally-generated intangible assets are not
capitalised. Amortisation is charged on a straight-line basis on assets over
their expected useful lives. The following rates applied for the Group:

* contract-related intangible assets: the Iife of the contracy,

+ computer software: 8% 10 33% per annum,

N Property, plant and equipment

All tangible fixed asscts are reviewed for impairment when there are
indications that the carrying value may not be recoverable, Frechold
land is not depreciated. All other property, plant and equipment assets
are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised
tmpairment in value.

Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the anticipated
useful lives of the assets. The following rates applied for the Group:

* freehold buildings and long-term leaschold propeny: 2% per annum;
= short-term leaschold property: the hife of the lease;

* plant and machinery: 8% to 33% per annum;

+ fixtures and fittings: 8% to 33% per annum.

When asscts are sold, the difference between sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the assets is dealt with in the income statement.

O Assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for salc if the
carrying amount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the
sale is highly probable, management is committed to a sale plan, the asset is
available for immediate sale in its present condition and the sale is expected
to be completed within one year from the date of classification. These assets
are measured at the lower of carrying value and fair value less costs to scll.

P Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is

. calculated using either the weighted average price or the first in, first out

method as appropriate to the circumstances. Net reatisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable sclling expenses.

Q Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Group’s
balance shect when the Group becomes a party 1o the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial asscts and liabilities, including
derivative financial instruments, denominated in foreign currencies are 1
translated inte sterling at period-end exchange rates. Gains and losses i
are dealt with through the income statement, unless hedge accounting
treatment 1s available.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three menths or less.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at the proceeds reccived, net of
direct issue costs. Borrowings are subscquently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of direct issue costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method. |

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs. ‘

Liabilities in respect of option agreements .
Option agrecments that allow the Group’s equity partners to require the
Group 10 purchase the minority interest are treated as derivatives over |
equity instrwments. These are recorded in the balance sheet at fair value ‘
and the valuation is re-evaluated at each period end. Fair valuce is based

on the presemt value of expected cash outflows. The movement in fair

value is recognised as income or expense within finance costs in the

income statement.

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as foreign currency
contracts and interest rate swaps to hedge its risks associated with changes
in foreign exchange rates and interest rates. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially measured at fair value on the contract date,

and are re-measured to tair value at subsequent reporting dates.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting ‘

The use of financial derivatives is governed by the Group’s policies
approved by the Board of directors that provide written principles
on the use of financial derivatives consistent with the Group’s risk
management strategy. The Group does not use derivative financial
instruments {or speculative purposes,

The fair value of forward exchange contracts is calculated by reference
to current forward exchange rates for contracts with similar maturity
profiles. The fair value of mterest rate swaps is determined by reference
to market values for similar instruments,

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as either
fair value hedges when they hedge the exposure 1o changes in the fair
value of a recognised asset ar liability; or cash (ow hedges where they
hedge exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to
a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a
lorecasted transaction.

In reladion o fair value hedges {interest rate swaps) which meet the
conditions for hiedge accounting, any gain or loss from re-measuring

the hedging instrument at fair value is recognised immediately in the
income statermnent. Any gain or loss on the hedged item attributalble to
the hedged risk is adjusted against the carrying amount of the hedged
itern and recognised in the income statement. Where the adjustment is

to the carrying amount of a hedged interesi-bearing financial instrument,
the adjustment is amortised to the net profit and loss such that it is fully
amortised by maturity.
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When fair value hedge accounting is discontinued, any adjustment o
the carrying amount of the hedged iem for the designated risk for
interest-hearing financial instruments is amortised to profit or loss, with
amortisation commencing no later than when the hedged item ceases o
be adjusted.

The Group’s policy is to convert a proportion of its {loating rate debt 1o
fixed rates. The Group designates these as cash flow hedges of interest
rate risk.

In relation to cash Now hedges {forward foreign exchange contracts)

to hedge firm commitments which meet the conditions for hedge
accounting, the portion of the gain or loss on the hedging mstrument
that is determined 1o be an effective hedge is recognised directly in equity
and the ineffective portion 1s recognised in the income staiement.

When the hedged firm commitment results in the recognition of an
asset or liahility, then at the time the asset or liability is recognised, the
associated gains or losses than had previously been recognised in equity
are included in the initial measurernent of the acquisition cost of

other carrving amount of the asset or liability. For all other cash flow
hedges, the gains or losses that are recognised in cquity are transterred
ta the income statement in the same period in which the hedged firm
commitment affects the net profit and loss, for example when the future
sale actually occurs.

For derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge
accounting, any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value are
taken directly 1o the income statement in the period.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires
or is sold, terminated or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting. At that point in time, any cwmulative gain or loss on the
hedging instrument recognised in equity is kept in equity until the
forecasted transaction occurs. If a hedged transaction is no longer
expected Lo occur the net cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity
is transferred to the income statement in the period.

R Leases

Leases are classificd as finance leases whenever the terms ol the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership o the lessee,
All other leases are classificd as operating leases,

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group
at their fair vatue o 1T lower, at the present value ol the minitnum
lease payments, cach determined at the inception of the lease. The
corresponding liability to the Iessor is included in the balance sheet as
a finance lease obligation. Lease paymems are apportoned between
finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve
a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance charges are charged dircetly against income,

Payments made under operating leases are charged to income on a
straight-line basts over the period of the lease. Any incentives to enter
into an uperating lease are also spread on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

S Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a
result of a past event and it is probable that the Group will be required
to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured an the directors’ best
estimate of the cost of seuling these habilities and are discounted 1o
present value where the effect is marerial,

T Employee benefits

Pension obligations

Payments made to delined contribution pension schemes are charged

as an expense when they fall due. Payments made to state-managed
schemes are dealt with as paymenis to defined contribution schemes
where the Group’s obligations under the schemes are ¢quivalent to those
arising in a defined contribution pension scheme,

For defined benelit pension schemes, the cost of providing benefits is
determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at cach balance sheet date. Actuarial gains
and losses are recognised immediately in the statement of recognised
imcome and expense.

Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the henefits
are already vested, and otherwise is amortised on a straight-line basis
over the average peried until the benefits hecome vested.

The pension obligation recagnised in the balance sheet represents

the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for
unrecognised past service cost, and as reduced by the fair value of scheme
assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to past service
cost, plus the present value of available refunds and reductions in future
contributions to the plan.

Cther post-employment obligations

Seme Group companics provide other post-cmployment benefits.

The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of
employment using a similar basis to that used for defined benefit pension
schemes. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in the
statement of recognised income and expense.

Share-based payments

The Group issucs equity-settled and cash-settled share-based payments
to certain employees. Equity-settled share-hased payments are measured
at fair value (excluding the effect of non market-bascel vesting conditions)
at the date of grant. The fair value determimed at the grant date of the
equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of the shares

that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non market-hased
vesting conditions.

Fair value is measured using either the binomial distribution or
Black-Scholes pricing models as s most appropriaie for each scheme.
The expected life used in the models has been adjusted, based on
management’s best estimate, for the cffects of exerctse restrictions
and behavioural consicderations.

For cash-seutled share-based payments, a liability equal to the portion
of the goods or services received is recognised at the current fair value
determined at each balance sheet date.

Holiday pay

Paid holidays and similar entitlements are regarded as an employee
benefit and are charged to the mcome statement as the benefits are
earned. An accrual is made at the halance sheet date to reflect the fair
value of helidavs earned but not 1aken.
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North Continental United Rest of Central
: America Europe Kingdom the World activities Total
2 Segmental reporting £m £m £m £m £m £m
Geographical segments
Year ended 30 September 2006
Revenue
Tenal revenue 4,437 3,283 2,805 1,777 - 12,302
Less: inter-segment revenue - (21) — (17) — (38)
Revenue from external clients 4,437 3,262 2,805 1,760 - 12,264
Less: discontinued {147) (399) (848) (55) - (1,449)
Revenue from external clients — continuing operations 4,290 2,863 1,957 1,705 - 10,815
Result
Total operating profit 247 181 129 49 {(77) 529
Less: ciscontinued (2) (12} {15) 6 - (23)
245 169 114 55 {77 506
Share of profit of associates 1 - 1 - - 2
Segment result — continuing operations 246 169 115 55 (77 508
Finance income 15
Finance costs {160)
Hedge accounting ineffectiveness 11
Profit hefore tax 374
Incame tax expense (69
Profit for the year from continuing operations 305
Year ended 30 September 2005
Revenue
Total revenue 3,957 3,554 3,254 1,680 - 12,425
Lass: inter-segment fevenue - (20) - (5) - (31
Revenue from external clients 3,937 3,528 3,254 1,675 - 12,394
Less: discontinued (176} (G98) (1,272) (173) - {2,321)
Revenue from external clients — continuing operations 3,761 2,430 1,982 1,500 - 1,073
Result
Towal operating profit 221 211 193 47 (58) 65
Lass: discontinued (3) (42) {79) (34) - (158)
218 169 114 33 (38) 4496
Share of profit of associates - - - - - -
Segment result — continuing operations before exceptional items 218 169 114 33 (58) 496
Exceptional items (note 4) 2 (107} (1) - (2) (108)
Scgment result — cominuing operations after exceptional items 220 62 113 33 (60) 388
Finance incame 4
Finance costs {156)
Hedge accounting ineffectdveness (3)
Profit before tax 233
Income tax expense {97)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 136
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North Continental United Rest of Central

. , Ametica Europa Kingdom the World activities Total
2 Segmental reporting continued £m £m £m Em £m £m
Balance sheet
As at 30 September 2006
Segment assets — continuing 1,845 1,345 2,201 711 57 6,159
Segment liabilities — continuing (746) (766) {424) (348) {340) (2,624)
Scgment net assets — continuing 1,099 579 1,777 363 {283} 3,535
Net debt (1,095)
Current and deferred tax (128)
Group net assets 2,312
As at 30 September 2005
Total segment assets 1,868 1,666 3,755 757 17 8,063
Less: discontinued (114 {263) {1,507} {39) — {1,923}
Segment assets — continuing 1,754 1,403 2,248 718 17 6,140
Total segment labilitics (734) 954) (883 {333 (310) (3,216)
[Less: discontinued 21 175 127 4 - 327
Scgment liabilitics ~ continuing {713} (779 (758) {329) (310) (2,889)

* Segment net assets — continuing 1,1 624 1,490 389 (293) 3,251 |

Add: discontinued net assets 1,596
Net debt (2,425)
Current and deferred tax {144)
Group net assets 2,278
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North  Continental United Rest of Central

America Europe Kingdom the Worid activities Total
2 Segmental reporting continued £m £m £m £m £m £m
Other information
Year ended 30 September 2006
Capital additions
— Property, plant and equipment 103 71 14 23 - 211
— Other intangible assets 16 2 11 1 i 31
— Discontinued activities: property, plant and equipment 19 17 36 1 - 73
Depreciation and amordsation
— Property, plant and equipment 68 70 36 18 1 193
— Other intangible assets 13 15 8 1 1 38
- Discontinued activitics 9 12 27 2 - 50
Investment in associates — continuing 16 1 22 - - 39
Other disclosures — continuing
— Impairment losses recognised in income - - - - - -
= Other non-cash expenses 6 9 5 8 - 28
Year ended 30 September 2005
Capital addiuons
— Property, plant and equipment 109 85 39 26 2 261
~ Other intangible asscts 9 1 8 - - 18
— Discomtintued activities: property, plant and equipment I4 21 41 2 - 78
Depreciation and amortisation
— Property, plant and equipment 68 76 38 20 1 203
— Other intangible assets 6 6 8 - 1 21
— Discominued activities 10 21 35 18 - 84
Investment in associates — continuing L7 1 22 - - 40
Investment in associates — discontinued - 5 - - - 3
Other disclosures — continuing
— Impairment losses recognised in income - 107 - - - H)7
— Other non-cash expenses 7 2 10 - - 19

Additional information on discontinued businesses is given in note 8.

Other non-cash expenses include share-based paymenis, bad debt expense and provision movements.
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Travel Central
. . Contracts Vending  concessions activities Total
2 Segmenta! reporting continued £m £m £m £m Em
Business segments
Year ended 30 September 2006
External revenue — continuing 9,735 1,003 77 - 10,815
ixternal revenue ~ discontinued 55 - 1,394 - 1,449
Segnent asscls — continuing 5,283 800 19 57 6,159
Capital additons
— Property, plant and equipment 150 61 - - 211
~ Other intangible assets 30 - - 1 3
= Discontinued operations - - 73 - 73
Year ended 30 September 2005
External revenue ~ continuing 8,878 993 202 - 10,073
External revenue — discontinued 175 - 2,146 - 2,321
Segment assets — continuing 5,314 790 19 17 6,140
Segment asscts — discontinued 39 - 1,884 - 1,923
Capital additons
—  Property, plant and equipment 189 66 10 2 261
= Other intangible assets 14 - - - B3]
= Discontinued operations 2 - 76 - 78
Al revennie relates to the provision of senvices.
) o . 2006 2005
3 Operating costs - continuing operations £m £m
Emplovee benefit expense (note 3) 4,659 4,381
Depreciation — owned assets 180 190
— leased assets 13 13
Amortisation 38 21
Impairment of” goodwill (nimes 4, 11) - 107
Cost of inventories consumed 3,652 3,430
Property lease remtals 70 76
Other oceupaney rentals — minimuem guaranteed rent 40 30
Other occupancy rentals — rent in excess of minimum guaranteed rent 26 18
Other asset rentals 79 74
Audit and non-audit services (see below) 8 7
Net foreign exchange losses - {n
Other expenses 1,544 1,339
10,309 9,683
2006 2005
£m m
Audit and non-audit services
Audit services:
Fees pavable o the Company’s auditors for the audic of the Gompany's annual financial statements 0.4 04
Fees payable o the Company’s auditors and their associakes for other services to the Group:
The audit of the Company’s subsidiaries and joint venures pursuant to legislation 3.0 3.5
Audit fees relating to IFRS comparatives 0.2 0.5
Total audit fees 3.6 4.4
Other services supplied pursuant to legislation 0.3 -
Other services relating to ax 2.9 2.3
All other services 0.8 0.1
Total non-audit lees 4.0 2.4

All other services includes £0.5 million in respect of assurance work relating to disposals.
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. . 2006 2005
4 Excepticnal items £m £m
Continuing operations:
Charged within operating profit:
Impairment of goodwill — Italy - {107)
Loss on disposal of businesses - 4]
— {108)
Credited/(charged) within income tax expense (note 7):
Current tax 5 -
Adjustment in respect of prior vears 17 -
Current year deferred tax 22 -
Tax charge on loss on disposal of businesses - (1)
44 (1)
Continuing operations 44 (109}
Charged within discontinued activities:
Profit after tax on disposal of businesses (note 8) 20 -
Settlement of UN contract claims and related expenses (39) -
Middle East military catering business (8) {45)
Tax credit on discontinued activities - 4
Discontinued activities (27) {41)
Total 17 (150

The exceptional tax credits arise in respect of previously unrecognised tax losses and tax deductions in respect of pension prepayments in the UK tax
group that originated in previous years.

In 2006, £39 million has been charged to complete investigations and to settle lawsuits for lost profits brought by two competitors of the Group,
ES-KO International Inc and Supreme Foodservice AG in relation to contracts awarded to Eurest Support Services by the UN.

The Group has discontinued its military catering operations in the Middle East, which were formerly part of the Rest of the World geographical
segment. In 2006, £8 million has been provided to settle claims arising in 2005. Related asset write-downs and provisions resulted in an exceptional
charge of £45 million in 2005.

The goodwill relating to Onama in Traly (which forms part of the Continental Europe geographical segment) was impaired in 2005 following a review
of the profitability of the underlying business. Value in use was calculated by discounting cash flows at a pre-tax rate of 9.7%. Further information on
value in use calculations is given in note 11,

in 2005, the Group disposed of 73% of the Au Bon Pain business in North America and 100% of its interest in the Gatwick Meridien Hotel in the
UK and paid further costs relating to previous disposals resulting in an overall net loss of £1 million.
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5 Employees Nurfl?)oesr Nurzn%?r
The average number of emplovees, including directors and part-time employees, was:
North America 140,096 131,408
Continental Europe 68,331 74,056
United Kingdom 69,813 71,525
Rest of the World 100,778 91,421
‘Fotal continuing 379,018 368,408
Discontinued businesses 27,906 +1,666
Total continuing and discontinued 406,924 410,074
Continuing Continuing
2006 2005
£m £m
The aggregate remuneration of all employees including directors comprised:
Wages and salaries 3,973 3,715
Sacial security costs 611 566
Share-based payments 21 42
Pension costs — defined contribution plans 33 24
Pension costs — defined benefit plans 21 34
Totl 4,659 4,381
In addition to the pension operating cost shown above, there is a net charge to finance costs of £11 million (2005: £14 million).
Aggregate remuneration of employees of discontinued operations was £352 million (2005: £464 million).
Remuneration of key management personnel
Key management personnel is represented by the Board of directors and the members of the Executive Commiuee. Their compensation
is shown below:
2006 2005
Em £m
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 9.6 6.8
Termination benefits 0.4 1.2
Share-hased payments 0.4 4.8
16.4 12.8
Information en directors’ remuneration, share options, long-term incentive plans, pension contributions and enttlements is set out in the audited
section of the Directors’ remuneration report on pages 28 to 35 and forms part of these financial statements.
6 Finance income and costs 22:?: zoconﬁ
Finance income
Bank interest 15 4
Finance costs
Bank loans and overdrafis 35 42
Other loans 107 91
Finance lease interest 3 3
145 136
Unwinding of discount on put options held by minority shareholders 4 6
Interest on penston scheme labilities net of expected return on scheme assets (note 24) 11 14
160 156
Hedge accourting ineffectiveness
Unrealised net gains on financial instruments 11 l
Unhedged translation losses on foreign currency borrowings - {4}
11 (3}
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2006 2005
7 Tax £m £m
Recognised in the income statement: income tax expense on continuing operations
Current year 158 T15
Adjustment in respect of prior vears (39) (52)
Current ax expensc 119 63
Current year deferred tax (4 24
Adjustment in respect of prior vears {(2) 9
Deferred 1ax {credit)/expense (6) 33
Income tax expense on cottinuing operations before exceptional items 113 96
Exceptional items (notwe 4):
Current tax {(credit)/expense {22) 1
Deferred ax {credic)/expense (22) -
Income tax expense on continuing operations 69 97

The income tax expense for the vear is based on the United Kingdom statutory rate of corporation tax of 30% (2005: 30%). Overseas tax is caleulated
at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions,

2006 2005
£m Im
Reconciliation of the income tax expense on continuing operations before exceptional items
Profit hefore 1ax from continuing operations before exceptional items 374 341
Notional income tax expense at the UK statwory rae on the profit before 1ax 112 102
Effect of different 1ax rates of subsidiaries operating in other junisdictions 17 18
Permanent differences 21 15
Impact of share-based payments 3 9
Tax on profit of associates n (1)
Uilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (7 (12)
Unrelieved current year tax losses 8 7
Prior year tems (41 (43)
Other 1 ]
Income tax expense on continuing operations before exceptional items 113 96
Tax on items credited/{charged) to equity
Deferred tax credit on actuarial losses on post-employment benefits 10 35
Tax on forcign exchange movements recognised in equity (10} 2
Ohiher current and deferred tax credits/(charges) 3 {4)
Total tax credited o equity 3 33
Pensions Net
and post- Self-funded short-term
Tax employment insurance temporary
depreciation Intangibles benefits Tax losses provisions differences Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Movement in net deferred tax
At 1 October 2005 {51} 12 172 12 19 17 181
Credit/(charge) w income 22 (8} (23) - 14 47 42
Credit/(charge) 1 equity - ) 10 - - 3 12)
Transler from current tax - - (1} - - - (1)
Business disposals 4 {4) - (1) - 4 3
Other movements 3 2 (1} - 1 (9) {4)
Ixchange adjustment 1 5 (3} (1 {1) (1) -
At 30 September 2006 (21) (2) 154 10 23 55 219

Net short-term temporary differences relate principally to provisions and other labiliges of overseas subsidiaries,
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¢ 7 Tax continued ‘
. After netting ofl’ balances within countries, the following are the deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated balance sheet:

! 2006 2005

! Em £m

! Deferred tax assets 237 198

! Deferred tax habilitics (18) {17)

i 219 18]

|

Unrecognised deferred 1ax assets in respect of tax losses and other temporary differences amount to £55 million (2005: £80 mallion). Of the total,

tax losses of £3 million will expire at various dates berween 2007 and 2013. These deferred tax assets have not been recognised as the timing of
recovery is uncertain. No deferred tax liability is recognised on temporary differences ol £1,150 million (2005 £645 million) relating to the unremitted
earnings of overseas operations as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of these temparary differences and it is probable that they
will not reverse in the foresecable future.

8 Discontinued operations

Following the decision to focus on its core contract catering business the Group disposed of its Inllight catering operations, which operated principally
in Cominental Europe on 19 December 2005 and its travel concession catering business, Sclect Service Partner, including Creative Host Services in the
US (together, “SSP’) on 15 June 2006. Gross proceeds from the sale of SSP were £1,865 million and costs incurred were £67 million. In addition, the
Group has discontinued its Middle East military catering operations and withdrawn from or disposed of various other businesses, shown as ‘other’ below.

Details of net assets disposed of and disposal proceeds are as follows.

SSP Other 2006 2005

£m £m £m £m

i Gooduwill 798 51 849 31
i Intangible assets 10 - 10 -
' Property, plant and equipment 755 125 880 57
i Investments 5 3 8 -
; Inventonies 29 9 38 3
| Trade and other reccivables 74 49 123 8
Cash at bank 94 24 118 -
Gross assets disposed of 1,765 261 2,026 89
Trade and other payablus (208) (1) {259) {10)
Post-employment benefit obligations (10) (4) (14} -
Tax (6) (6) (12) 2
Minority interest (1) (5 (6) -
Other liabilities - {5) (5) -
Gross liabilities disposed of (225) (71) (296) (8)
Net assets disposed of 1,540 190 1,730 91
Liabilities retained 88 21 109 -
Cumulative exchange translation loss recycled on disposals 2 - 2 -
Profit/(loss) on dispasal 168 (54) 114 (n

! Consideration, nct of costs 1,798 157 1,955 90
! Consideration deferred to future periods (37) (8) (45) -
| Cash disposed of (94) (24) (118) -
i Investment in associated undertaking retained on disposal of subsidiary — — - (13)
: Cash inflow from current year disposals 1,667 125 1,792 73
. Deferred consideration relating to previous disposals 15 15 -

Cash inflow from disposals 1,667 140 1,807 75
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’—- . . . ) SSP Other 2006 2005
8 Disconfinued operations continued £m £m £m £m
Financial performance of discontinued operations
External revenue 1,238 211 1,449 2,321
Operating costs (1,209) (217) (1,426) (2,163)
Exceptional operating costs (note 4) - {47) (47) (43)
Profit before tax 29 (53) (24) 113
Income tax expense (see below) {7) 1 (6) (40)
Profit afier income tax from discontinued operations 22 (52) {30) 73
Reported as exceptional (note 4)

Profit on disposal of net assets of discontinued operations 170 (54) 116 -
Cumulative translation exchange loss (2) - {2) -
Profit on disposal before tax 168 (54) 114 -
Tax {99) 5 {94 -
Total profit after income tax on disposal of net asseis of discontinued operations 69 (49) 20 -
Profit/{loss) for the year of discontinued operations 91 (101) (1 73
ssP Other 2008 2005
£m £m £m £m
Tax from discontinued operations
Income tax expense on discontinued operations:
Current tax (9} 1 (8) {44
Deferred tax 2 - 2 -
Exceptional tax credit {note 4) - - - 4
(7) 1 ) (40)
Tax on disposal of net assets of discontinued operations:
Current tax {117 11 (106) -
Deferred 1ax 18 (6) 12 -
{99) 5 (94) -
(106) 6 {100) {40




54 Compass Group PLC
Annual Repart 2008

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

Attributable Attributable

profit profit
9 Earnings per share mconﬁ mﬁﬁ
Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of the Company 285 195
Add back: loss/{profit) for the vear from discontinued operations 10 (73)
Auributable profit for the year from continuing operations 295 122
Exceptional items net of tax (note 4) (44) 109
Autributable profit for the year from continuing operations before exceptional items 251 231
Hedge accounting ineffecdveness net of tax (7 4
Attributable undetlying profit for the year [rom continuing operations before exceptional items 244 235
Ordinary Crdinary
shares of shares of
10p each 10p each
2006 2005
millions millions
Average number of shares for basic earnings per share 2,147 2,156
Dilutive share options 3 2
Average number of shares for diluted earnings per share 2,150 2,158
Earmings Earnings
per share per share
2006 2005
pence pence
Basic earnings per share
From continuing and discontinued operations 13.3 9.0
From discontinued operations 0.4 (3.3)
From continuing operations 13.7 5.7
Exceptional items {net of tax) (2.0 5.0
From comtinuing operations before exceptional items 11.7 10.7
Hedge accounting ineflectivencss (0.3) 0.2
From underlying cominuing operations before exceptional items 11.4 10.9
Diluted earnings per share
From continuing and discontinued operatons 13.3 9.0
From discontinued operations 0.4 (3.3)
From continuing operations 13,7 5.7
Fxceptional items (net of tax) (2.0} 3.0
From continuing operations before exceptional items 1.7 10.7
Hedge accounting ineffectiveness (0.3) 0.2
From underlying continuing operations before exceptional items 11.4 10.9

The caleulation of carnings per share 1s based on carnings after tax and the weighted average number of shares in issue during the year. The adjusted
underlying earnings per share figures have been caleulated to show the underlying trading performance of the Group and are based on earnings
excluding the effect of goodwill impairment charges, other exceptional items, hedge accounting ineffectiveness and discontinued activities.

2006 2005
.. pence 2006 pence 2005
10 Dividends per share £m per share om
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity sharcholders during the year:
Final dividend for the prior year 6.5 140 6.2 134
Interim dividend lor the current year 3.4 73 3.3 71
4.9 213 9.5 205

A final dividend in respect of 2006 of 6.7 pence per share is to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting on 16 February 2007 giving a total
dividend in respect of 2006 of 10.1 pence per share. These financial statements do not include the accrual for this final dividend.
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11 Goodwill £m
Cost
| At 1 Octaber 2004 4,220
Currency adjustment 35
Additions arising lrom acquisitions 115
Disposals (43)
At 30 September 2005 4,327
Currency adjustment (66)
Additions arising from acquisitions 152
, Reclassified (6}
| Disposals (849)
I At 30 September 2006 3,558
Impairment
Impairment loss recognised in the year ended 30 September 2005 107
At 30 September 2005 107
Impairment loss recognised in the year ended 30 September 2006 -
| AL30 September 2006 107
Net book amounts
Ar 30 Seprember 2006 3.451
At 30 September 2005 4,220

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated at scequisition to the cash generating units {CGUSY) that are expected 10 benefit lrom that
business combinatton. A summary of goodwill aflocation by husiness segment is show below.

2008 2005

£m fm

North America 9038 #49
Continemal Europe 500 607
United Kingdom 1,798 2,511
Rest of the Waorld 245 253
3,451 4,220

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently if” there are indications that goodwill might be impaired. The recoverable
amount of a CGU has heen determined frons value in use caleulations. I'he key assumptions for these calculations are long-term growth rates and
pre-tax discount rates and use cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets and forecasts approved by management covering a
five-year period. Cash flows hevond the five-year period are extrapolated using vstimated groavth rates based on local expeeted cconemic conditions
and do not exceed the long=term average growth rate for tat country, 'The pre-tax discount rates are hased on the Group’s weighted average cost of
capital adjusted for specitic risks relating to the country in which the CGU operates,

Residual Pre-tax

growth rates discount rates

North America 2.0-3.0% 10.9-12,2%
Cominental Europe 09-34% 7.6-11.0%
United Kingdom 2.3% 9.3%
Rest of the Wordd 0.2-13.7%  6.7-21.3%

AL 30 September 2003, before impairment testing, goodwill of £163 million was allocated to the Talian Onama business within the Continental
Europe segment. Due to poor economic conditions that have impacted the profitability of this business, the Group revised its cash flow forecasts for the
lalian CGU and recognised an impairment loss of' £107 million against goodwill. Value in use was caleulated by discounting cash flows at a rate of
9.7%. At 30 September 2006 the recoverable amount of the lalian CGU exceeds the carrying value and no further impairment is considered necessary:
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Contract Computar
12 Other intangible assets mlagnd wﬂw‘r]; T%‘: L
Cost
At 1 October 2004 67 155 222 '
Currency adjustment 2 1 3
Additions 12 6 18
Disposals {4} - 4
Reclassified 4 11 15 l
At 30 September 2005 81 173 254
Currency adjustment (6) (3} "
Additions 16 15 31
Disposals (3) - (3
Business acquisitions N - (n !
Business disposals {3) (20} (23)
Reclassified 10 - 10
At 30 September 2006 94 165 259
Amortisation
At 1 October 2004 19 49 68
Currency adjustment - - -
Charge for the year 7 14 21
Disposals {3) - (3)
At 30 September 2005 23 63 86
Currency adjustment (2) 4] (3
Charge for the year 13 25 38
Disposals m - (1)
Business disposals - (13) (13)
At 30 September 2006 33 74 107
Net book amounts
At 30 September 2006 61 91 152
58 110 168

At 30 Seprember 2005

Contract related intangible assets generally arise when it is economically more efficient for a client 10 purchase assets used in the performance of the

contract and the Group funds these purchases.
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Land and Plantand  Fixtures ang
N buildings machinery fittings Total

13 Property, plant and equipment £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 October 2004 969 1,364 7035 3,038
Currency adjustment 6 14 6 26
Additions 24 204 1N 339
Disposals {26) (114 {79 (219
Business disposals {26) (53) &) (84
Reclassified 26 (69) 30 (13)
At 30 Scptember 2005 973 1,346 768 3,087
Currency adjustment (19) (41) (12) (72)
Additions 22 193 69 284
Disposals (19) (75) (77) (171)
Business acquisitions - - 4 4
Business disposals (679) (328) (283)  (1,290)
Reclassified 15 (59) 28 (16)
At 30 September 2006 293 1,036 497 1,826
Depreciation
At 1 October 2004 191 781 373 1,345
Currency adjustment 3 8 3 14
Charge for the year 26 172 89 287
Disposals (10) (100) (70) (180 -
Business disposals 3 (20 3) @n -
Reclassified 13 (40 18 (9)
At 30 September 2005 220 800 410 1,430
Currency adjustment (8) (26) (7) (41}
Charge for the year 24 152 67 243
Disposals (9) (75) (52) (136)
Business disposals (112) (171) (127 (410)
Reclassified (3) {7 (6) (16)
At 30 September 2006 112 673 285 1,070
Net book armounts
At 30 September 2006 181 363 212 756
At 30 September 2005 753 546 358 1,657
The net book amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment includes, in respect of assets held under finance Yeases, land and buildings
£5 million (2003: £9 million), plant and machinery £39 million (2005: £37 million) and fixtures and fittings £6 million (2003: £3 million),

. 2006 2005
14 Interests in associates &m £m
Cost and net book value
At ] October 45 30
Additions - +
Business disposals (5) -
Investment in associated undertaking retained on disposal of subsidiary - 15
Share of retained profits less losses 2 -
Dividends received (2) €]
Currency and other adjustments n -
At 30 September 39 45

The Group’s principal associate is Au Bon Pain which is incorporated in the USA and whose husiness activity is foodservice. The Group has

a remaining investment of 25%.
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14 Interests in associates continued
The share of the assets, labilities, revenue and profit of the Group’s associates are as lollows:

2006 2005

Em £m

Goodwill 25 31
Assets other than goodwill 36 37
Tenal assets 61 68
Liabilities (22) {23)
Net assets 39 45
Revenue 50 24
Profit for the year 2 —
2008 2005

15 Other investments £m £m
Debenture holdings in sports and leisure venues and other investments 4 4
Other investments 5 2
9 6

16 Joint ventures
. The Group'’s principal joint ventures are:

Country of

% ownership incorporation

GR SA 50 Brazil
ADNH-Compass Middle East LLC 50 United Arab Emirates
Radhakrishna Hospitality Services Lid 30 India
Sofra Yemek Uretim Ve Hizmet AS 54 Turkey

None of these investments is held directly by the ultimate parent company. All joint ventures provide foodservice in their countries of Incorporanon
and make their accounts up to 30 September. Sofra is treated as a joint venture in the Group accounts hecause the parties work with equal powers

tor control the entity.

The share of the assels, liabilities, revenue and profit of the joint ventures which are included in the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

2006 2005

£m £m

Non-curremnt asscts 40 41
Current assets 72 80
Non-curren liahilities (10) (arn
Current liabilities {51) (49)
51 Gl

Revenue 282 234
Expenscs (266) (219
Profit after wax for the year 16 15

Joint ventures have an aggregate of £3 million {2005: £3 million) in contingent liabilities.
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2006 2005
17 Trade and other receivables Cm?:: Nm-cumsi“m1 cwgrr: Non‘cunat
Trade receivables 1,212 4 1,334 5
Less: provision for the impairment of receivables 41) - (53) —
Net trade receivables 1,171 4 1,281 5
Amounts owed by associaes - 1 | 2
Other receivables 151 100 128 117
Prepavments and accrued income 102 12 164 16
1,424 117 1,574 140
Book value of trade receivables approximates 1o their fair value becanse of the short-term nature of the receivables,
There is limited concentration of credit risk with respect 1o trade receivables duc o the diverse and unrelated nature of the Group's customer base.
Debtor davs at 30 September 2006 were 40 days (2005: 38 days).
18 Inventories 2%0:1 2081?
Food and beverage stocks 154 177
Onher stocks 58 76
212 253
19 Cash and cash equivalents 2[::2g 20&51
Clash at bank and in hand 153 210
Short-term bank deposi 695 il
848 281
The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and short-term hank depostis are denominated in the following currencies:
2006 2005
fm £m
Sterling 741 144
US dollar 20 10
Euro 53 58
Japanese yen 3 7
Other 31 62
848 281
20 Short-term and long-term borrowings 2D:Oms 20:03
Short-term
Lovan itotes 33 84
Bank loans 15 16
Bank overdrafis 56 33
Finance leases 15 17
119 150
Long-term
Bonds 1,350 1,416
Loan notes 421 493
Bank loans 22 628
Finance leases 42 43
1,835 2,580
All amounts due under bonds, loan notes and bank facilitics are shown net of unamortised issue costs.
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20 Short-term and long-term borrowings continued

Bonds are unsecured and consist of the following:

* Euro Eurcbond with nominal value €750 million redeemable in 2009 and bearing interest at 6.0% per annum;

+ S1erling Eurobond with nominal value £200 million redeemable in 2010 and bearing interest at 7.125% per annum;

* Sterling Eurobond with nominal value £325 million redeemable in 2012 and bearing interest at 6.375% per annum; and

+ Sterling Eurobond with nominal value £25%0 million redeemable in 2014 and bearing interest at 7.0% per annum,

The bond redeemable in 2014 is recorded at its fair value to the Group on acquisition.

The Group has fixed term, fixed interest private placements totalling US$830 million (£444 million) at interest rates hetween 5.11% and 7.935%.

UUS$465 million ({249 million) is repavable in five to ten years.

Bank overdrafis principally arise as a result of uncleared wransactions. Interest on bank overdrafis is at the relevant money market rates,

Borrowing facilities

The Group had the following undrawn committed facilitics available at 30 September 2006, in respect of which all conditons precedent had

then been met,

2006 2005
£m £m
Expiring between two and five years 960 997
Subsequent to the vear end, the facility available has been reduced to 644 million.
The maturity profile at 30 September 2006 of the carrying amount of the Group’s borrowings (excluding finance leases) was as follows:
2006 2005
£m £m
Within one year, or on demand 104 133
Between one and two years 7 58
Between two and three years 606 62
Between three and four vears 228 635
Between four and five yvears 72 755
In more than five vears 880 1,027
1,897 2,670
The fair value and the carrving value lor berrowings (excluding finance luases) was as follows:
2008 2005
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
£m £m £m £m
€750m Furobond 2009 519 531 539 538
£200m Eurobond 2010 204 208 211 214
£325m Eurobond 2012 339 333 369 341
£250m Eurobond 2014 288 266 297 274
US private placements 448 478 567 588
Otlier loan notes 6 6 10 7
Bank loans 37 36 644 646
Overdrafis 56 36 33 33
1,897 1,914 2,670 2,661
Finance lease payments [all due as follows:
2006 2005
€m £m
Within one vear 18 19
In two to five vears 35 37
In more than five vears 11 10
64 66
Less; future finance charges (7) (6)
Present value of finance lease liabilities 57 60
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The present value of finance leascs consists oft

2006 2005
m £m

Within one year 15 17 :
In two to five years 33 35
In more than five vears 9 8
Present value of finance lease liabilitics 57 60

rase liabilites are effectively secured as the rights to the leased asset revert to the lessor in the event of default. The directors consider that the net
present value of finance leases approximates to their fair value.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s gross borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:

Finance 2006 Finance 2005
Borrowir;:g"sl Iea?zenf_s‘ Tc;:t'?‘l Bor'rolwu;:gms leas‘;: Toctr?: l
Sterling 849 3 852 884 5 889
US dollar 481 25 506 682 23 705
Euro 525 22 547 544 21 565
Japanese yen 22 1 23 121 l 122
Other 20 6 26 439 10 449
1,897 57 1,954 2,670 60 2,730

21 Derivative financial instruments
Finangial risk management
The Group continues to manage its interest rate and foreign currency exposure in accordance with the policies sct out below:

The Group’s financial instruments comprise cash, borrowings, trade debiors and trade creditors that are used 10 finance the Group's operations.

The Group also uses derivatives, principally interest rate and currency swaps and forward currency contracts, 0 manage interest rate and currency
risks arising from the Group’s operations. The Group does not trade in financial instruments. The Group's treasury policies are designed to mitigate the
impact of Ructuations in interest rates and exchange rates and to minimise the Group's financial risks. The Board approves any changes to the policy.

|
[
The Group’s policy is to match its principal projected cash flows by currency o actual or effective borrowings in the same currency. ‘
I
‘
|
‘
|

Liguidity risk
The Group finances its borrowings from a number of sources including the bank and public and US private placement markets.

Foreign currency risk

The Group's policy is to match its principal projected cash flows by currency to actual or effective borrowings in the same currency. As currency
earnings are generated, they are used to service and repay debt in the same currency. For the period of the currency loans, therefore, the objective
is to achieve an effective foreign currency hedge in real economic terms, Where necessary, o implement this policy, currency swaps are taken out
which, when applied to the actual currency liabilities, convert these 1 an cffective amount borrowed by currency.

The berrowings in each currency give rise (o foreign exchange differences on translation into sterling. As the borrowings are either less than, or equate
to, the net investment in overseas operations, these exchange rate movements are treated as movements on reserves and recorded in the statement of
recognised income and expense rather than in the income statcment,

Overseas carnings streams are transtated at the average rate of exchange for the year. Fluctuadons in exchange rates have given and will continue
to give rise to translation differences. The business is, however, materially protecied from any adverse cconomic or cash effects through the matching
of cash flows wo currency borrowings.

Interest rate risk

As detailed above, the Group has effective borrowings in a number of currencies and its policy is to ensure that, in the short-term, it is not materially
exposed to fluctuations in interest rates in its principal currencies. The Group implements this policy either by borrowing fixed rate debt or by using
interest rate swaps so that at least 80% of the Group’s projected debt is fixed for one vear, reducing to 60% fixed for the second year and 40% fixed for
the third year,

Hedging activities |
Fair value hedges :
The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge the fair value of fixed rate borrowings. These instruments swap the fixed interest payable on the \
borrowings into floating interest rates and hedge the fair value of the bond against changes in interest rates.
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21 Derivative financial instruments continued
Cash flow hedges

The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge the cash flows from fleating rate borrowings. These instruments swap floating interest payable on these
borrowings into fixed interest rates and hedge against cash flow changes caused by changing interest rates. The cash flows and income statement
impact hedged in this manner will occur between one and three vears of the balance sheet date. The SSP disposal proceeds were used to repay

floating rate borrowings in June 2006, which effectively terminated the cash flow hedges previously in place.

Net investment hedges

The Group uses foreign currency denominated debt, forward foreign exchange contracts and a cross currency interest rate swap to hedge against
the change in sterling value of its foreign currency denominated net assets due 1o movements in foreign exchange rates.

Derivatives not in a hedging refationship

The Group has a number of derivative financial instruments that do not meet the criteria for hedge accounting These include interest rate swaps,

forward foreign exchange contracts, a cross currency swap and tax cqualisation swaps.

All derivative financial instruments are shown at fair value in the balance sheet. The fair values have been determined by reference o prices available
from the markets on which the instruments are traded. All other fair values shown above have been calculated by discounting cash flows at prevailing

interest rates.

Cument  Non-current Current  Non-current
assets assets liakilties liabilities
£m Em £m £m
30 September 2006
Interest rawe swaps:
« fair value hedges - 22 - (18)
+ cash flow hedges - - - -
* not in a hedging relationship 9 - (b -
Cross currency swap:
* not in a hedging relatonship - - (1) -
Tax equalisation swaps:
* not in a hedging relatonshap - - - -
9 22 () (18)
Current  Non-current Current  Non-current
assets assets liabilities liabilities
£m £m £m £m
30 September 2005
Interest rate swaps:
» fair value hedges - 44 - (2)
» cash flow hedges 2 - (0 -
= not in a hedging relationship - - (7) -
Cross currency swap:
« not in a hedging reladionship - - (9 -
Tax equalisation swaps:
+ not in a hedging reladonship - - (3) -
2 44 (20) )
The notional amounts of the Group’s derivative instruments are denominated in the following currencies:
2006 2005
Fair value Cash flow Fair value Cash flow
swaps SWaps swaps swaps
£m £m £m m
Sterling 775 - 775 50
US dollar 236 375 276 378
Fure 339 156 340 214
Japanese yen 21 68 28 80
Other - 223 - 258
1,371 822 1,419 980
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The effective denomination of the Group’s borrowings afier the effeet of derivative insiruments is:

2006 2005
Forwards and Effective Forwards ang Elfective
Gross cross currency  cumency of Gross cross cumency currency of
bormowings swaps borrowings borrowings swaps borrowings
£m £m £m €m £m £m
Sterting 851 (526) 325 877 (37) 840
US dollar 506 375 881 703 227 932
Euro 547 (205) 342 565 (100} 465
Japanese ven 23 58 81 122 {9) 113
Other 26 299 325 449 (69) 380
1,953 1 1,954 2,718 12 2,730
Between Between Between Between
Less than one and two and three and four and Over five
one year two years three years four years five years years Total
£m £m £m €m £m £m £m
30 September 2006
Fixed interest:
€750m Eurobond 2009 — - 509 - - - 509
£200m Eurobond 2010 - - - 201 - - 201
£325m Eurobond 2012 - - - - - 325 325
£250m Eurobond 2014 - - - - - 250 250
US private placements 27 - 81 19 68 247 442
Bank loans 5 4 4 4 4 - 21
32 4 594 224 72 822 1,748
Cash flow swaps (fixed leg) 535 287 - - - - 822
Fair vatuc swaps (fixed leg) (52) (1) (424) {454) (5) {432) (1,371}
Fixed interest labilitv/{asset) 515 287 170 (2300 67 390 1,199
Floating interest:
Bank loans 11 3 - - - 2 16
Overdrafis 56 - - - - - 56
Other loans 6 - - - - - 6
73 3 - - - 2 78
Cash flow swaps (lloating leg) {535) (287) - - - (822)
Fair value swaps (floating leg) 52 4 424 454 5 432 1,371
Floating interest {assct)/lability (410) (280) 424 454 5 434 627
Finance lease obligations 15 14 10 6 3 9 57
Fair value adjustments 1o borrowings - - (10) - - 29 19
Derivative linancial instruments (7 - 11 (18) - 3 (1)
Swap monctisation - - 22 4 - 25 51
Cross currency swaps (1} — - - - 2 1
7 14 33 (8) 3 68 117
Gross debt 112 21 627 216 75 892 1,943
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\
‘ Between Batween Between Between
Less than  one and two two anct three and four and Over
‘ one year years three years four years five years five years Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
\ 30 September 2005
I Fixed interest:
‘L €750m Eurobond 2009 - - - 511 - - 511
‘t £200m Eurobond 2010 - - - - 201 - 201
£325m Eurobond 2012 - - - - - 325 325
E £250m Eurcbond 2014 - - - - - 250 250
. US private placements 74 28 - 88 20 349 559
" Bank loans 5 5 5 5 4 4 28
79 33 3 604 225 928 1,874
Cash flow swaps (fixed leg) 374 356 30 - - - 980
Fair value swaps (fixed leg) (30 {56) (5) {(431) {455} (442) (1,419
* Fixed interest liability/{asset) 423 533 50 173 {230 486 1,435
; Floating interest:
Bank loans 13 26 57 - 319 1 616
Overdrafts 33 - - - - - 33
Other loans 10 - - - - - 10
56 26 57 - 519 1 659
Cash flow swaps (floating leg) (374) (536) (50) - - - {980
Fair value swaps (floating leg) 30 56 5 431 455 442 1,419
Floating interest (asser)/liahility (288) (474) 12 431 974 443 1,098
Finance lease obligations 17 14 10 6 5 8 60
Fair value adjustments to borrewings - - - - 6 49 55
Derivative financial instruments 18 (2) - - (31) (9) (24)
Swap menetisation 4 - - 31 5 30 70
Cross currency swaps (6) (1 - - - 19 12
33 11 10 37 (15) 97 173
| Gross debt 168 70 72 641 729 1,026 2,706

Gross debt is defined as denvative financial instruments, overdrafts, bank and other borrowings and finance leases.

2006 2005

Current  Non-current Current  Non-gurrgnt

22 Trade and other payables £m £m £m £m
Trade pavables 777 4 993 3
Amounts owed to associates - - 2 1
Social security and ather taxes 176 - 213 -
Other pavables 210 28 280 35
Deferred consideration on acquisitions 20 3 12 15
Liability on put options held by minority equity partners 9 8 147 17
Accruals and deferred income 798 3 790 -
1,990 46 2,437 71

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to their fair value.

Creditor days at 30 September 2006 were 55 days (2005: 57 days).
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Provisions in
respect of
disposed Onerous Legal and

L Ingurance businesses contracts  other claims Environmental Total
23 Provisions £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 October 2005 59 - 24 59 11 153
Reclassified 67 - 14 (10 (1) 70
Expenditure in the year {40} (1) (1) (5) - (47
Charged to income statement 45 109 8 - - 162
Credited to income staterment ) - - {1) (5) - (6)
Transferred to post-cmployment benelit obligations (20} - - - - (20}
Currency adjustment 1) — - (1) — (5)
At 30 September 2006 107 108 44 38 10 307

Provisions analysed as follows:
2006 2005
£m £m
Non-current 242 143
Current 65 10
307 153

Insurance relates to the costs of self-funded insurance schemes and is essentially long-term in nature.

Provisions in respect of disposed businesses relate to estimated amounts payahle in connection with onerous contracts and claims arising from disposals
completed during the year. The finat amount payable remains uncertain as, at the date of approval of these financial statements, there remains a
further peried during which claims may be received. The timing of any settlement will depend upon the nature and extent of claims received.

Onerous contracts represent the labilites in respect of short-term and long-term leases on unoccupied properties and other contracts lasting under
five years.

Legal and other claims relate principally to provisions for the estimated cost of litigation and sundry other claims. The timing of the settlement
of these claims is uncertain.

Environmental provisions are in respect ol potential liabilities relating to the Group’s responsibibity for matntaining its operating sites in accordance
with statutory requirements and the Group’s aim to have a low impact on the environment. These provisions are expected to be utilised as operating
sites are disposed of or as other events arise.

24 Post-employment benefit obligations

Pension schemes operated

The Group operates a numbcer of pension arrangements throughout the world which have been developed in accordance with statutory requirements
and local customs and practices, The majority of schemes are self administered and the schemes’ assets are held independently of the Group’s
finances. Pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of independent, professionally qualified actuaries. The Group makes employer
contributions 1o the various schemes in existence within the range of 6%-35% of pensionable salaries.

The contributions payable for defined contribution schemes of £33 million (2005: £26 million) have been fully expensed against profits in the
CUTTEIN YCar.

UK schemes

Within the UK there are three main arrangements:

= Compass Group Pension Plan, ‘the Plan’;

» Compass Pension Scheme, ‘the Scheme’; and

» Compass Retirement Income Savings Plan, ‘CRISP.

CRISP was launched on | February 2003. This is the main vehicle for pension provision for new joiners in the UK but existing members of the
Plan and the Scheme will continue te accrue henefits under those arrangements, CRISP is a contracted-in money purchase arrangement whereby
the Group will maich employee contributions up o 6% of pay (minimum 3%). Within CRISP there has been a new defined contribution section
established from April 2006 known as the Gompass Higher Income Plan, ‘CHIP’. Senior cmployees who contribute 1o CRISP er 1o the Plan or
Scheme will receive an additional employer-only contribution into CHIP The amount of contribution and cligibility for CHIP are decided annually
at the Company’s discretion. The payment towards CHIP may be taken as a cash supplement instead of a pension contribution.

The Plan and the Scheme are defined benefit arrangements that are closed to new entrants other than for transfers under public sector contracts
where the Group is obliged to provide final salary benefits 1o transferring emplovees. Such transferees enter into special sectons of the Plan, known
collectively as ‘the GAD sections’, which have been certified by the Government Actuary’s Department as ‘broadly comparable’ to the relevant public
sector scheme. The Plan and the Scheme are operated on a prefunded basis, The funding policy is to contribute such variable amounts, on the advice
of the Actuary, as achleves a 100% funding level on a projecied salary basis, The actuarial assessments covering expense and contributions are carried
out by independent qualified acluaries.
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Formal actuarial valuations of the Plan and the Scheme are carried out cvery three years. The most recent valuations were as at 5 April 2004.
The Plan and the Scheme are reappraised annually by independent actuaries in accordance with IAS 19 requirements.

The Scheme was set up from | February 2001 to mirror the Granada Pension Scheme and accept the seamless transfer of pension rights for the
former Granada Compass plc employees who transferred to Gompass Group PLC. All accrued rights in respect of the Granada Pension Scheme
of and in respect of the employees and former employees (including pensioners) of, or who are attributed to, the hospitality businesses previously
owned by Granada Compass plc were transferred to the Scheme together with an agreed share of all the assets of the Granada Pension Scheme
under the terms of a specific agreement. The share of assets was determined on a ‘share of fund’ basis, whereby the assets transferred were in the
same proportion of all the relevant assets of the Granada Pension Scheme as the liabilities transferred to the Scheme bear to the whole of the
relevant liabilities of the Granada Pension Scheme. This has been calculated as a lictdle under 30% as agreed between the actuaries of the respective
Schemes. Interim transfers were made in 200 and 2003. The final adjustments resulted in a further transfer of assets of £3.5 millien which was
received in May 2006.

With effect from 6 April 2006, after a thorough review by the Group, the pensions accruing under both the Plan and the Scheme for future service
{other than for the protected members in the GAD sections) were reduced so that all members now accrue future benefits on an 80th of final salary
basis. In addition, the Group has announced that increases to pensionable pay will be no more than 5% p.a., or the increase in the Retail Price Index
if' lower. This, together with additional funding {including a lump sum of £280 million {rom the proceeds of the SSP and Sirand Palace hotel disposals)
and a reduction in the risk profile of Investments, means that the Group has taken appropriate measures to control future pension costs in the UK.

Overseas schemes

In the USA the main plan is a defined benefit plan. The funding policy, in accordance with government guidelines, is to contribute such variable
amounts, on the advice of the actuary, as achieves a 100% funding level on a projected salary basis. In the Netherlands the Group operates insured
defined benefit pension plans where the Group contributions represent the insurance companies’ assessment of the annual cost of the benefits earned
in that year. In Canada, Norway and Switzerland the Group participates in funded defined benefit arrangements.

In other countries Group employees participate primarily in state arrangements to which the Group makes the appropriate contributions.

The defined benefit schemes are closed to new entrants. For these schemes the current service cost will increase under the projected unit credit method
as the members of the schemes approach retirement.

Disclosures showing the assets and labilities of the schemes are set out below. These have been calculated on the following assumptions:

UK schermes U3 schemes Other schemes

At 30 At 30 At 30 At 30 At 30 At 30 At 30 At 30 At 30

September Septernbaer September Septernber September September September Septermnber September

2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004

Rate of increase in salaries 2.8%/3.3%%* 3.2% 3.2% 4.0% 4 0% 4.0% 2.7% 2.6% 2.8%
Rate of increase for pensions in payment 2.8% 3.0% 3.0% 2.5% 2.4% 2.4% 0.7% 0.8% 0.8%
Rate of increase for deferred pensions 2.8%/3.0%* 2.7% 2.7% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.7% 0.8% 0.8%
Discount rate 5.0% 52.0% 5.6% 5.8% 5.5% 6.0% 3.9% 3.8% 4.9%
Inflation assumpiion 2.8% 2.7% 2.7% 2.5% 2.4% 2.3% 1.8% 1.8% 1.9%

* Varies according to the benefit structure.

The mortality tables used in the actianal valuation imply life expectancy at age 63 in years for typical members as follows:

Male Male Female Female
non-pensioner pensionar non-pensioner pensioner

UK schemes
At 30 September 2006 20.9 years 19.7 years 23.7 years 22.6 years
At 30 September 2005 194 vears 17.8 vears 22.4 years 20.7 years
Male Female

US schemes
At 30 September 2006 18.1 years 20.4 years
At 30 September 2005 16.7 years 21.3 years
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The long-term rate of return and the market value of plan assets at the balance sheet date is as follows:

UK schemes US schemes Other schemes Total
Expected Expected Expected
return £m return £m return £m £m
30 September 2006
Equity instruments 1.7% 401 8.7% 47 6.4% 45 493
Debt instruments 4.7% 764 5.6% 20 3.5% 81 865
Other 4.5% 9 4.4% 1 4,1% 40 50
Teral plan assets 5.7% 1,174 7.8% 68 4.5% 166 1,408
Present value of funded obligations (1,241) (91) (187) (1,519)
Present value of unfunded obligations (28) {64) (79) (171)
Liahility in the balance sheet {95) (87) (100} (282)
UK schemes LIS schemes Other schemes Total
Expected Expected Expected
return £m return £m return £m £m
30 September 2005
Equity instruments 7.5% 489 8.3% 53 6.2% 44 586
Debt instruments 4.5% 305 5.0% 17 3.4% 65 387
Other 4.0% 18 3.9% 1 3.0% 48 67
Total plan assets 6.3% 812 7.4% 71 4.0% 157 1,040
Present value of funded obligations {1,155) (96) (176) (1,427)
Present value of unfunded obligations (24) (70 (74 (168)
Liability in the balance sheet (367) {95} (93} (535)
The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows:
2008 2005
UK us Other Total UK us Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Current service cost 19 3 16 38 21 3 15 39
Past service credit - (2) - {2) - - - -
Curtailment credit {6) (6) - {(12) - - - -
Charged/{credited) to operating expenses 13 (5) 16 24 21 3 15 39
Amount charged to pension liability 59 9 8 76 54 8 9 71
Expected return on plan assets (54) (5) (6) (65) {46) {4 (7} {(57)
Charged to finance costs 5 4 2 11 8 4 2 14
Total pension costs/{credits) 18 (1) 18 35 29 7 17 53
The movements in the fair value of pension plan assets recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:
2006 2005
UK us Other Total UK us Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 October 812 71 157 1,040 672 60 140 872
Currency adjustment - 4) (8) (12) - 2 2 4
Expected return on plan assets 54 5 6 65 46 4 7 37
Actuarial gain/(loss) 27 - 12 39 74 2 (1 75
Employee contributions 5 - 4 9 6 - 4 10
Employer contributions 314 5 10 329 45 11 Il 67
Asset transfer from Granada scheme 3 - - 3 - - - -
Benefits paid (41) (9} (6} (56) (31) (8} {7 (46}
{Disposals)/acquisitions - - (9} {9) - - 1 !
At 30 September 1,174 68 166 1,408 812 7l 157 1,040
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The movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

2006 2005

UK Us Other Total UK us Other Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 October 1,179 166 250 1,595 932 143 222 1,317
Currency adjustment - (% {9 {18} - 4 3 7
Total expense charged in the income statement 72 4 24 100 75 11 24 110
Actuarial loss 35 5 16 76 177 16 39 232
Employee contributions 5 - 4 9 6 - 4 10
Benefits paid (41) {9 (6) {56) {30) 8 ] {45
Benefits paid by the Group (B - {6) {(7) m - {7) 8
Disposals - - (23) (23) - - (8) {
Transfer from/(to) provisions - - 20 20 - - (200 {20
Reclassified - {2) {4) (6) - - - -
At 30 September 1,269 155 266 1,690 1,179 166 250 1,595

The history of experience adjustments is as follows. In accordance with the transitional provisions for the amendments to [AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’
issued on 16 December 2004, the disclosures below are determined prospectively from the 2005 reporting period.

2006 2008

£m £m

Present value of defined benefit plan liabilites 1,690 1,595

Tair value of plan assets (1,408) (1,040

Net deficit 282 555
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities — {loss) (14 (8} :
Fxperience adjustments on plan assets — gain 39 75

The Group made total contributions of £329 million in the year (including special contributions of disposal proceeds to pension plans of
£280 million) and expects to make regular ongoing contributions of £45 million in 2007,

The expected return on plan assets is based on market expectations at the beginning of the period. The actual return on assets was £104 million

(2005: £132 million).

The cumulative actuarial loss recognised in the statement of recognised income and expense was £ 194 million (2005: £157 million). An actuarial loss

of £37 million (2005: £157 million) was recognised during the year.

2006 2008
25 Called up share capital Number £m Number om
Authorised:
— Ordinary shares of 10p cach 3,000,010,000 300 3,000,010,000 300
Allotted and fully paid:
— Ordinary shares of 10p each 2,098,723,901 210 2,155,661,135 216

Number of shares

Ordinary shares of 10p each allotted as at 1 October 2005 2,155,661,135
Ordinary shares allotted during the year on exercise of share options 743,766
Repurchase of ordinary sharc capital {57,681,000)
Ordinary shares of 10p each allotted as at 30 September 2006 2,098,723,901

Share option schemes

During the year 7,813,300 options were granted under the Compass Group Management Share Option Plan. All options were granted over the
Company’s ordinary shares and the grant price was equivalent to the market value of the Company’s shares at the date of grant. No options werc

granted under any of the Company’s other share option plans.
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At 30 September 2006, employees held options over a total of 147 078,175 ordinary shares under all of the Group’s share option plans as follows:

Nurmber of shares Ogption price per share (pence} Exercisable
Executive and Management Share Option Plans
84,476 314.98 10 December 1999 — )9 December 2006
157,724 324.91 17 December 2000 — 16 December 2007
249,278 338.27 11 December 2001 — 10 December 2008
69,244 444.76 17 June 2002 = 16 June 2009
6,167,750 312.80* 16 September 2002 — 15 September 2009
1,738,663 316.10% 29 September 2002 — 28 September 2009
580,874 391.70 25 November 2002 — 24 November 2009
13,849 431.40 22 December 2002 — 21 December 2009
335,072 394.00* 3 I'ebruary 2003 — 2 February 2010
160,616 413.00 8 February 2003 — 7 February 2007
15,052,349 371.60 13 September 2003 — 12 September 2010
515,000 524.50 28 May 2004 - 27 May 2011
11,222,300 430.00 19 September 2004 - i8 Seprember 2011
12,776,450 422.00 23 May 2005 — 22 May 2012
4,880,300 292.50 30 September 2005 — 29 Sepiember 2012
1,191,900 313.75 4 December 2005 — 3 December 2012
19,022,150 320.00 28 Mayv 2006 — 27 May 2013
203,750 356.00 3 December 2006 — 2 December 2013
2,271,300 356.00 3 December 2006 — 2 December 2013
1,450,000 333.50 7 June 2007 = 6 June 2014
1,500,000 316.25 3 August 2007 — 2 August 2014
15,579,760 316.23 3 August 2007 — 2 August 2014
4,335,000 229.25 1 December 2007 — 30 November 2014
21,712,176 229,25 I December 2007 — 30 November 2014
7,513,300 210.00 14 December 2008 — 13 December 2015
215,000 234.50 12 June 2009 — 11 June 2016
129,018,281

* Options granted over ordinary shares in Compass Group Holdings PLG CCGH?). Under its articles of association, any CGH ordinary shares which are issued on exercise are antomatically
transferred to the Company in consideration of the issue of Compass Gronp PLE ordinary shares on the basis o 1,835 for every GGH share, Numbers and prices given are relative 1o
Compiss Group PLE.

Number of shares Option price per share (pence) Exercisable
UK and International Sharesave Plans
744,709 436.00 1 September 2006 — 28 February 2009
84,571t 436.00 1 September 2006 — 28 February 2007
596,969 336.00 1 September 2005 — 28 February 2010
310,797t 336.00 1 September 2005 — 28 February 2008
724,582 290.20 1 September 2006 — 28 February 2011
596,132t 290.20 I September 2006 — 28 February 2000
1,367 941 266.80 1 September 2007 — 28 Febrvary 2012
1,316,8661 266.80 1 September 2007 — 28 Febraary 2012
1,618,746t 266.80 1 September 2007
35,132t 266.80 4 Seprember 2007
5,029,777 179.20 1 September 2008 — 28 February 2013
1,895,921t 179.20 1 September 2008 ~ 28 February 2011
3,616,028t 179.20 1 Scptember 2008
121,7231 179.20 1 Scptember 2008
18,059,894

1 Options grunted under the international sharesave plan represent apprecintion sights over the number of shares shown. In the event of exercise, holders will receive a number of shares cadeulated
by reference to the inerease in the market price m the time of exercise over the option price.




70 Compass Group PLC
Annual Report 2006

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Comparny

Share Capital
Share premium  redemption Own Other Retained Minority

. . . capital account reserva shares reserves earnings interests Total

26 Reconciliation of movements in equity £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At | October 2004 216 93 9 (n 4,011 {2,072) 13 2,269

* Total recognised income and expense - - - - 21 71 14 106
Issue of shares - | - - - - - 1
Fair value of share-based payments - - - - 45 - - 45
Transfer on exercise of put options - - - - 60 2 - 62
Other changes - - - - - - 9 9
216 94 9 o] 4,137 {1,999) 36 2,492
Dividends patd w0 Gompass sharcholders - - - - - (205} - (205)
Dividends patd to minority interest - - - - - - (% {9)
At 30 Seprember 2005 216 94 9 (1) 4,137 (2,204) 27 2,278
At | October 2005 216 94 9 (1} 4,137 (2,204) 27 2,278
Total recognised income and expense - - - - (12) 260 6 254

' Issue of shares - 2 - - - - - 2
~ Fair value of share-based payments - - - - 25 - - 25
* Share buy-back {(6) - 6 - - (149) - (149)
Transfer on exercise of put options - - - - 138 3 (10) 131
Other changes - — - 1 - - (6) {3)
210 96 15 - 4,288 {2,090) 17 2,536
Dividends paid to Compass sharcholders - - - - - (213) - (213)
Dividends paid to minority interest - - — — - — (11) (1
At 30 September 2006 210 96 15 - 4,288 (2,303) 6 2,312

Own shares held by the Group represent 161,600 shares in Compass Group PLC (2005: 827,458 shares). All shares are held by the Compass Group
Employee Share Trust ({ESOP". Thesc shares arc listed on a recognised stock exchange and their market value at 30 September 2006 was £0.4 million

(2005: £2 million). The nominal value held at 30 September 2006 was £16,000 (2005:

The ESOP is a discretionary trust for the benefit of employees and the shares held are

L£80,000),

used to satisfy some of the Group’s liabilities to employees

for share options, share bonus and long-term incentive plans. All of the shares held by the ESOP are required 1o be made available in this way,

The analysis of other reserves is shown below.

Share-based adjusfr?’lﬂr?t'

payment Merger Translation Hedging for put Total other

reserve reserva resarve reserva options rosonves

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Other reserves

At 1 Octaber 2004 () 4,170 - (1) {215) 4,011
Towal recognised income and expense - - 16 5 - 21
Fair value of share-based payments 45 - - - - 45
Exercise of put options - — - - 60 60
At 30 September 2005 105 4,170 16 1 {153) 4,137
At | October 2005 105 4,170 16 1 {155) 4,137
Total recognised income and expense - - (11) (1} - (12)
Fair value of share-based payments 25 - - - - 25
Transfer on exercise of put options - - - - 138 138
At 30 September 2006 130 4,170 5 - (17) 4,288

The merger reserve arose in 2000 following the demerger from Granada Compass ple.
for the options held by the Group’s minerity partners requiring the Group to purchase

The equity adjustment for put options arose on the accounung
those minority interests.
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Share options

Full details of the Compass Group Share Option Plan (‘Option Plan’}, the Management Share Option Plan (*Managemen: Plan’ and the

Savings-related Share Option Scheme can be found in the Remuneration Committee’s Report.

The following tables illustrate the number and weighted average excrcise prices of, and movements in, share options during the year

2006 2005
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number of exercise price Number of exercise price
share aptions pence share options pence

Executive and management schemes — options
Qutstanding at 1 October 140,634,118 330.33 120,695,128 356.41
Granted 7,813,300 210.67 28,796,776 229.25
Exercised (600,725) 229.09 (15,0000 22925
Forfeited {18,759,168) 346.29 (3,054,641) 372.80
Expired (69,244) 310.29 (5,788,145) 349,01
Outstanding at 30 September 129,018,281 321.25 140,634,118 3530.33
Exercisable at 30 September 35,215,845 380.21 65,994,432 380.42

The balance above includes options over 36,367,195 shares (2005: 45,644,964 shares) that were granted on or before 7 November 2002 and had vested
by 1 October 2004. These options have not been subsequently modified and therefore do not need to be accounted for in accordance with IFRS 2.

2006 2005
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number of exgrcise price Number of exercise price
share options pence share options pence

Employee savings-related schemes - options
Outstanding at 1 Ocober 12,191,328 242.24 11,765,067 321.73
Granted - - 06,700,140 179.20
Exercised (48,937) 179.20 - -
Forfeited (2,797,940) 231.14  (6,273,879) 32399
Expired (880,473)  336.00 ~ -
Outstanding at 30 September 8,463,978 236.51 12,191,328 242.24
Exercisable at 30 September 1,023,142 376.32 880,473 336.00

The balance above includes options over 744,709 shares (2005: 877,687 shares) that were granted on or hefore 7 Noverber 2002 and had vested by
1 October 2004. These options have not been subsequently modified and therefore de not need to be accounted for in accordance with ITFRS 2.

2006 2005
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number of exercise price Number of exercise price
share options pence share options pance

Employee savings-related schemes — share appreciation rights
OQutstanding at | October 15,140,626 235.29 17,348,105 302.61
Granted - - 8,104,414 179.20
Exercised (3,354) 179.20 (3,2100  294.22
Forfeited (3,545,071) 244.30  (5,028,256) 278.70
Expired (1,996,285) 290.20 (5,280,427) 329.00
Outstanding at 30 September 9,595,916 220.56 15,140,626 235.29
Exercisable at 30 Sepiember 84,571 436.00 - -

Options granted under the international savings-related schemes represent appreciation rights over the number of shares shown, When exercised,
lolders receive a number of shares caleulated by reference to the increase in the market price at that time over the aption price {as shown in the table

above). Any remaining share appreciation rights are shown in the table above as expired.

Infoermation relating to all option schemes

The weighted average share price at the date of excrcise for share options excrcised during the year was 263.8 pence (2005: 245.3 pence).

The options outstanding at the end of the year have a weighted average remaining contractual life of 6.4 years (2003: 7.1 years) for executive and

management schemes and 2.5 years (2005: 3.2 years) for employee schemes.
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For 2006, options were granted on 14 December 2005 and 12 June 2006, The estimated fair value of options granted on those dates are 42.0 pence
and 45.9 pence respectively, For 2005, opuions were granted on 1 December 2004 and | September 20045, The estimated average fair value of these
options was 63.8 pence and 47.8 pence respectively.

Fair values for the executive and management schemes were calculated using a binomial distribution option pricing model so that proper allowance

is made for the presence of performance conditons and the possibility of early exercise. In addition, a Monte Carlo simulation model was used to
estimate the probability of performance conditions being met. Fair values for options granted under employee savings-related schemes were calculated
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The inputs to the option pricing models are reassessed for each grant. The following assumptions were
used in calculating the fair value of options granted:

Executive schemes Employee schermes
2006 2005 2006

Historical voladility 31.6% 34.8% - 32.7%
Risk free interest rate 4.3% 4.6% - 4.1%
Dividend yield 4.6% 4+.0% - 4.1%
Expecied life 7.0 years 7.4 ycars — 3.6 vears
Weighted average share price at date of grant 212p 233p - 235p
Weighted average option exercise price 211p 229 - 179p

Long-Term Incentive Plan
Full details of the Compass Group Long-Term Incentive Plan (‘LTIP") can be found in the Remuneration Committee’s Report.

The following table shows the movement in share awards during the year.

2006 2005
Number of Number of
shares shares

Long-Term Incentive Plan
Qutstanding at 1 October 5,669,951 4911161
Awarded 3,189,460 2,067,940
Excrcised (90,750) {239,900)
Forfeited or waived (1,629,107) {868,152)
Lapsed {956,427) (201,088)
Outstanding at 30 September 6,183,127 5,669,951
Exercisable at 30 September 253,626 344,376

Vesting of LTIP awards made before September 2005 and 50% of LTIP awards made in the year to 30 September 2006 are dependent on the
Group’s performance relative to a comparator group of companies comprising the FTSE 100 index. This is treated as a market-based condition for
valuation purposes and an assessment of the vesting probability was built into the grane date fair value calculations. This assessment was calculated
using a Maonte Carlo simulation option pricing model.

The remaining 50% of awards made in the year to 30 September 2006 depend on the achievement of the Group Free Cash Flow ({GFCF’) target for
the three years from 1 Ocrober 2005 to 30 Scptember 2008, 25% of the award will vest it GFCF of at least £825 million is achieved over the period
and the full award will vest if GFCF of £900 million is achieved. Awards will vest on a straight-line basis between these two points. The fair value of
these awards was calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, the vesting probability being assessed based on a simulation model of the

GFCF forceast.
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for LTTP awards cxercised during the year was 225.5 pence (2003: 237.5 pence).
The LTIP awards ousstanding at the end of the year have a weighted average remaining contractual life of 1.6 years (2005: 1.7 years).

In 2006, LTIP awards were made on 14 June 2006. The estimated fair value of awards granted on that date was 120 pence. In 2005, ETTP awards
were made on 21 December 2004, The estimated average fair valuc of these awards was 27 pence,

The inputs to the option pricing model are reassessed for each award. The following assumptions were used in calculating the fair value of LTIP
awards madc during the vear:

2006 2005
Historical volatilicy 28.2% 34.8%
Risk free interest rate 4.7% 4.5%
Dividend yield 4.3% 3.8%
Expected life 2.3 years 2.8 vears

Weighted average share price at date of grant 206.3p 243.5p
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Long-Term Bonus Plan

Certain executives participating in the Long-Term Bonus Plan in prior years reccived an award of deferred Compass Group PLC shares.
The award of bonus shares is subject 10 performance conditdons and matching shares may be released by the Company following completion
of a further peried of service.

The following table illustrates the movement in the number of awards during the vear.

2006 2005
Number of Number of
shares shares

Long-Term Bonus Plan
Outstanding at 1 October 9,984,014 7,575,022
Awarded 174,628 4,543,056
Vested {958,590) (1,524,106)
Lapsed {cash settled} (1,947,501) (112,923)
Forfeited {738,234) (497,035)
Outstanding at 30 September 6,514,317 9984014

Fair values for bonus shares granted during the vear were calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The inputs o the option pricing
models are reassessed for each grant. The following assumptions were used in calculating the fair value of options granted:

2006 2005
Historical volatility 35.9% 37.3%
Risk free interest rate 4.8% 4.1%
Dividend yield 4.0% 2. 4%
Expected hfe 3.0 years 3.0 years
Weighted average share price at date of grant 220p 354p

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share botus awards vesting during the year was 21 1.5 pence {(2005: 239.8 pence).
The share bonus awards outstanding at the end of the year have a weighted average remaining contractual life of 0.6 years {2005: 1.2 years).

For 2006, awards were made in December 2005, The estimated fair value of awards granted on that date was 265 pence. For 2005, share bonus
awards were macle in December 2004, The estimated average fair value of these awards was 374 pence.

income statement expense and carrying value
The Group recognised expenses of £21 million (2005; £41 million) for continuing operations and £4 million (2005: £4 million) for discontinued
operations in respect of equity-settled share-based payment transactions.

Cash-settled share-based payments

The Group has granted phantom share options to certain employees under the terms of the Management Equity Bonus Plan which mirror grants
made under the management options plan. These require the Group to pay the intrinsic value of the option to the emplovec at the date of exercise.

At 30 September 2006, the Group has recorded liabilities of £2 million {2005: £1 million). The fair value of the phantom options is determined using
the binomial distribution pricing mode) wsing the assumptions shown above, The Group recorded total expenses of £ million (2005: £1 million}
during the year in respect of cash-setled phantom share options.

28 Business combinations
Businesses acquired during the year are shown below,

Adjustments have been made to reflect the provisional fair valuc of assets and liabilities acquired as follows:

Fair value

Consideration Net agsets Adjustment on of assets
and costs acquired acquisition acquired Goodwil
Dates £m £m £m £m Em
Onama minority interest purchase (5%) December 2005 8 - - - 8
Levy minority intercst purchase {(51%) April 2006 134 9 - 9 125
Onthers 18 5 - 5 13
Total acquisitions in the year 160 14 - 14 146

Adjustments to prior periods:

Deferred consideration pavable 5 - - - 5

Adjustments to net assets acquired - ) - (1

e
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Net assets acquired and
fair value to the Group

£m
Intangible asscts (1)
Property, plant and equipment 4
Clurrent assets 10
Current liahilities (9
Minority mterests 9
13
Adjustments made 1o the fair value of assets of businesses acquired in 2006 are provisional and will be finalised within 12 months of the
acquisition date,
From the dates of acquisition 1o 30 September 2006 these acquisitions contributed £ 10 million 1o revenue and 1 million to operating profit.
It the acquisitions had oceurred at the start of the reporting period, Group revenue from continuing operations would have been £10,823 million
and Group operating profit from continuing operations would have been £507 million.
There was no material difference between operating profits arising from acquisitions and cash Tows contributed by those acquisitions.
2008 2005
£m £m
lash consideration and costs pavable 160 103
Deferred consideration pavable 5 4
165 109
Cash consideration and costs paid 160 105
Cash acquired (1) {2)
159 103
Deferred consideration and costs relating to previous acquisitions 8 21
Cash outllow on current and past acquisitions 167 124
- . . . 2006 2005
29 Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated by operaticns £m £m
Operating prolit from continuing operations 506 388
Adjustments for:
Exceptional iems - 108
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 193 203
Amorasation of intangible fixed assets 38 21
Loss/{gain} on disposal of property, plant and equipment ] (7)
Decrease in provisions (39) (57)
Sharce-based payments 21 42
724 694
Increase in inventories (3) (7)
Increasc in receivables (19) (109)
Increase in payables 52 117
Cash generated by operations 754 699
. 2006 2005
30 Cash flow from discontinued operations £m £m
Cash generated fram discontinued operations 90 219
Tax paid {61) {38)
Net cash from operating activities lor discontinued operations 29 181
Purchase of subsidiary companies and investments in associated undertakings - )]
Purchase of propernty, plant and equipment 63 {75)
Proceeds lrom sale of property, plant and equipment 4 13
Net cash used in investing activities by discontinued operations (59) (63)
Dividends paid to minority interests - )]
Net cash used in financing activitdes by discontinued operations - (h
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Acquisitions
and disposals
(exciuding Other
1 October Exchange cash and non-cash 30 September
i 2005 Cash flow  movements overdrafts) changes 2006
31 Analysis of net debt £m £m £m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 281 574 (7) - - 848 1
Bank overdraits {33) {(27) 3 1 - {56)
Bank and other borrowings 12,637) 674 71 (1) 52 {1,841)
(2,670) 647 74 - 52 (1,897)
Finance leases (60) 15 2 1 (15 (57)
Dervauve financial instruments 24 - - - (13) 1
Gross debt (2,706) 662 76 1 24 (1,943) :
Net dein (2,425) 1,236 69 1 24 (1,095)

The 1able above is presented as additional information to shoaw movement in net debt, defined as denvative financial instruments, overdraits, bank and
ather barrewings and finance leases, net of cash and cash equivalents.

. N 2006 2005
32 Contingent liabilities £m £m
Performance bonds and guarantees of indemnities of associated undertakings 203 183

of E88 or the wider Compass Group of companies.

of the Group.

States Attorney’s Office for the Southern District of New

On 21 October 20035 the Company announced that it had instructed Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer to conduct an investigation into the relatonships
between Furest Support Services (‘ESS’) (a member of the Group), IHC Services Inc. (IHC") and the United Nations. Ernst & Young assisted
Freshfields Brackhaus Deringer in this investigation. On 1 February 2006 it was announced that the investigation had concluded.

The mvestigation established serious irregularides in conuection with contracts awarded to ESS by the UN. The work undertaken by Freshfields
Bruckhaus Deringer and Ernst & Young gave no reason to believe that these issues extended heyond a few individuals within ESS to other parts

THC's relationship with the UN and ESS is part of a wider and on-going investigation into UN procurement activity being conducted by the United
‘ork, and with which the Group is co-operating fully. These investigators have access o
sources unavailable 1o the Group, Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer and Ernst & Young, and further information may emerge which is inconsistent with
or additional to the findings of the Freshficlds Bruckhaus Deringer investigation, which could have an adverse impact on the Group. The Group has
however not been contacted by or received further requests for information from the United States Auorney’s Office for the Southern District of
New York or the UN in connection with these matters since January 2006.

Na provision has been made i the financial statements in respect of these matters and it is not currendy possible w quanuafy any potendal liability

which may arise. The directors currently have no reason to believe that any potential liability that may arise would be material to the financial position

The Group, through a number of its subsidiary undurt.ikmga. is, from time 1o time, party lo vartous other legal proceedings or claims arising from
its normal business. Provisions are made as appropriate. None of these proceedings is rLg:udcd as material liigation.

The Group has provided guarantees to certain minonty sharcholders and joint venture partners over the level of profits which will accrue to them
in future periods.
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2006 2005
, 33 Capital commitments £m £m
| Contracted for but not provided for 30 33

34 Operating lease and concessions commitments
The Group lease offices and other premises under non-canccllable operating teases. The leases have varying terms, purchase options, escalation clauses
and renewal rights. The Group has some leases that include revenue-related rental payments that are contingent on future levels of revenuc.

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases and concessions agreements are as follows:

. 2006 . 2005

Operating leases Other Operating leases Other

Land and Other occupancy Land and Other ocoupancy

buildings assets rentals buikiings assets rentals

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Falling due within one vear 47 46 43 61 50 102
Falling due between two and five years 111 51 104 169 57 279
Falling due in more than five years 106 6 71 182 6 162
264 103 218 412 113 543

35 Related party transactions
The following transactions were carried out with related parties of Compass Group PLC:

Subsidiaries
Transactions between the ultimate parent company and its subsidiaries, and between subsidiaries, have been climinated on consolidation,

Joint ventures
There were no significant transactions between joint ventures and the rest of the Group during the year.

Assgociates
The balances with associated undertakings are shown in notes 17 and 22. There were no significant transactions with associated undertakings during
the year.

Key management personnel
The remuneration of key management personnel is shown in note 3. During the vear there were no matenal transactions or balances between the
Group and its key management personnel or members of their close [amily.

36 Post balance sheet event
On 29 November 2008, the Group announced its intention to dispose of its Selecta vending businesses operating in 21 countries in Continental Europe
and in the UK,

These businesses generated revenue of £476 million, carnings before interest and tax (EBIT) of £45 million and earnings before interest, tax and
depreciation (EBI'TDA) of £87 million in 2006.
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37 IFRS transitional adjustments

The previously published financial statements under UK GAAP were restated on an IFRS basis in the document ‘Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards ‘TFRS”: preliminary restatement of 2003 financial information’ published on | March 2006. This is available in the Investor
Relations section of the Compass Group website (www.compass-group.com} and includes presentational changes and detailed adjustments by line item.

A reconciliation of equity at 1 October 2004 and 30 September 2005 and of prefit for the financial year to 30 September 2005 is provided below with
an explanation of the transitional adjustments.

30 September 1 Cctober

2005 2004
£m £m

Equity reconciliation
Total equity under UK GAAP 2,284 2,482
Mineority interest as part of equity 73 54

2,357 2,536

Transitional adjustments:

IFRS 3 Business combinations — treatment of goodwill 260 -
IAS 10 Events after the balance sheet date — dividend on paid basis 140 134
IAS 31 Interests in joint ventures (#3) (39)
IAS 19 Employee benefits — defined benefit pensions (283) (161}
IAS 19 Employee benefits — other 4 6))
IAS 32 Financial instruments: presentation — put options (163) (219
IAS 39 Financial instruments: recognition and measurement {10) (16)
IFRS 2 Share-based payments 16 16
IAS 12 Income taxes 11 20
Other (1) {1
Total equity under IFRS 2,278 2.269

30 September

Retained profit reconcitiation
Profit for the year under UK GAAP 37

Transitional adjustments:

IFRS 3 Business combinations — amortisation of goodwill 269
IAS 36 Impairment of assets (12)
IAS 31 Interests in joint ventures (23
IAS 19 Emplovee benefits — defined benefit pensions 1

IAS 19 Employee benefits — other 1

IAS 32 Financial instruments: presentation — put options (6)
IAS 39 Financial instruments: recognition and measurement (4)
IFRS 2 Sharc-based payments (46)
1AS 12 Income taxes (8)
Profit for the year under IFRS 209

There is no significant change to the cash flow statement as reported previously under UK GAAFP,
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37 IFRS transitional adjustments continued

Explanation of significant differences between UK GAAP and IFRS which affect the Group

IFRS 3 Business combinations and IAS 36 Impairment of assets

Under IFRS 3, goodwill is considered to have an indefinite life and henee is not subject to amortisadon. Instead, it is reviewed for impairment annually.
The goodwill amartisation charge under UK GAAP in 2005 of (269 million is therefore reversed but the impairment charge recognised is increased
by £12 million to take account of the higher amount of the related goodwill under IFRS.

IAS 10 Events after the balance sheet date
Dividends declared after the balance sheet date are not recognised as a liability because there is no present obligation at the balance sheet date.
Accordingly, no accrual is made in the September 2005 balance sheet for the proposed final dividend of £140 million.

IAS 31 Interests in joint ventures

The Group has interests in a number of companies where it shares control with partners. Under UK GAAP, the Group consolidated 100% of

the turnover, results, assets and liabilities where the Group actually exercised dominant influence, with the partner’s share being shown as minority
interest. Under IFRS, the concept of ‘actual exercise of dominant influence’ is not relevant and the Group is required tw follow the legal form of
the agreements more closely and in certain instances consolidates only its share of turnover, results, assets and liabilities. Although this changes the
presentation of the income statement, there is no effect on profit for the financial period attributable 10 equity shareholders in the Group.

|AS 19 Employee benefits

Under IFRS, the full pension surplus or deficit in respect of defined benefit schemes is recognised on the halance sheet. This is calculated as the
difference between the market value of the pension fund asscts set against the value of future pension Habilities. This recognition results in the
recognition of a liahility of £445 million at | October 2004 representing an incremental Hability of £192 million compared with that recorded
previously. At 30 September 2005, this liability had increased to £535 million, primarily due to changes in actuarial assumptions representing an
incremental liability of £302 million. The impact on total equity is alter the offset of adjustments to prepayments and related deferred tax.

The Group is required 10 calculate the pension cost for defined benefit pension schemes and other post employment benefits using the projected unit
credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. The Group applies the option within the amendment to 1AS 19
that permits immediate recognition of all actuarial gains and losses in the period in which they occur in the statemient of recognised income and
expense. The current and past service pension costs are shown as a charge to operating profit. The unwinding of the discount on pension liabilities
cach year and the expectied return on pension asscts are presented as finance costs. The application of [AS 19 increases operating profit by £15 million
and increases nex finance charges by £ 14 million resulting in a reduction in the underlying charge of £1 million.

The Group had accrued additional liabilities of’ £5 million for holiday pay and similar entitlements as at 30 Septernber 2003,

IAS 32 Financial instruments: presentation

The Group has entered into arrangements with minority sharcholders to potentially acquire their interests at some point in the future. These
arrangements include hoth call options that enable the Group to acquire interests and put options that enable minority shareholders to require the
Group 1o buy out their interests, Under IAS 32 the present value of put options is recorded as a financial liability, and is reflected as a deduction from
equity. The discounted value of liabilites in respect of put options was £215 million at | October 2004. As at 30 Scptember 2003, this had fallen to
£163 million as a result of certain options having being exercised. The majority of the remaining liability for put options was extinguished during the
year to 30 September 2006 on completion of the acquisition of the remaining interest in Levy Restaurants in the United States.

IAS 39 Financial instruments: reccgnition and measurement

The Group uses currency denominated borrowings and derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure o foreign exchange and interest rate
risks arising from operational, financing and investment activities. The Group does not acquire or hold derivatives for wading purposes. Under 1AS 39,
derivatives are recognised initially at cost and are subsequently required to be measured at fair value. The fair value is determined by reference o
market values for similar financial instruments, or by discounted cash flows. Where derivatives do not qualify for hedge accounting, any gains or losses
on measurement are immediately recognised in the income statement. Where hedge accounting is permiited to be employed, recognition of any
resulting gain or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship and the item being hedged. Under UK GAAF, derivatives were not held at

fair valuc so there were no movements in value to account for.

IFRS 2 Share-based payments

IFRS 2 ‘Share-based payments’ requires the Group to record a charge for all share-based payments equivalent to the fair value of the award as at
the date of grant, An expense is recognised t spread the fair value of cach award over its vesting period on a straight-ling basis, after allowing for

an estimate of the share awards that will eventually vest. The Group has applicd IFRS 2 to all unvested share awards as at the transition date. Under
UK GAAP, the Group recorded a charge for employee share incentive awards based on the intrinsic value of the award, being the difference, if any,
between the option price of the conditional award and the share price on the date of grant. The Group also utilised the exemption available within
UTTF Abstract 17 from reporting a charge 1o profits for UK Inland Revenue approved SAYE schemes and equivalent overseas schemes. As the
Group’s share options have an option price equal to the market price on the date of grant, no charge was required to be recorded under UK GAAP
T'he application of IFRS 2 has resulted in an incremental charge o profits in 2003 of £46 million,

IAS 12 Income taxes

Under IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes’, certain temporary differences that previously were not recognised under UK GAAP will be recognised. In addition,
IAS 12 does not allow discounting of deferred tax balances, previously adapted by the Group under UK GAAP. This results in a higher tax charge
under IFRS, Generally, the Group’s effective tax rate under TFRS is expected w be somewhat more volatile than under UK GAAP,
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38 Details of principal subsidiary companies

Country of registration or incorporation

Principal activities ‘

North America

Compass Group USA Investments, Inc.
Compass Group USA, Inc.

Morrison Management Specialists, Inc,, USA
Crothall Services Group, USA

Flik International Corp., USA

Bon Appétt Management Co,, USA
Restaurant Associates Corp., USA

Compass Group Canada Lid

Holding company

Trading company for the provision of foodservice in the USA

Trading company for the provision of foodservice to the USA healthcare market

Trading company for the provision of facilities management services to the USA healtheare market
Trading company for the provision of exceutive fine dining facilitics in the USA

"Trading company for the provision of foodservice in the USA

Trading company for the provision of executive fine dining facilitics in the USA

Trading company for the provision of foedservice in Canada

Continental Europe

ompass Group France Holdings SAS
Compass Group France SAS
Compass Group Deutschland GmbH, Germany
Eurest Deutsehland GmbH, Germany
Compass Group Holdings Spain, S.L.
Eurest Colectividades S.A., Spain
“lompass Group Nederland Holding BV
Compass Group Nederland BV
Selecta Group AG, Switzerland
Selecta AG, Switzerland
Seleeta SA, France
Onama 3.p.A., Taly (95%)
Restorama AG, Switzerland
Sevita AG, Switzerland

Compass Group International BV, the Netherlands

Holding company

Trading company for the provision of foodservice in France

Holding company

Trading company for the provision of foodservice in Germany
Holding company

Trading company for the provision of foodservice in Spain

Holding company

Trading company for the provision of foodservice in the Netherlands
Helding company

Trading company for the provision of vending foodservice in Switzerland
Trading company for the provision of vending foodservice in France
Trading company for the provision of foodservice in Italy

Trading company for the provision of foodservice in Switzerland
Provision of purchasing services in Continental Europe

Holding company

England and Wales

Compass Group, UK & Ireland Lid
Compass Contract Services (UK) Lid
Letheby & Chnistopher Ltd

Scolarest Lid

Selecta UK Ld

Compass Purchasing Lid

Compass Group Holdings PLC
Hospitality Holdings Lid*

Huoleling company

Trading company for the provision of foodservice in the UK

Trading company for the UK sports and events foodservice business

Trading company for the provision of foodservices 1o the UK education market
Trading company for the provision of vending loodservice in the UK

Provision of purchasing services in the UK

Holding company and corporate activides

Intermediate holding company

Rest of the World

Eurest Support Services (Cyvprus)
Internatdonal Lid, Cyprus

Seivo Food Systems Inc., Japan (86%)
Ciompass Group Southern Africa (Pty) Lad
Compass Group (Australia) Pty Ltd

Trading company for the provision of integrated support scrvices to the defence, offshere and
remote site seciors

Trading company for the provision of foodservice in Japan

Trading company for the provision of foodservice in South Africa

Trading company for the provision of foodservice in Australia

* Held direcity by the parent company.

All companies listed above are wholly owned by the Group, except where otherwise indicated. All interests are in the ordinary share capital. All
companies operate principally in their country of incorporation, except for Eurest Support Services (Cyprus) International Lid. which operates
worldwide and Sevita AG, which operates throughout Europe. A full list of the Group’s operating subsidiary undertakings will be annexed 1o the
next annual return. !
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Directors’ responsibilities

The directors are required by law to prepare separate financial
staterments for the Company in accordance with the Companies Act
1985. The directors have chosen to prepare these financial statements
for the Company in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice.

Gompany law requires the directors 10 prepare financial statements for
cach financial year which give a wue and fair view of the state of affairs
* of the Company as at the end of the financial year and of the profit or
loss of the Company for that period. In prepanng those financial
statements, the directors are required ro:

-+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

+ make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

* state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed,
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements; and

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis, unless it is
inappropriate 1o presume that the Company will continue in business.

. The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records
which disclese with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the Company and to enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companics Act 1985 and Ariicle 4 of the
IAS Regulation. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and derection of fraud and other irregularitics.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the
Compass Group PLC website. Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements
may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.




81 Compass Group PLC
Annual Report 2006

Parent Company financial statements Compass Group PLC
continuad

Independent auditors’ report to the members of

Compass Group PLC

We have audited the individual Company financial statements of
Compass Group PLC for the vear ended 30 September 2006 which
comprise the parent company balance sheet and the related notes 1 to
10. These individual Company financial staternents have been prepared
under the accounting policies set out therein.

The corporate governance statement and the directors’ remuneration
report are included in the Group annual report of Compass Group PLC
for the year ended 30 September 2006, We have reported separately on
the Group financial statements of Compass Group PLC for the year
ended 30 September 2006 and on the information in the directors’
remuneration report that is described as having been audited.

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in
accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’
report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit work,
for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective respensibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the annual report and the
individual Gompany financial statements in accordance with applicable
law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards {(United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the statement
of directors’ responsibilities,

Our responsibility is to audit the individual Company financial
statements in accordance with relevant United Kingdom legal and
regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing
(UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as to whether the individual Company
financial statememts give a true and fair view, in accordance with the
relevant financial reporting framework, and whether the individual
Company [inancial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985, We report to you whether in
cur opinion the information given in the directors’ report is consistent
with the individual Company financial statements. We also report 10 you
if, in our opinion, the Company has not kept proper accounting records,
if we have not received all the information and explanations we require
for our audit, or if information specificd by law regarding directors’
remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed.

We read the directors’ report and the other information contained in the
annual report for the above year as described in the contents section and
consider the implications for our report iff we become aware of any
apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the individual
Company financial statements.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards

on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board.
An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant

to the amounts and disclosures in the individual Company financial
statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
Judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the individual
Company financial statements, and of whether the accounting policics
are appropriate to the Company’s circumstances, consistently applied
and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information
and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide us
with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the individual
Company financial statements are free from material misstatement,
whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our
opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the individual Company financial statements.

Opinion

In our vpinion:

« the individual Company financial statements give a true and fair view,
in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 30 September 2006;

* the individual Company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985; and

» the information given in the directors’ report is consistent with the
individual Company financial statements.

M&k £ Tk LLF

Deloitte & Touche LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London

29 November 2606
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as at 30 September 2006
2005
2006 Restated
Compass Group PLC Notes £m £m
Fixed assets
Investments 3 915 890
Current assets
Debtors: ameunts falling due within one year 4 3,311 4,253
amounts falling due after more than onc year 4 22 48
Cash at bank and it hand 695 71
4,028 4,372
Creditors: amounts falling due within one vear 5 (1,668} {1,683)
Net current assets 2,360 2,689
Total assets less current liabilities 3,275 3,579
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 6 {1,878) (2,545)
Net assets 1,397 1,034
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 210 216
Share premium account 96 94
Capital redemption reserve 15 9
Share-based payment reserve 130 105
Hedging reserve - !
Profit and loss account 946 609
Total equity shareholders’ funds 1,397 1,034

Approved by the Board of directors on 29 November 2006 and signed on their behalf by

Richard ] Cousins, Dircctor
Andrew D Martin, Dircctor
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1 Accounting policies
The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the separate financial statements of the Company are set out below:

A Accounting convention and basis of preparation
These linancial statements have heen prepared in accordance with applicable UK generally accepted accounting principles (UK GAAP) and the
Companics Act 1985 using the historical cost convention mocliticd for the revaluation of certain financial instruments.

B Exemptions

The Company’s financial statements are included in the Gompass Group PLC consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 September
2006. As permitted by section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, the Company has not presented its own profit and loss account. The Company has
also taken advantage of the exemption from presenting a cash flow statement under the terms of FRS 1 “Cash Flow Statements’. The Company is
also exempt under the terms of FRS 8 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ from disclosing transactions with other members of Compass Group.

The Compass Group PLC consolidated financial statcments for the year ended 30 Seprember 2006 coniain financial instrument disclosures which
comply with FRS 25 ‘Financial Instrument: Disclosure and Presentation’. Consequently, the Company has taken advantage of the exemption in
FRS 25 not to present separate financial instrument disclosures for the Company:

C Change in accounting policies

The Gompany has applicd the following standards for the first time for the year ended 30 September 20006:
* RS 17 “Retirement henefits’

* FRS 20 *Sharc-based payment’

« FRS 21 ‘“Favents afier the balance sheet date’

« FRS 23 “T'he effects of changes in foreign exchange rates’

» FRS 25 “Financial insiramenss — Disclosure and presentation’

« FRS 26 ‘“Vinandial instruments = Measurement’

= FRS 28 ‘Corresponding amounts’.

The adoption of cach of these standards represents changes in several accounting policies and the comparative amounts have been restated
accordingly. The adoption of FRS 17, FRS 23 and FRS 28 had no effect on the Company’s profit or net assets.

Details of the effect of the prior vear adjustments are given in note 9.

FRS 20 requires that the fair value of opuons and shares awarded o emplovees is charged 10 the profit and loss account over the vesting peniod,

'The Company does not incur a charge under this standard. However, where the Company has granted rights over the Company’s shares or share
aptions to the employees of its subsidiary undertakings, an additional capital contribution (based on the [air value of the grant spread over the vesting
period) has been deemed to have been made by the Company 1o its subsidiary undertakings. This results in an increase in imvestment in subsidiarics
and a corresponding increase in shareholders’ equity.

FRS 21 requires that dividends are only recognised at the balance sheet date if they are declared betore that date, Therefore, the final dividend for
the year ended 30 September 2004 which was declared in February 2003 is not recogmised in the balance sheet at 30 September 2004 resulting in
an increase in reserves af £134 million at 30 September 2004, Similar treatment of the final dividend for the year ended 30 September 2005 has
increased reserves at 30 September 2005 by 140 million.

The Company has adopted the presentation requirements of FRS 25, This deals with the classitication of capital instruments issued between debt
and cquity.

FRS 26 prescribies new accounting rules relating to financial instruments and hedge accounting. This standard has been adopted in full in these
financial statements.

D Investments in subsidiary undertakings
Investments are stated at cost less provision for any impairnient. In the opinion of the directors the value of such imvesuments is net less than shown
at the balance sheet date.

E Foreign currency
Asscts and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated imo sterding at the rates of exchange ruling at the year end.

F Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised mnitially ad fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subscquently stated at amortised cost unless they are
part of a fair value hedge accounting relationship, Borrowings that are part of a fair value hedge accounting relationship are measured at amortised
cost plus or minus the fair value attributable to the risk being hedged.

G Derivatives and other financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments o manage its exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates and interest rates, Derivative
instruments utilised include interest rate swaps, currency swaps and forward currency contracts. The Company and Group policy is disclosed in
note | o the consolidated financial statements.

H Dividends
Dividends are recognised in the Company’s financial statements in the year in which they are approved in general meeting by the Company’s
shareholders. Interim dividends are recognised when paid.
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1 Accounting policies continued

I Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided at the anticipated rates on timing differences arising from the inclusion of items of income and expenditare in tax computations
in periods dilferent from those in which they are included in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is regarded
as more likely than not that they will be recovered.

J Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-setiled and cash-settled share-based payments to certain employees. Equity-scutled share-based payments are measured

at fair value (excluding the effect of non market-based vesting conditions) at the date of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of the
cquity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of the shares that will
eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting conditions.

Fair value is measured using either the binomial distribution or Black-Schales pricing models as is most appropriate for cach scheme. The expected life
used in the models has been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

For cash-sctiled share-based payments, a liability equal to the portion of the goods or services received is recognised at the current fair value
determined at each balance sheet date.

The tssuc of share incentives by the Company to employees of its subsidiaries represents additional capital contributions, An addition to the Campany’s
investment in Group undertakings is reported with a corresponding increase in shareholders” funds. For details of the charge see note 27 to the

consolidated financial statements.

2 Profit and loss account disclosures
The Company profit on ordinary activities after tax was £699 million {2005: £266 million).

The fee for the audit of the Company’s annual financial statements was £0.4 million {2005; £0.4 million}.

The Company had no direct employees in the course of the year (2005: none).

3 Investments in subsidiary undertakings Q%Oms 2083
- Cost and net book value

At 1 Ocrober 890 785
Prior year adjustmenu FRS 20 Share-based payment - GO
At 1 October as restated 890 845
Share-based payments 1o employees of subsidiaries 25 45
At 30 September 915 890
The principal subsidiary undertakings are listed in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

4 Debtors 2%?: 2(}93
Amounts falling due within one year

Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 3,217 4,217
Deferred consideration receivable 14 -
Group relief receivable 39 34
Derivative financial mstruments 9 2
Other debrors 32 -

3,311 4,253

Amounts falling due after more than one year

Derivative financial instruments 22 44
Deferred tax assct - 4

22 48
5 Creditors - amounts falling due within one year 2%?5 Z%Dnsa
Loan notes 26 58
Bank loans 4 5
Bank overdrafis 300 279
Derivative financial instruments 2 20
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 1,230 1,257
Accruals and deferred income 106 71

1,668 1,683
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1,878 2,545

cantinued

6 Creditors — amounts falling due after more than one year 29:%3 Z%Dri :
Bonds 1,323 1,386 |
Loan notes 426 482
Bank loans 109 675 I
Derivative financial instruments 18 2 !
Deferred tax hability 2 - l

Bonds are unsccured and consist of the following:
* Euro Eurobond with nominal value €750 million redeemable in 2009 and bearing interest at 6.0% per annum;
* Sterling Eurobond with nominal value £200 million redeemable in 2010 and bearing interest at 7.125% per annum;
* Sterling Eurobond with nominal value £325 million redeemable in 2012 and bearing interest at 6.375% per annum; and
» Sterling Eurobond with nominal value £250 million redecmable in 2014 and bearing interest at 7.0% per annum. i
The Company has fixed term, fixed interest privace placements 1otalling US3830 million (£444 million) at interest rates between 3.11% and 7.955%. |
US5465 million (£249 million) is repayable in five to 10 years.
The deferred tax hability anses on marking 1o market interest rate swaps.
Maturity of financial liabilitics, other creditors and derivative financial instruments falling due after more than one year as at 30 September 2006
1s as foltows:
2006 2005
Beonds and Loans and Bonds and Loans and
loan notes overdrafts Other Total loan notes overdrafis Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
In more than one year but not mere than two years - 98 2 109 27 5 (2 30
T more than two years but not more than five years 894 11 (7) 898 462 666 (31) 1,497
In more than five years 855 - 3 858 4979 4 (9 974
1,749 109 (2) 1,856 1,868 675 42) 2,501
In one vear or less, or on demand 26 304 (N 323 58 277 18 353
1,775 413 9 2,179 1,926 952 24) 2,854
2006 2005
£m m
Bank loans
Repayable by instalments in more than live years - 5
Repayable by instalments within five years 21 23
Less: amounts [alling due within one year (4) 5)
Amounts repayable by instalments falling due afier more than one year 17 23
Repayable otherwise than by instalments within five years 92 652
Less: amounts falling due within one vear - -
Amounts repayable otherwise than by instalments falling due alter more than one year 92 652 )
\
2006 2006 2005 2005
Financial Financial Financial Financial |
) . . L. assels liabities assets liabilities
7 Derivative financial instruments £m tm £m £m
Interest rate swaps: ?
= Fair value hedges 22 (18) 44 (@ ‘
— Cash flow hedges - - 2 {n ‘
— Non-hedged 9 (0 - &
Cross currency swaps - (1) - 9
Other financial instruments - - - (3)
)
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8 Share capital

Details of the share capital, share option schemes and share-based payments of Compass Group PLC are shown in notes 25 and 27 to the consclidated

financial statements.

Share Capital  Share-based
premium redemption payment Hedging Profit and

. Share capital account reserve reserve reserve loss reserve Total
9 Capital and reserves £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At | October 2004 216 93 9 - - 426 744
Prior year adjusunents:
FRS 20 Share-based payment - - - 60 - - 60
FRS 21 Events after the balance sheet date - - - - - 134 134
FRS 26 Financial instruments — measurement - - - - (3) {12) (t5)
Ar 1 October 2004 as restated 216 93 9 60 (3) 548 923
Fair value movement on cash flow hedges (net of deferred 1ax) - - - - 4 - 4
Transfer to profit and loss frem equity on cash {low hedges
(net of deferred tax) - - - - - - -
Issue of shares - I - - - - 1
Fair value of share-based payments - - - 45 - - 45
Dividends paid to Compass sharcholders - - - - - {205} (203)
Profit for the financial year - - - - - 266 266
At 30 September 2005 216 94 9 105 1 609 1,034
At | October 2005 216 94 9 105 1 609 1,034
Fair value movement on cash flow hedges (net of deferred tax) - - - - 3 - 3
Transfer to profit and loss from equity on cash flow hedges
(net of deferred tax) - - - - {4) - (4
Issue of shares - 2 - - - - 2
Repurchase of ordinary share capital (6} - 6 - - (149) (149)
Fair value of share-based payments - - - 25 - - 25
Dividends paid to Compass shareholders - - - - - {213) (213}
Profit for the financial year - - - - — 699 699
At 30 September 2006 210 96 15 130 - 946 1,397
10 Contingent liabilities o 2o£on§
Guarantees of indemnities and subsidiary undertakings’ overdrafts 288 348

Details regarding certain contingent liabilities which involve the Company are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Shareholder information

Registrars and transfer office

All matters relating to the administration of sharcholdings should be
directed to Capita Registrars, The Registry, 34 Beckenham Road,
Beckenbam, Kent BR3 4T, telephone within the UK: 0870 162 3100
and from overscas: +44 20 8639 2157; email: ssd@capitaregistrars.com.

Shareholders that receive duplicate mailings because they have multiple
holdings can write to the Registrars requesting that the holdings be
amalgamated. By logging on to www.capitaregistrars.com/sharcholders/
and following the link to The Share Portal, sharcholders can access a
range of online services including registering to reeeive future corporate
documents by email. Registration will require input of investor codes.
Sharcholders are advised to refer to their share certificates for details.

Share dealing service

Compass Group has arranged share dealing services with Capila
Registrars which provides a telephone and online share dealing service
for UK resident shareholders in Compass Group. To deal, shareholders
must provide details of surname, postcode, date of birth and investor
code {set out in share certificates). To use the service telephone 0870 458
4577 or visit www.capitadeal.com,

Individual Savings Accounts {ISAs)

Compass Group has introduced corporate sponsored Maxi and Mini
I8As. The ISAs offer UK resident shareholders a simple low-cost and
tax cfficient way to invest in the Company’s shares. FFull details together
with a form of application are available from HSBC Trust Company
{(UK) Limited, Corporate Personal Equity Plans & Individual Savings
Accounts, Ist Floor, Courtwood House, Silver Street Head, Sheffield
S1 2BH, telephone 0845 745 6123.

Share price information

The current price of Compass Group shares i3 available on
Ceefax, Teletext, FTCityline (operated by the Financial Times),
telephone 0906 843 3250 and Compass Group’s corporate website.

ShareGift

ShareGift is a charity share donation scheme for shareholders
administered by the Orr Mackintosh Foundation. It is particularly
useful for those sharcholders that may wish to dispose of a small
quantity of shares where the market value makes it uneconomic to
sell on a commission basis, Further information can be obtained
from ShareGift telephone 020 7537 0501 or from its website
wwwsharegift.org

American Depositary Receipts (ADRs)

Compass Group has an ADR programme. Fach ADR is equivalent
to one Compass Group ordinary share and trades under the symbol
CMPGY. Further information can be obtained from The Bank of
New York, Investor Relations, PO Box 11258, Church Street Station,
New York, NY 10286-1258, telephone: within the US toll free

1-888 BNY-ADRs and from overseas +1 212 815 3700, cmail:
shareowners@bankofny.com and from websites: wwwadrbny.com
and wwwstockbny.com,

Financial calendar

Annual General Mecting ~ 16 February 2007

Half year results announcement — May

Full year resulis announcement — late November/early December
Dividend payments:

Interim — August

Final - March

Warning about unsclicited investment contacts

Ower the last vear many companics have hecome aware that their
sharcholders have recelved unsolicited phone calls or correspondence
concerning investment matters, These are typically from overscas basced
‘brokers” who target UK shareholders offering to sell them what often
turn out to be warthless or high risk shares in US or UK investments.
Sharchalders are advised to be very wary of any unsolicited advice,
offers to buy shares a1 a discount or offers of free company reports.

If vou receive any unsolicited investment advice:

= Make sure you get the correet name of the person and organisation.

= Check that they are properly authorised by the Financiat Services
Authority before getting involved. You can check at
www fsa. goviuk/register.

* The FSA also maintains on its website a list of unauthoriscd overseas
firms who are targeting, or have 1argeted, UK investors and any
approach from such organisations should be reported to the FSA so
that this list can be kept up to date and any other appropriate action
can be considered. If' you deal with an unauthorised firm, vou would
not be eligible to receivie payment under the Financial Services
Compensation Scheme. The FSA can be contacted by completing an
online form at www.lsa.govuk.

* Inform our Registrar’s Compliance Depariment on 020 8639 2041
or email compliance(@capitaregisirars.com.

More detailed information on this or similar activity can be found on the
F5A website www.sa.goviuk/consumer/,

Unsolicited mail

Compass Group is legatly obliged to make its register of members
available to the public. As a consequence of this some sharcholders
might have received unsolicited mail. Shareholders wishing to limit the
amount of such mail should write o the Mailing Preference Service,
FREEPOST 29, LON20771, London WIE 0ZT. Alternatively,
shareholders may register online at www.mpsonline.org-uk or request
an application form by calling 0845 703 4599.

Number of Shares
Shareholder analysis N“Tf&z Home; Shaﬁn:frﬁ hef}:
Type of holder:
Individuals 66,158 91.5 88 4.2
Instiational & other investors 6,109 8.5 2,011 95.8
Total 72,267 100.0 2,099 100.0
Size of holding:
1-100 13,841 19.2 1 0.0
101 — 200 11,758 16.3 2 0.1
201 =300 17,853 24.7 6 0.3
501 = 1,000 11,879 16.4 9 0.4
1,001 — 2,000 8,575 11.9 12 0.6
2,001 — 5,000 5,329 7.4 16 0.8
5,001 — 10,000 1,361 1.9 9 0.4
10,001 — 50,000 803 1.1 16 0.8
50,001 — 100,000 178 0.2 13 0.6
100,001 — 300,000 351 0.5 85 4.0
500,001 = 1,000,000 101 0.1 73 3.5
1,000,001 — 5,000,000 167 0.2 354 16.9
5,000,001 — 10,000,000 34 0.0 241 11.5
10,000,001 and above 37 0.1 1,262 60.1
Tonal 72,267 100.0 2,099 106.0
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Registered office and advisors

Registered office
Compass Group PLC
Compass House
Guildford Street
Chertsey

Surrey KT16 9BQ)
United Kingdom

Tel +44 (111932 573 000
Fax +44 (0)1932 569 956

WWW COMPass-group.com

Auditors

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Hill House

1 Little New Street
London EC4A 3TA

Financial Advisors
Citigroup
Citgroup Centre
33 Canada Square
Canary Wharf
London E14 5LB

Legal Advisors

Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer
65 Fleet Street

London EC4Y 1HS

Registrars

Capita Registrars
The Registry

34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham

Kent BR3 4TU

Stockbrokers

Morgan Stanley & Co International Limited
25 Cabot Square

Canary Wharf

London E14 4QA

Merrill Lynch International
Merrill Lynch Financial Centre
2 King Edward Street

London ECIA THQ
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Global reach

Our aim is 1o be the premium operator
in the global contract cutering and

support services markets.,

North America
USA
Canada

UK and Ireland
United Kingdom
Republic of Freland

Continental Europe
Austria
Belgiurmn
Croatia
Cyprus
Czcch Republic
Denmark
Estonia
Finland
France
Germany
Greece
Hungary
Iceland

Lialy

Kosovo
Lamvia
Lithuania
Luxembourg
Nctherlands
Norway
Poland
Partugal
Romania
Slovakia
Spain
Sweden

Switzerland

Rest of the World
Latin America
Argenting

Brazil

Chile

Colombia

Costa Rica

Mexico

Peru

\enczucla

Middle East
and Africa
Algenia
Angola
Azerbaijun
Botswana
Egvpt
Gabaon
Ghana
Isracl
Kazakhstan
Malawwi
Mah
Mozambigue
Namihia
Nigera
Cman
Jatar
South Africa
Sudun
Turkey
UAE
Zambia

Asin Pacific
Australin
Bangladesh
China

East Timor
Hong Kong
India
Indonesia

Japan

Malaysia

Mengolia

New Zeatand
Papua New Guinea
Philipgnes

Russia

Singapore
Thailand

I

Group

0

-

North America

Continental Europe

United Kingdom

Rest of the World

Group revenue

£10,815m

2005: £10,073m

Split of revenue

£4,290m
2005: £3,761m

Split of revenue

£2,863m

2005: £2,830m

Split of revenue

£1,957m
2005: £1,982m

Split of revenua

£1,705m

2005: £1,500m

Total operating prefit*1

£508m

2005: £496m

All igures based on continuing operations. 2005 hgures are restated to IFRS.
* Before axcaptional itemns and inchxding profit of assocates
T After central costs.

Spiit of operating profit’  Split of operating profit”

£246m

2005: £218m

2005: £169m

Split of operatirgg profit”  Split of operating profit”

£115m

2005: £114m

£55m

2005: £53m

Sector operating companies

Unrivalled expertise from scetor-leading brands,

We are unique in having a sector-focused

approach to developing specialised solutions
w0 our clients’ fondservice and support services
needs. For our clients this has the benefits of
giving them access to unrivalled experience,

tailored solutions relevant to their specific
needs and specialist employee skills,

Where there is sufficient market density in

a country we have a portfolio of companies

that operate in specilic market sectors
e.g. Eurcst in Business & Industry.

In countries that do not yet have critical mass
we have a single operating company providing
multi-sector solutions e.g, Onama in laly or

Seivo in Japan,

Operuling Market sector Operating Market sector
company and regrion company and region
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Group at a glance

We provide contract
foodservice and support
services to clients in
over 70 countries.

Our business

How we work

We work in partnership with our clients,
usually on their premises, wtilising their
cquipment and facilities to provide foodservice
and suppart services solutions tailored to the
needs of consumers.

Contracts with our clients are usually based
around one of four models:

Management fee

All of the operating costs are paid by the
contractor and recharged 1o the client along
with an agreed fee. This type of arrangement is
most often used where the client is subsidising
the food offer.

Fixed price

The client pays an agreed price for a specificd
range of services. This may be varied,

for example, if the number of consumers
changes considerably.

Profit & loss

The foodservice contractor has control over
the offer to the consumer and sets the price.
This type of arrangement usually occurs where
there s little or no client subsidy:.

Concessions

The foodservice contractar pays an agreed
percentage of revenue for the right to trade at
the clients” premises. This type of arrangement
is widely used in the leisure sector.,

Market overview and trends

Overview
Contract foodservice and support services ofler
signiltcant growth opportunities.

The global contract foodservice market has an
approximate value of £150 billion with around
50% outsourced to contractors like Compass and
our market grows at around 5% a year.

The support services market (including catering,
soft services such as cleaning and hard services
such as building maintenance) has an approximate
value of £700 billion. Circa 35% of this s
outsourced (o contractors with the outsourcing
market projected to grow at around 10% a year.

Trends

Both the markets in which we operate have
significant growth potential. The wend by
organisations over the last decade to reduce
subsidies and to outsource their foodservice
requirements is continuing. Clients are moving
away from managt:mcn[ fee contracts to
arrangements where the contractor bears the
risk. Approximately 70% of our contracts are
now fixed price or profit & loss. This means that
we have to adopt different operating disciplines
that are more retail orientated in order to grow
profitability and returns for shareholders.

We are also seeing organisations accelerate

the consolidation of a range of support services
such as cleaning and reception as well as catering
under one outsourced contract. We are ideally
placed to offer an integrated solution to clients,
Our challenge is to leverage these growth
opportunities profitably and sustainably in order
w create value for shareholders,

|

Qur market sectors

Focused businesses operating in clemly defined
market seclors,

We operate in six clearly defined market sectors:

2\ Business & Industry
We are the world leader in providing a
wide range of consumer-facing loodservice
solutions to people at their place of work.

Fine Dining

We have an unrivalled reputation for fine
dining in corporate boardrooms and at
prestigious social and hospitality events
around the world.

4D Healthcare & Seniors
This is the most sophisticated and
demanding market in which we operate,
Success requires the highest standards of
customer service and food safety plus a
detailed understanding of the nutritional
needs of those we care for.

7 Education

= Fromn nursery schools to the world’s
most prestigious universities, we ofler
tasty and nutritions food for tomorrow's
healthy generations,

@ Sports & Leisure

From local muscums w the most famous
sporting and iconic cultural venues, we
provide foodservice solutions for consumers
;lnd cnrpomlc CVCILLS.

@ Defence, Offshore & Remote sites
[n difficult and often inhospitable
ctwironments we provide an imegrated
range of foodservice and support services on
offshore oil and gas rigs, major construction
sites and at remote mining locations.

Where there is a demand we can also offer
vending across any of our six market sectors.

W

Vending

An integral part of the food and beverage
operation for most modern organisations.
We provide high quality and innovative
vending solutions for customers across the

USA and Europe.
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Financial hlghllghts 2006

Group revenue

8 5?7‘ 2005: £10,073m

Tctal operating prom‘

£5 08m 2005: £496m

Basu:: eamings per share*&

11. dO 2005:109p

Free cash flow

£205m 2005: £227m

Return on capltal emp|oyed‘

l 07 A) 2005: 10.7%

Al figures based on continuing operions,

2005 figures are vestated w [FRS.

* Beliore

A Before sprinuad ftems and hedge accounting
ineflectiveness,

ceptional items, including profit ol associates.

Because of our shared values, everyone
in Compass 1s committed to CDI]blSt(,I'lt]y
delivering superior service in the most
cflicient way to create value for our

customers, sharcholders and employees.

We are specialists who help clients cither
outsource or establish a foodservice or support
service, or snmetimes both, to suit their needs.

How we do that draws on our global resources
and our understanding of different cultures and
market sectors. We work in partnership with our
clients, usually in their premises. And by using
their facilities and equipment we keep capital
investment to an absolute minimum.

Leoking at the world map today shows how
fir we have come since 1992, We have grown
Irom a domestic operator to a global player.
That journey has given us a great platform

10 build on and enabled us to benefit from
opportunities far and wide. Making the most
of these opportunitics starts, as ever, by heing
clear about why we are in business.

Our aim is to be the premium operator in the
corract foodservice and support services market
with an outstanding reputation for quality, valuc
for money and client and consumer satisfaction.

To achieve this means maintaining our market
leading positions in the world’s key regions with
major brands in our chosen business sectors. But
it also means applying fresh thinking to the way
we runl our business, re-energising the talents
that have made us a leader while looking at new
wirys of maximising value from our core
aperations,

We have to be more disciplined = simplifying
what we do and how we do i, Focusing on our
core contraet catering ()I)Ll‘.llit'llls Leveraging
cliem IL]‘lll(anhlps hy growing the range of our
Support services. M‘nlmlsmq synergics for
clients, organic profit growth for us and
enhanced value for our shareholders.

The whole organisation is focused on achieving
this and our vision encapsulates this common
purpuse. Quite simply we aspire to be a
world-class provider of contract foodsenvice
and support scrvices, renowned for our great
people, our great service, and our great resulis.

How our values
help drive value

Our values
These define what, collectively, we believe
in and govern the way we behave:

Openness, trust and integrity

We set the highest ethical and professional
standards at all times. We want all our
relationships 10 be based on honesty, respect,
fairness and a commutrmnent 1o open dialogue
and transparency.

Passion for quality

We are passionate about delivering superior
food and service and take pride in achieving this.
We look to replicate success, learn from mistakes
and develop the ideas, innovation and practices
that will help us improve and lead our market.

Win through teamwaork

We encourage individual ownership, but work
as 2 team. We value the expertise, individuality
and contribution of all our colleagues, working
in support of each other and readily share
good practice, in pursuit of shared goals.

Responsibility

We take responsibility for our actions,
individually and as a Group. Everyday,
evervwhere we look to make a positive
contribution to the health and wellheing
of our customers, the communities we
work in and the world we live in.

Can-do

We take a positive and commercially aware
‘can-do’ approach to the opportunities and
challenges we face.
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Detivering greater
shareholder value

Chairman’s statement

Our priority 1s to manage your business
with the creation of ¢ hareholder value
firmly at the top of the agenda.

Sir Roy Gardner Chairman

®ldstrateqy,

JForenpsedd O U Contract
fondkerice ssimess,

(i itng our support
services [usines,

Cammumitgeed to @hvimg our
crastomens suprerior leyels
off service,

TFocusing omn drving cost
c’fﬁfm«wwm
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I was delighted to take over as Chairman

of Compass m July. This is 2 good business.

We have a significant presence in the countries
and sectors in which we want to trade. Our
people are passionate about what they do and
are proud to work for us. We also continue o
achieve excellent levels of contract retention
demonstrating that we have a satisfied chent base.

These are solid foundations on which to build.
Our priority now is to create value for
sharcholders.

During the vear we took the actions necessary
to improve our future performance. We have
streamiined and reshaped the management
team to better reflect the needs of the business.
We have improved financial discipline and
governance night across the Group, giving

the Board much betwer visibility as to the
performance of the business.

In June we sold our travel concessions business,
Seleet Service Partner ('SSPY, for £1.8 billion.
This dispasal will enable us to focus on our
contract catering operations and exploit the
significant growth opportunitics in support
services.

In November we announced our plan o sell
our European vending business, Selecta. As the
business derives only 9% of s revenue from
our contract foodservice clients, it is not a core
part of our operations.

These actions provide the basis for improving
returns to shareholders.

Strategy

The creation of sharcholder value is our priority.
Contract foodservice offers attractive and
sustainable growth potential which, allied 10
SUPPOLL $CrvICES, TCPICSCILs our core activities.
The business model is sound and our focus now
is on better exceuting our strategy to deliver
sustainable growth and profits, We will do this
by growing our business in a more disciplined
way, Continuing to give our custonicrs sSuperor
levels of service whilst being focused on driving
cost cfficiencies for the shared benefit of our
custorners, sharcholders and employees,

Returns to shareholders

The Board is proposing a final dividend of

6.7 pence per share for payment in March 2007,
bringing our full year dividend 1o 10.1 pence,

a year-on-year increase of 3%. Whilst we
remain commitied to growing the dividend in
real terms, our objective over the medium term
is to move the dividend cover more wowards the
two times level,

In June 2006 on completion of the sale of our
travel concessions business, SSP, we commenced
a £500 million on the market share buy-back
programme. As of 30 September 2006 we had
purchased shares for cancellation to the value
of £149 million.

Once the planned sale of Seleaa is completed,
our aim will be to achieve a balanced use of the
net proceeds and this will include an extension
of the current share buy-back programme.

Management

Since becoming Chairman I have looked at the
management skills needed to mcet the future
needs of the business. I have begun a process
of re-invigorating the Board.

During the year Sir Francis Mackay, Chairman,
and Michael Bailey, Chief Executive, left the
Company. On behall of the Board I would

like to acknowledge their role in establishing
Compass Group as the global leader in
contract foodservice.

In June we appointed Richard Cousins,
previously Chief Executive of BPB plc, as
our new Group Chief Executive. Richard’s
track record in opcrational management,
business transformation and the creation of
sharcholder value has alrcady been invaluable
in mapping out the Group’s luture strategy.

In December Val Gooding will step down
from the Board after seven years. On behalf
of the directors I would like to thank Val for
the enormous dedication and commitment
she has shown to the Group.

Peter Cawdren, who has been a member of

the Board since 1993 and is curremtly Deputy
Chairman and Senior Independent Director,
will retire from the Board at the Annual General
Meeting in February. I would like to thank Peter
on behalf of the Board for his outstanding
contribution to the Group and on a personal
note for the support he has given me since
taking over as Chairman,

I am delighted to welcome two new additions
to the Board. Sir [an Robinson, formerly
Chief Executive of Scottish Power and
currently Chairman of Ladbrokes ple
{formerly Hilton Group ple) and a Dircctor
of Siemens Holdings plc will join the Board
as a non-executive director on 1 December.
His experience of developing international
businesses will be enormously valuable 1o us,

Gary Green will join the Board as an cxceutive
director on 1 January 2007, He has been at
Compass for over 20 years and has successfully
led the development of our business in North
America since 1999,

Corporate governance

The way the Group is managed has been a
matter of concern for shareholders. Dunng the
vear [ have taken a number of decisive steps to
improve corporate governance, We have put in
place more robust centralised controls to cnsure
effective decision making. I have also established
a sub-committee of the Board to focus on
corporate responsibility. Its terms of reference
include looking at all aspects of husiness
conduct, safety, health and emvironmental
management, and responsible business practice.

United Nations

This has been an unforiunate episode in the
Group’s history. The Board has instituted a
number of changes 10 control procedures as a
result of the lessons we have learned. In March
2006 two competing food companics brought
US lawsuits totalling some £600 million against

ESS, Compass and various ESS sl Though
these claims would have been resolutely
defended we decided that it was in the hest
interests of the on-going business and
sharcholders o setde these claims without
prolonged litigation. In October, with ne
admission of legal liability, we reached final
settlement of all claims [or less than

£40 million. We continue to cooperate fully
with the relevant UN and US authorities in
their on-going investigations.

Our people

This has been another tough year for our
people. They have supported one another as we
have 1aken the actions necessary to improve our
performance and restore our reputation. They
have also acted professionally to produce the
highest level of customer service. On behall of
the Board T want w record our appreciation

of their continued dedication and commitment,

Outlook

The results we have reperted for 2006 are a
henchmark from which to measure our future
performance. Fundamental changes have been
made during the year, including new leadership,
a comprehensive review of the business, and
establishing clear strategic priorities for the
future. We have improved financial discipline
and governance across the Group and we are
now well placed to leverage the significant
opportunities our global platform gives us. These
actions will, in the vears ahead, improve our
performance and deliver value for shareholders.

Lo Spri—

Sir Roy Gardner
Chairman

29 November 2006

Full year dividend

1C.t sence +3%

Sale of SSP
O« o
£1.8crm

Compass shér—e ;)rze _p;rf_o_m_l_a;ce
vs FTSE 100 2006
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The FISE 109 index has been rebased to the Compass
Sroup share price on 30 September 2005 (206.25 pence).
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Thinking and acting
like ane business

Chief Executive's statement

Our objective 1s to maximise sharcholder
value through delivering profitable and
sustainable growth in our chosen markets.

Richard Cousins Group Chicf Fxceutive
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First impressions

In my first three months T visited 15 of our
largest countries and reccived presentadons on
a further 30 key markets. e is ¢lear to me that
our customer seivice is excellent and that our
people are committed and passionate about
what they do. We have sirong client relationships
and market leading positions in our core
markets. We also have a global footprine that
should enable us to leverage our scale and
expertise to develop growth for the future.

Hence my conclusion is that fundamentally
this is a good business with a sound strategy.
However, the model has been alitde
overstretched and in some parts of the world
governance and control hive been lacking
We therefore teed w create a more intensive
performance culture. This implies the need
10 support customers locally but asking our
managers across the world to operate within
simple global frameworks, We scek intelligent
top-line growth and a more disciplined approach
to reducing our global cost base,

Very simply we need 1o build on our stirengths
anct correct our weaknesses. We have to create
a management and performance culture that
has at its core the delivery of profitable growth
to maximise shareholder value. Aligning the
business around this single unifying objective is
the priority for me and my management team.

Business strategy

To be successful we must deliver the highest
quality and performance, whilst relentlessty
driving o be the lowest cost, most efficient
provider. Our focus going forward will be

on the creation of real sharcholder value
delivered in a disciplined and sustainable way,

At the moment we trade in too many countries
where future growth prospects do not offer

adequate returns, Over the next 12 months we
will reduce the number of countries we operate

in to 60-65.

Our core husiness will remain contract
foodservice. We are focused on it and excited
by the opportunity. The market is some
"150 billion in size and, with outsourced
E
penetration still at around 50%, our market
grows at about 5% a vear.

There is clearly a growing trend amongst

some clients to source catering and other
suppart services, such as cleaning, from a single
provider. This market, including catering, has

a value of around £700 billion, and with circa
35% outsourced, growing at around 10% a year.
Support services already account for around
10% of our revenue and we are ideally placed
to leverage our existing chent relationships to
offer them integrated food and support services.
We will only do this, though, where it makes
sense and enhances value for sharcholders.

Offering clicnts an integrated loodservice and
vending solution has been a key competitive
advantage in North America. Qur European
vending business, Sclecta, though highly
profitable, only has 9% of its revenues with

our contract foodservice clients, We have
decided that this business is not a core part of
our operations and will be sold. We will continue
to offer European clients an appropriate vending
solution when they require it.

The sale of Selecta following other disposals
(such as SSP, Moto and Au Bon Pain) and
the gradual withdrawal from a number of
small countries will mark the end of a phase
for Compass. I'rom this new, tighter core
Compass will be able to grow in a sustainahle
way. Capital expenditure, which three years
ago exceeded £300 millien a vear will, for
the next two-three years, be held at circa

2% of revenuc a year.

Profit drivers

Our objective over the next two-three years will
be to drive disciplined profitable growth with the
focus more on organic growth and much less

on acquisitions. Within that philosophy we will
drive performance by concentrating upon five
simple profit drivers:

Client sales and marketing: winning new
business is, and will continue to be, a clear
strength for Compass. However, as we improve
discipline and focus on unit margins, organic
growth rates may, for a peried, slow a linle
before increasing back to trend rates. We will
work closely with clients to deliver like-for-like
revenue growth seeking to balance the needs
of value for money, efficicncy and a fair reward
for a job well done. In the medium-long term,
we will work harder to demonstrate to potential
clients the benefits of outsourcing,

Consumer sales and marketing: we will seck
a more innovative approach to our consurncrs
improving the quality of our offer, restaurant
designs and point of sale displays. Like-for-
like volume growth will be an important key
performance indicator and where we face
inflationary cost pressures we will seck
reasonable price increases.

Food cost: we spend over £3.5 billion a year
on food. Our objective must be o procure the
optimal quality and range of food to meet

the needs of our customers at the lowest cost.
This means having an eflicient supply chain
that leverages our scale whilst being much more
disciplined about rationalising our supplier and
product base. Driving in-unit compliance with
approved purchasing lists through a much more
systematic approach to menu planning and
portion control will be critical,

Unit costs: we spend nearty £6 hillion a vear
on unit costs. We will work closely with clients
and employees to improve labour scheduling
and efficiency and to reduce unit overheads.

Above unit overheads: we lose too much of
our unit profit to overheads. We need a simpler
model with fewer layers of’ management and
less bureaucracy. This year we have achiceved
our target of £50 million of overhead savings
and are seeking a similar reduction once again
in 2007. Therealter, the drive for overhead
efficiency will continue.

Focus on management and

performance (‘MAP’)

I have dismantled the divisional structure so
that we have greater visibility of the underlying
performance of local businesses. New manthly
reporting processes and regular business reviews
with country management teams will ensure
that all of us are constantly focused on the
same things. As part of this process the five
profit drivers outlined previously are being
orchestrated into a global performance
framework called ‘MAP’. Local managing
directors are empowered to run their business
within clearly defined corporate governance
rules and MAP,

The actions that have already been taken to
improve financial discipline and governance

are focusing management on value creation.
There are three simple questions that managers
at all levels in the business are beginning 1o use
in their decision making. Does it fir with our
strategy? What are the risks and rewards?

Does it create value for shareholders?

Through creating a performance-driven culture
wc are increasing the focus and intensity with
which we manage the business to deliver value
for sharehalders.

Conclusion

2006 has been a transitional year for Compass
against which we can benchmark our
performance.

By stepping up the intensity with which we
manage the performance of the business,

and with a disciplined focus on the key profit
drivers, we are well placed to create and deliver
sustainable shareholder value.

i (o

Richard Cousins
Group Chief Exccutive
29 November 2006

Effective decision making

To help us make the right operational decisions,
we use a simple process that confirms value
genuinely exisis,

Does it fit with our strétegy? '
What are the risks and rewérﬁs:?

Does it create value for shareholders?
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The results so far

North America contract gaiﬁs‘_

Bon ;\ppcm Management Company and Chartwells
have won a five-year contract with Duke University

worth 810 million in annual revemies.

AMorrison and Cdnlu.n have wim a | D-ycar contract
with the State Universiy of New York Health Sciences

worth $7 million in annual revenues.

In Canada, Furest won a five-ye
Oneario Science Cenure worth $3 million in
annual revenues.

pllt of revenue

£4, 290m

ar contract with

Split of operating profi t'
£246m
2005; £218m

* Before exceptional items and including profit
of associates.

Summary operating review

North America

Our business in North America has had another
excellent year as we continue to leverage the
leading positions we have established in each
of our chosen market sectors,

Market position and trends

Through our portfolio of specialist operating
companies we are the largest contract
foodservice company in the USA and Canada.

The largest market in the world, North America
remains a significant opportunity with areund
50% contractor penetration. The most attractive
future growth opportunities are in Healthcare
and Education, where less than 40% of the
market is outscurced.

In Business & Industry despite the relative
maturity of the market there are still significant
opportunities to drive volumes and spend per
head through product innovation.

Healthy cating is the dominant consumer
wrend. Concerns over ohesity and the
composition and provenance of foods are
continuing to drive consumer purchasing
habits. Balanced Choices is our global healthy
eating programme designed to help consumers
make the right choices for their chosen
lifestyles. Using iconography on menu cards
and packaging, allied to healthy cooking
techniques such as grilling as opposed to
frying, consumers can select from a range

of options low in salt, fats and sugar. Over
700 of our accounts in North America are
now implementing the Balanced Choices
Programme and we have trained over 2,800
of our chefs and unit managers to the
required operating standards.

Overview of the year

Organic growth was 12% fuelled by significant
new business gains across all the sectors.
Contract retention for the vear was 96% with
major renewals including a five-year extension
to Morrison’s contract with BJC Health System

worth 347 million in annual revenues and a
10-vear extension to Chartwells” contract with
Flonida Adantic University worth $9 million in
annual revenues.

We continued to focus on profitability aned
working capital management o drive
improvements in return on capital employed.

We also completed the acquisition of the
remaining 31% of Levy Restaurants for
§230 million.

Canteen, the world’s largest route vending
company, completed the rollout of its I-vend
route accountability and cash control system
which is reducing shnnkage and improving
labour cfficiency.

Product and service development

During the vear 203 senior executives have
been through an intensive two-day training
programmie, Managing for Value, destgned

o develop their strategic thinking and improve
cash management and return on capital
employed in their businesses.

As part of our commitment 1o 1ackling childhood
obesity we have developed a nutritional awareness
programme, ‘Eat, Learn, Live’, specilically for
our Education sector. It encourages healthy
eating through helping siudents gain a better
understanding of what foods to ca, the health
benefits and the link between good nutrition and
academic attainment,

We have signed an exclusive 10-year agreement
with the Dieticians of Canada as sponsor of the
National Nutrition Month which has as its locus
tackling childhood obesity.

As part of our commnment 1o sustainable
sourcing, in March we announced a change

to our scafood purchasing policy with a
commitment to buying one million pounds of
sustainable seafood annually (this accounts for
around 20-25% of our total scafood purchases).

Outtook

In 2007, we expect to see continuing good
revenue growth but at lower levels than
thosc seen in 2006.
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_Targetl_ng gl."owth
mdustries with
innovative products
and services.

Sector: Business & Industry .
Employvees want foodservice otfers at their place
of work that deliver the choice, quality and value
- for'money available on the high street. For our
+ cliénts.in growth industries such as financi '
services, legal and.IT we.are ¢ ¢

- need¥ o

{ and health
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Summary operating review
continued

Continental Europe

Trading remains challenging, reflecting the
on-going weakness of a number of Continental
European economies. We are focused on
improving the performance of poorer
performing contracts and on restructuring
country management teams to create a robust
platform for sustainable growth in the future.

Market position and trends

The contract foodservice market in Europe has
an approximate value of £43 billion and with
outsourcing at below 30% represents an exciting
opportunity. ¥We have established strong positions
in all the major Continental Furopean markets.
Where there is suflicient market density we are
sectorising the business to better tailor our offer
to the specific needs of clients.

[n the most developed markets, as in the UK
and North America, the trend, particularly in
Business & Industry, is moving away from cliemt
subsidy to profit & loss and fixed price contracts.
In response we are adopting a more retail
orienied approach 1o drive consumer volumes
and spend per head.

There is growing consumer interest in healthy
sating, Qur global programme, Balanced
Choices, is being introduced across Europe
and is heing well received by both clients and
CONSUINCTS.

Overview of the year

Organic growth was 2% with flat operating
profit in line with our expectations and reflecting
the continuing weakness of a number of major
econoemics. We saw strong growth in the Nordic
countrics as a result of the continuing strength
of the oflshore oil and gas scetor and in Spain
with double-digit growth in both the Education
and Healthcare scctors as well as sigmificant
growth in the senior living market.

In Germany we saw some modest organic
growth but a significant improvement in the

operating margin, particularly in the Business

& Industry sector, In France, Switzerland and
the Netherlands the actions taken by the new
lcadership teams to simplily the management
structure and the adoption of a shared services
approach has stabilised the business and resulted
in improved performances. In Italy and Portugal
we have put in place new management teams
who are restructuring the business to reduce
operating costs.

Product and service development

In France, working in partnership with
renowned Michelin starred chef, Yannick Alleno,
we have launched a new brand, “Millessence’,
rargeted at corporate boardrooms and the

Fine Dining scctor.

In Healthcare, Medirest has introduced two
new concepts in the Nordic countries, ‘Meals
for Life” has been developed specifically for

the residential and long-term care markets to
respond to the demand for healthy, nutritious
and high quahty lood prepared to the very
highest food hygiene and traccability standards.
“Your Private Chef” is targeted at meals-on-
wheels customers to offer a wider choice of
appetising and nutritious meals. We have also
introduced steam technology in Sweden and
the Neorlands University Hospital contract,
which is being mobilised during January, will be
the largest to utilise this revolutionary steam
technology in Continental Europe,

[]1 Gcrmany llrld Ll'l(: N(:l]]Cl'l:ll'ldS we ha\'e
introduced programmes 1o reduce absenteeism
and labour turnover through increasing
emplovee loyalty and satsiaction.

In sports stadiums and arenas in Germany we
have begun using biodegradable corn cups as
opposed to plastic. These environmentally
friendly cups use 35% less fossil fuel 10 produce
and are completely compostable,

Outlook

In 2007, we expect to see similar levels of overall
revenue growth as we continue to be selective on
new business. With the significant reorganisation
activity undertaken in 2006 we would expect to
begin 1o see some margin progression,

Continental Europe contract gains

In Nerway, ESS won a five-year contract with Stioil
for four site camps, worth over €18 million a year in
annual revenues,

In Germany, Eurest won a new contract with Motorola
with annual revenues of €3 million.

[n Italy, Onama won new contracts with Bergamo
Haspital and 3rd Age Housing in Turin with combined
unnual revenues of €4 millien.

Split of revenue

£2.883m

2005: £2,830m

Split of operating profit*
,\

£168m

2005: £169m

* Before exceptional items and including profit
ol associates.
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United Kingdom contract gains

Medirest secured a seven-year contract worth over
£9 millien in anmaal revenue to provide full hotet
services it two hospitals in Merseyside for the

St Helens and Knowsley Hospitals Trust.

Scolarest won a new contract with Westminster City
Council worth over £2 million in annual revenue to
serve over 1 million meals annually at 39 primary
and tyo secondary schools.

Leith’s won o 10-yeur contract to provide full
catering services for Beaulien Enterprises Lid,
worth £1 million a year in annual revenue.

Split of revenue

%‘i %957rn

Split of operating profit
£115m
2005: £114m

* Before exceptional items and including profit
of assotintes,

Summary operating review
continued

United Kingdom

The stabilisation of the UK business is
progressing well under a new leadership team.
The introduction of a simplified and more
focused business model will underpin the
delivery of improved financial performance.

Market position and trends

We are the leader in contract foodservice
in the United Kingdom and have market
leading positions in many of the sectors in
which we operate.

Across all the sectors there is increasing demand
from customers for options that promote healthy
cating. In the Education secter we have been

at the forefront of helping schools meet the
Government’s new standards for school meals.
Over 60% of the contracts we operate already
meet the 2008 nuirient standards and exceed
the guidelines on fresh fruit and vegetables and
meat and porton sizes. We have also launched
a ‘Putting the Fun into Food' Programme to
raise the profile of healthy cating in primary
and secondary schools.

In Business & Industry the trend away from client
subsidy to profit & loss and fixed price contracts
is continuing, Meal times are shortening,

with the average lunch break now less than

30 minures. There is also a marked trend
towards all-day snacking and this is increasing
the demand for *grab and go’ products.

Overview of the year

Our priority has been (o start stabilising the
business and build a firm foundation for future
growth. We have made good progress in creating
a more robust contract base by renegotiating

or exiting poorer performing ones. The impact
of these actions has been offset by new contract
gains enabling us to achieve a similar level

of financial performance to last year.

The Educadoen sector has again heen challenging
as we have responded o the Government’s drive
to improve school meals. There are now clear
signs thar this sector is beginning to stabilise and
during the summer we won new contracts in
Reading, Sheffield, Kent and West Sussex.

In May we appointed [an El-Mokadem,
previously Managing Director of Onetel,
o run the UK business. He has a wealth
of experience in business strategy and in
consumer and retail markets, which will be
invaluable as the business responds to the
trends in the marketplace.

Product and service development

I\S contract structures move onto a maore
commercial basis and client subsidies reduce,
we are continuing 1o invest in developments
that extend our product portfolio to meet
customer needs and drive elliciencies.

Using mnovative steam pressure technology to
cook appeusing and fresh food quickly while
preserving the nutritional content, is gencrating
new growth opportunities in the Education,
Healtheare and Business & Industry sectors,

Though not a substitute for traditional
preduction kitchens it provides a high-quality
and cost-cllective alternative for schools with
no hot meals service. In West Sussex Scolarest
has won a comract with the County Council 10
provide meals for 238 primary schools as they
transition from a packed lunch to hot meals
service, When fully mobilised we will provide
over four million meals a year.

In Healtheare one of the challenges for NHS
Trusts is to provide high-quality nutritions
meals that increase patient satisfaction and

aid recovery, Utilising steam technology
Medirest is able 1o offer clients and paticnus a
more extensive choice of hot meals cooked to
order at ward level. We are currently supplying
aver 10,000 such meals a day across 30
hospitals. To meet demand we have developed
a “Cuisine Cenure’” in St Albans capable of
producing 35,000 meals a day

In Business & Industry steam technology is a
cost-effective option at client locattons where
the number ol on-site stafl would not
commercially justify a wraditional meal service.

Outlook

We expect business w remain challenging in
the UK in 2007, particularly in the Education
sector. We will, however, continue to simplify
the business 1o generate cost efficiencies and
focus on improving the margin, particularly
on poorer performing contracts.
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Summary operating review
continued

Rest of the World

Organic revenue growth was driven by strong

performances in Australia and Latin America

as a result of the buoyant offshore oil and gas

and remote site mining sectors, We completed

the planned exit from our Middle East military

catering operations and continued to exit the
high street retail restaurant market in Japan.

Market position and trends

The contract foodservice market in the Rest
of the World has an approximate value of
£47 billton with outsourcing a litle over 50%
but with significant opportunitics remaining
in the Education, Healtheare and Defence,
Offshore & Remote sites sectors.

Over the last 10 years we have established a
presence in those countrics that ofler auractive
current and luture growth prospects. During
this ime we have established leading positions
in Australia, Japan, Asia and Latin America
and have clients in over 40 countries.

In the more developed markets, such as
Australia, we have begun to sectorise our

ofler to respond o the specific requirements

of clients in the Healtheare and Education
sectors. In markets such as China and Incha
we are continuing 1o ¢nsure that our business
15 well placed 1o respond and benefit from the
projecied growth of these emerging cconomies.

The trend wwards healthy living is continuing
and we are adapting our glubal healthy eating
programme, ‘Balanced Choices’, 1o meet the
different cultural and culinary requirements
of our consumers.

Overview of the year

We saw organic growth across all sectors up
3% overall, The Defence, Offshore & Remote
sites sector grew by 24%, as o result of strong
performances in Australia and Latin America,
and now represents 35% of the Rest of the

World business. In Japan we are continuing
our planned exit from the high street regail
restaurant market and this held back organic
growth to 4%.

We have seen good profit growth in Australia
and other countries with remote site operations
reflecting the buoyancy of the wil, gas and
extractive industries. Overall operating profit
for the Rest of the World has been held back
in part by the impact of the natonalisation of
the extractive industry in Venczuela following
a change of government,

China offers significant future growth prospects
and we are very pleased with the development
of our business in this important market,
Durning the year we won contracts with Nokia,
Bayer Polymers, Tianjin Denso Flectronies
and Foxxcon International. As planned we
have now completed our exit lrom military
catering operations in the Middle Tast.

Product and service development

Health and safety is the number one priority
for us and our clients in the Defence, Offshore
& Remote sites sector. In Australia, we have
launched the ‘Compass Care’ initiative to
promote excellence in health and safewy
management and to facilitate the rehabilitation
and rewurn 1o work of ifl or injured employees.

In Japan, we arc responding to our clienis’
increasing fecus on the management of their
environmental impacts by increasing the number
of our units with ISO14001 (Environmental
Quality Standards) Accreditation. We now have
360 of our units achieving the required standards.

Also in Japan our ‘Dessert Forest’ menu
development trial designed to boost sales by
encouraging customers 1o select an additional
item has resulted in a 3% increase in sales.
The programme will now be rolled out across
all our Business & Industry operations,

Outlook

In 2007 we would expect to sec more moderate
revenue growth but would now expect to begin
to see some margin progression.

Rest of the World contract gains

[ Awsiralia, we have been awarded a five-year contract
with the Sydney Central Garrison Support worth aver
AS50 million in annual revenues.

Medirest in Australia has won contracts for three years
with _Jewish Care and Masonic Homes with combined
anmual revenues of AS7.5 million.

In China, Furest has won three-year contracts with
Yew Chung [nternational School of Shanghai Gubei
and Honggiao Campus and the Beijing International
Singaporean Schoel.

Split of revenue

£1,705m

20085: £1,500m

Split of operating profit*

2005: £563m

* Heliwe exceptional items and including profic
of associates.
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Acting responsibly
in business

Acting responsibly is not new to Compass.
We believe that meeting stakeholder
expectations is an essential building block
for business sustainability and growth in
shareholder value.

Governance of social responsibility

Chr tradition of encouraging local ewnership

provides a firm foundation on which to build.

We believe there is more we can do and have

this year set up a Corporate Responsibility
lommittee, chaired by Sir Roy Gardner.

Its remit is to provide strategic direction and

guidance on all aspects of business practice

and responsibility ensuring consistent

implementation everywhere we aperate,

Solid foundations to achieve

industry leadership

In 2006 we have taken steps to improve our
environmental, social and ethical performance.
We have put in place “Speak Up’ lines so that
our employees can raise any concerns about
hew we conduct our business on a confidential
basis. Most significantly, we have reviewed the
valucs that are at the heart of Compass. They
guide us on how we conduct business regardless
of where we are in the world. Our values are
Opcnness, Trust and Integrity; Passion for
Quality; Win Through Teamwork; Can-Do
and last, but ot least Responsibility, a clear
commitment to embedding responsible business
practice as part of our culture.

To help focus our attention we have also set out
a clear framework of responsibilities that are
specilic to Compass as well as those which

are common o all large businesses.

A future prionty for us is to establish a common
sct of performance indicators. This will provide
us with a means to monitor and manage
performance at a Greup level complementing

existing measures at an operating company level,

Our responsibilities

Business integrity

The Compass Group Code of Ethics sets

out our social, ethical and environmenial
commitment towards cach of our stakeholders
and the communities in which we operate.
The Code is the bedrock of our corporate
responsibility programme.

Safety, health and the environment

Our number one operational priority is safcty,
health and environment. We believe that each
of us at Compass Group has a moral obligation
to safeguard cach other, our cuscomers and the
environment by operating a safe, injury free and
healthy workplace, serving food that is always
safe to eat and which mimimises our impact on
the environment.

We take our environmental responsibilities
seriously, believing that cffective environmental
management is in the interests of both our
business and our clients in whose premiscs we
operate. Our Environmental Pelicy sets out

our commitment and our Safety, Health and
Envirenment Forum {(SHEF} promotes policy,
sets standards and monitors best practice across
the Group.

We asked Trucost PLC to assess our environmental
performance and oyr key impacts. Udlising the
maodel used by the British Government to select
the KPIs relevant to each sector of British
industry they identified greenhouse gases,
particularly CO2 emissions and waste as our

key impacts. Next year we will sct out the

actions we will take to better manage our direct
impacts and thereafier we will report annually
on our progress.

Diet and nutrition

As a global foodservice company we know that
we have an enormous influence on what our
20 million consumers a-day choose to eat and
drink. As such, our contribution to their diet
and nutrition is our most significant impact.

We are working closely with our clients,
suppliers, governments and regulators across
the world to respond to the cmerging public
health issucs associated with obesity and diet.
We aim to provide a wide choice of menu

Setting a course for industry teadership

iterns so that consumers sceking healthier
options to suit their particular lifestyle are
well served.

Culinary tastes vary across the globe, so we

do not aim for a consistent approach, but rather
hasic principles that place healthy eating as a
primary responsibility across the globe. Priorities
in North America will be very different from
countries in, say the Asia-Pacific reglons,

Sourcing food responsibly

The purchasing decisions we make have
implications for food production and
cnvironmental sustainability. We expeet our
suppliers to have the same high social, ethical
and environmental standards as we aspire to.

Qur people

Qur people are our greatest asset and the face
Compass presents to the world. We want them
to be mativated and engaged, we value their
diversity and are committed to providing them
with development and training opportunitics
1o fulfil their potential. We also encourage
employee volunteering to support the
communities in which thev live and work.

Comntunity

We have a strong track record in community
engageiment. Compass in the Community,
established a decade ago, recognises the best
community-hased initiatives from across the
world. Projects promote healthy lifestyles,
tackle social exclusion, improve emplovability
and promote sustainability and diversity.
Compass in the Community rewards successful
teamns with 2 donation to support their project.

How are we doing?

External recognition such as inclusion in

the Dow Jones Sustainability Index provides

a benchmark for our performance. Our
commitment 10 the United Nations Global
Compact, the Percent Club and other relevant
organisations demonstrates our intent.

In 2007, we will be producing a Corporate
Responsibility report which will explain our
approach to managing our social, ethical,
envirenmental and broader economic impacts
in more detail.

[ .
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Summary financial review

These are the first full year results prepared
and presented in accordance with Internatonal
Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRS’) and
comparative figures have been restated
accordingly. Discontinued operations have
heen excluded throughout this review, except
where otherwise stated.

Andrew Martin Group Finance Dhrector
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The Group achieved 7% organic revenue growth
in 2006 with sueng performances in North
America and the Rest of the World reglons, bt
more difficult trading in the UK and Continental
Europe. Actions are underway to improve
financial performance, with continued focus on
delivery of strong frec cash flow and improved
returns on capital employed (ROCE) over the
medium term. The Group has announced
medium-term {2006-2008) objectives 10 improve
ROCE by 100 basis points and to generate {ree
cash flow from continuing operations over the
period of £800 million-£ 850 million.

Group performance
The Group’s reported financial summary for the
vear ended 30 September 2006 is set out below.

Increase/

2006 2005 (decrease)

Continuing operations
before exceptional items

Revenue L10.815m £101L073m 4%
Operating profit? £308m 496 2.1%
Operating murgint 1.7% 9% (20Dhps
Profit before tax

— undesdvingt £363m  [34m 5.5%
= reported £3Mm [34m 9.7%
Free cash flow £2656m  £227m 16.7%
Basic carmings per share

— underlying! 11.4p 1009 1.6%
= reported 11.7p 1007p 0.4%
Total Group

after exceptional items

Basic curnings per share 13.3p 9.0p  47.8%
Dividend per ordinary share 10.1p .Bp 3.1%

Prior period figures have been restaied from

UK GAAP 10 IFRS,

Includes share of profit of associaes.

Excludes share of profit ol associac:

Underlying profit belore tax and basic carnings per share
excludes exceptional items and income of £11 million
(2005: charge £(3) million) in respect of hedge accounting
weffectiveness and hasic carnings per share exchudes these
items net of tas.

oW R

Discontinued operations

On 15 June 2006, Compass completed the sale
of its travel concessions catering business, Sclect
Service Partner, including Creative Host Services
in the US (together, *SSP), for net consideration
after transaction costs of /1,798 million. SSP’s
revenue and operating profits in 2003 were
£1,804 million and £112 million respectively
on an IFRS basis. During the pertod, the Group
also completed the sale of its European Inflight
catering business for net consideration after
transaction costs of £63 million, the RA Patina
public restaurants business in the US and the
Strand Palace Hotel in London for a towal of
£85 million and a number of other small travel
concessions rclated businesses for a wotal of

L7 million. The revenue and operating profits
of these businesses in 2005 were £;342 million
and £12 million respectively.

The results of all these businesses are treated

as discontinued operatons and are therefore
excluded from the results of” continuing
operations in 2006, The 2005 results have heen
restatedd on a consistent basis. The results of the
Selecta vencing business are reported within
r(m[lllumg u])(:l’:l[l(:t’ls.

The Group has completed the withdrawal.from
its Midclle East military catering operations.
The revenue and operating protiss before
exceptional items in 2005 from these activities
were £175 million and £34 million respectively:
I'he results of these operations are also wreated
as discontinued operations and are therefore
excluded from the results of continuing
operations in 2006, The 2005 results have

been restated on a consistent basis,

Revenue

Overall, the Group delivered revenue growth
of 7% on a reported basis, 6% on a constant
curreney basis and 7% organte growth
(previously referred to as like-for-like growth).

Operating profit
Operating profit from continuing operations
including associates is £508 million

(2005: £496 millicm) an increase of 2.4%,

Finance cost

Net finance cost for the year is £134 million
(2003: £135 millien) including £11 million
non-cash income on hedge accounting
meflectiveness (arising on the revaluation of
interest rate hedging instruments that do not
qualify for hedge accounting under 1AS 39)
(2005: charge £(3) million). Excluding this
hiedge accounting ineffectiveness, the underlving
net finance cost for the year is £145 million
(2005: £152 million). We currently anticipate
underlying net finance costs to be around

L£105 mallion- 110 million for 2007 principally
reflecting a full year’s benefit of the net disposal
proceeds received during the course of 2006,

Profit before tax

Profit before ax from continuing operations
belbre exceptional items is £374 million
{2005: £341 million) up 9.7%.

On an underlying basis, before hedge
accounting ineffectiveness, profit before wax
from cominuing eperations increased by 5.5%
w0 £363 million (2005: {344 million).

Income tax expense

The overadl Group tax charge before
exceptional items for the year is 113 million
(2005: £96 million}, giving an effective tax rate
of 30% (2005: 28%). We expect the Group's
ellective tax rate o average around the 30%
level for the foresecable future.

Basic earnings per share

Basic carnings per share are 13.3 pence

{20052 9.0 pence) up 47.8%. Excluding
exceptional items and discontinued operations,
basic earnings per share on an underlying basis,
before hedge accounting ineflectiveness, are
11.4 pence (2005: 10.9 pence) up 4.6%.
Attnbutable profit and basic earnings per

share are reconciled in the following table.

Attributable
profit Basic eamings per share
2006 2005 2006 2005
_Em  fm pence pence Change
Reported 285 195 13.3 9.0 47.8%
Biscontinued
operations and
cxceptivnal items {34) 30 {1.6) 1.7
Hedge accounting
ineffectiveness
::,‘ﬁ,'ir,lfﬁ - {7 + (0.3) 0.2
Undedying 244 235 11.4 10,9 16%
Dividends

The recommended final dividend is 6.7 pence
per share resulting in a wo1al dividend of

10.1 pence per share for the vear

(2005: 9.8 pence}, a vear-on-vear increase of
3.1% over 2005. Dividend cover for 2006
was 1.1 umes underlving earnings. Whilst

we remain commitied to continue to grow the
dividend in real terms, our objective over the
medium term remains 1o move the dividend
cover more towards the nwo times level.

Acquisitions

The acquisition of the remaining 51% interest
in Levy Restaurants not already held was
completed on 18 April 2006 for $250 million
({134 mallion).

The Group’s strategic focus continues to e

on the organic development of its existing core
businesses. As a result, only a small number of

minor acquisitions were completed where these
reinforeed sectoral presence in certain areas.

The Group does not currently anticipate any
significant new acquisitions during 2007 and
payments of deferred consideration in respect
of past acquisitions and the buyout of minority
interests is currently expected to total around

£30 million in 2007.

Disposal of Selecta

In November 2006, the Group announced
uts intention to dispose of its Selecta vending
businesses operating in 21 countries in
Continental Europe and in the UK.

These businesses generated revenue of

£476 million, carmngs before nterest and tax
(EBIT) of £45 million and earnings before
interest, tax and depreciation (EBITDA) of
£87 million in 2006. Net capital expenditure
in 2006 totalled £46 milion.
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Summary financial review
continued

Pensions
The Group now accounts for pensions in
accordance with IAS 19,

Significant one-ofl’ contributions were made

to the two main UK defined bencfic schemes
during the year wtalling £280 million following
the disposal of the SSP business and the Strand
Palace Hotel.

As u result, the total pensions deficit was
significantly reduced at 30 September 2006
to £282 million (2005: £555 million).

The Group has reviewed its pension
assumptions and continued to move to more
prudent assumptions in determining the deficit,
including life expectancy assumptions which
have again been inereased in 2006,

For example in the UK, life expectancy
assumptions at age 65 for a pensioner has

been increased o 19.7 years (male), 22.6 vears
(female) {2005: 17.8 years (male), 20.7 years
{female)) and for non-pensioners lite expectancy
assumptions have been increased to 20.9 vears
(male), 23.7 years {female) (2005: 19.4 years
{male), 22.4 vears (female)).

The wotal pensions charge in the year was
£33 million (2005: £26 million) for defined
contribution schemes and £35 million

(2005: £53 million) for defined benefit
schemes. Of the defined benefit scheme costs,
£11 million (2005: £14 million) was charged
to net finance cost.

Return on capital employed

Return on capital employed (ROCE) is 10.7%
(2005: 10.7%) based on the continuing business
before exceptional items, excluding the Group’s
minority partner’s share of total operating
profit, nct of tax at 30%, and using an average
capital emploved for the year of £3,232 million
(2005: £3,137 mullion) calculated from the
IFRS balance sheet.

Under UK GAAP, included within average
capital employed was goodwill previously written
off to reserves, now extinguished under 1FRS,

2006 revenue split by sector (%)

O Business & Industry a1%
O Defence, Offshore & Remote 9%
0 Education 13%
O Healthcare 6%
0 Sports & Lelsure 11%
O vending 9%
O Travel concessions 1%

N

2006 revenue split by geography (%)

O North O} Swizerland 2%
— America 40% ] Netherlands 2%
O UK 18% [ Japan 5%
0 France 8% 0O CAMEA 3%
L1 Rest of 0O Austrafia 3%
Furope 5% OlLatin

\ OGemany 4%  America 3%
7 ftaly 3% O Asia Pacffic 2%

3 Spain 2%

and goodwill amortised prior to 30 September
2004, the date at which the net book value of
goodwill was frozen under IFRS. Including these
adjustments, average capital employed for the
year, for the continuing businesses, would have
heen £6,294 million (2005: £6,051 million) and
rcturn on capital employed for the continuing
business would have heen 5.9% (2005: 5.9%).

Financial targets

The Group’s three year targets for the
continuing business for 2006-2008 remain
unchanged at:

» 100 basis points improvement in ROCE;
= free cash flow from continuing operations

of /800 million-£ 850 million.

Cash fiow

Iree cash flow from the continuing business
totalled £265 million (2005: £227 million).
The major factors contributing to the increasc
were: £24 million reduction in net capital
expenditure and £44 million lower working
capatal outflow, offset by £14 million higher
net interest payments and £29 million higher
net tax payments,

Net capital expenditure, which two years ago
exceeded £300 million will, for the next
two-three years, be at a level of around 2%

of revenues after the disposal of the Sclecta
vending business. We are working hard at
improving our working capital performance and
now expect (o see an average annual outflow

of approximately £20 million. Given the scale
of the working capital balances, there are
however likely to be fluctuations between years,

The Group’s cash tax rate for the year was
27% (2005: 20%;, based on underlying profit
before tax. We expect the average cash tax rage
to remain at a similar level for the foresecable
tuture, but again with seme potential
fluctuations between years.

The net interest outllow of #£174 million in
2006 includes an outtlow of £20 million
over and above the income statement charge
relating to the swap reversal transactions
carricd out in 2004,

Acquisition payments were £ 167 million
(2005: £12] million) comprising the acquisition
of the remaining 51% interest in Levy
Restaurants which was completed on

18 April 2006 for 3250 million (£134 million),
£8 million from the buyout of half of the
remaining 10% of Onama in Italy, £8 million
of deferred consideration in respect of prior
vears' transactions and £18 million in respect
of other sundry acquisitions less £1 rmillion of
cash acquired.

Disposal proceeds net of transaction costs
comprises consideration of £1,955 million less
L£118 million of cash disposed and £45 million
consideration deferred to future periods, plus
£ 13 million of deferred consideration received
in the year relating to prior years’ transaclions.

Conclusion

The successful disposals of the travel concessions
husinesses including SSP and the exit from the
Middle East military catering business have
resulted in a more focused Group and leaves

us in a stronger financial position. The focus in
the coming vear will he on improving underlying
business performance,

Hk

Andrew Martin
Group Finance Director
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Board of directors

Reshaping our leadership - we have thought
long and hard about the leadership skills

we need. It 1s not just about looking at CVs;
it 15 also about understanding what each
personality brings to our business and how

the team mteracts.

01 Sir Roy Gardner

Chairman Age 61

Appuointed Chairman in July 2006 having been appeinted
o the Board as Senior Independem Director in October
2005, He is a senior advisor to Credit Suisse, President
of Carers UK snd Chaarman of the Apprentceship
Ambassadors Network. He is a former Chiel Executive
of Centrica ple, Chairman of Manchester United ple,
Finance Divector of British Gas ple, Managing Director
of GECG-Marconi Ltd and a Director of GEC plc and

a tormer nen-executive divector of Laporte ple.

Sir Roy is Chairman of the Nomination and Corporate
Responsibility Committees, a member of the
Remuneration Committee and received his Knighthood
in 2002 tor services to the gas and electricity industries.

02 Richard Cousins

Group Chief Executive Age 47

Appointed o the Board in May 2006 and appointed
Group Chief Fxeeutive in June 2006. He was until
December 2005 Chief Executive Officer of BPB ple,
having held a number of positions with that company
since joining it in 1990, He is a former non-executive
director of P&O and his earlier carcer was with Cadbury
Schweppes ple and BTR ple. Richard is a member of the
Corporate Responsibility Commitee.

03 Andrew Martin

Group Finance Director Age 46

Appointed to the Board in March 2004, He was
previously a partner with Archur Andersen and held
senior fnaneiat positions with Forte Ple and Granada
Group PLC. Fellowing the disposal of the Hotels Division
m 2001, Andrew joined First Choice Holidays PLC as
Finance Director He joined Compass Group in 2004, He
is an Assoctate of the Tostitute of Chartered Accountants
in England and Wales and an Associate of the Chartered
Institute of Taxation. Andrew is a member of the
Corporate Responsibility Committee.

04 Gary Green

Group Managing Director - USA, Canada

and Latin America Age 49

Appuinted 1o the Board with effect from January 2007,
Joined the Group in 1986 in a senior finance role in the
UK Division and hecame a UK divisional director in
1992, Relocated 10 the USA in 1994 as Chief Finance
Oflicer of the Groups North American Division and in
1999 beeame Chief Executive Officer. Appointed Chicf
Exccutive Officer of the Americas in January 2005,

05 Peter Cawdron

Senior Independent Director and

Deputy Chairman Age 63

Appointed to the Board in November 1993, He is Chairman
of GCAP Media PLC and a nonexecutive director of a
number of companies, including ARM Holdings PLC,
Johnston Press PLC, Prostrakan Group PLC, Punch Taverns
PLC and The Capita Group PLC. Peter is a former director
of Arda Foods UK PLC, Christan Salvesen PLC and Grand
Merropolitan PLC, He 1s Chatrman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Comminee,
Peter will retire from the Board at the conclusion of the 2007
Annual General Meeting

06 Peter Blackbum CBE

Non-execulive director Age 65

Appainted to the Board in Apri} 2002. He is a non-
exccutive directer of SIG ple. He s a former Chairman
of Narthern Foods ple, a past President of the Food and
Drink Federation and a former Chairman and Chiel’
Fxceutive of Nestle UK. Peter is a member of the Audit
and Nominmion Commirtees and was awarded o CBE
in 2003 tor services to the food and drink industry.

07 Val Gooding CBE

Non-executive director Age 56

Appointed to the Board in January 2000. She is Chief
Esecutive of BUPA, a non-executive director of Standard
Chartered PLC and a former non-executive dircctor of
BAA ple and Cable and Wireless Communications ple.
5he s a member of the Council of the University of
Warnwick und co-chair of the Advisory Board of the
Warwick Business School. She is a trustee of the British
Museum. Vice President of International Federation of
Health Plans and a non-executive director of the Lawn
Tennis Association. Val is a member of the Nomination
and Remuneration Commitiees and was awarded a CBE
in 2002 for services to business. Val will step down from
the Board on 31 December 2006.

08 Sven Kado

Non-execulive director Age 62

Appointed to the Board in April 2002, He is Chairman of
Marsh & MclLennan Heldings GmbH and was previously
Chiet Financial Officer of NixdorT Computer AG, Chicl’
Financial Officer of Dyckerhoft AG and senior advisar

of Principal Finance Group/Nomura International. Sven
is a member of the Audit and Remuneration Committees.

09 Steve Lucas

Non-executive director Age 52

Appuointed to the Board in July 2004. He is Group Finance
Director of National Ged ple having been previously
Executive Director. Finance of Lattice Group ple. He is

a chartered accountant and has held a number senior
finance positions with Shell Imernational Petroleum
Company and British Gas. More recently he was Treasurer
m BG Group. Steve ts Chairman of the Audit Committee
and is a member of the Remuneration and Corpurate
Responsibility Committees.

10 Sir lan Robinson

Non-executive director Age 64

Appointed to the Board with eflect from December 2006,
He is Chairman of Ladbrokes ple (formerly Hilton Group
ple), a non-executive director of Scottish & Neweastle ple
and Siemens Holdings ple. He is a former Chairman

ol Amey ple, Chiel’ Executive of Scottish Power plc and
non-executive director of ASDA pic and RMC ple.

Sir lan is a Fellow of the Roval Academy of Engineers,

a Fellow of the Instiwution of Chemical Engincers,

a member of the Takeover Panel and received his
Knighthood in 2000 for senvices o the electricity industry.
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Sir Roy Gardner Chairman

Q

The first principle of the Combined Code
concerns the need for an effective hoard,
How does the Compass Group Board apply
this principle?

A

The Board is ultimately responsible for the good
management of the Company, The directors
accept that we are collectively responsible for

its success.

This is a large business operating across the
globe. Tt is vital that we have clear lines of sight
so that we can discharge our duties effectively.
We have in place a framework to cnable us to
exercise control whilst delegating day-to-day
decision making to those running the business.

I have taken a number of decisive steps to
improve corporate governance, We have

put in place more robust centralised controls.
This gives the Board better visihility as to
the performance of the Group. But the
entreprencurial flair tha is essential to
improve profitability and shareholder value
has not been stifled.

In addition to the Nomination, Audit and
Remuneration Committees | have esiablished a
Corporate Responsibility Gommittee. Its terms
of reference are to look at all aspects of business
conduet, safery, health and environmental
management and responsible business practice.

The effectiveness of the Board comes from us
focusing on the things that really mater. Having
absolute clarity as to the distinet roles of the
Board and the executive management is vital.

The Combined Code principles alse deal
with the role of the board chairman,
How do vou see your role?

A

My key respensibility is to lead the Board and
make sure that it is doing its job effectively.

Corporate governance — Chairman’s Q&A

All UK histed companies are required to make
disclosures in relation to the Combined Code
on Corporate Governance. Sir Roy Gardner
discusses what steps he has taken to improve
the Group’s corporate governance since

becoming Chatrman.

In additien to strengthening the corporate
governance controls my priority this year has
been to ensure that we have a strategy tha will
deliver enhanced shareholder value, My role in
strategy development is to probe and challenge
the exceutive team. I do this by utilising the
experience and knowledge that different
directors bring 1o the Board.

Now that the strategy is in place the Board
and [ will regularly review how it is being
implemented by the Chief Executive and
his team.

Succession planning is also a key responsibility
of the Chairman. It is vital that we have a
strong Board but also a pool of talented
managers that one day will be candidates for
positions at the highest levels in the Group.

Finally I also play a role in shareholder
communications. Investor Relations is the
responsibility of the Group Chief Executive
and Finance Director, However, as Chairman
I maintain contact with the Group’s major
shareholders. [ need to know that they are
happy with the performance of the husiness.
I also need to be in a position 10 keep the
Board informed of their views.

Q

There have heen @ number of changes o the
membership of the Board this vear What do
these changes mean to the eflecoveness off
the Board?

A

The overriding priority for the Nomination
Committee was the appoiniment of a new
Group Chief Executive. Our requirement

was for an individual with a combination of
business transformation skills, internatonal
experience and a strong track record of creating
value for shareholders. We have found this
combination in Richard Cousins.

The composition of the Board is also evolving,
Tt is vital that the independent non-executive
directors and executive dircctors have the
skills and experience that reflect the needs

of the business. The appointment of Sir lan
Robinson and Gary Green has begun the
process of reinvigoration.

Q

A Kevaspreet of carporate governanee is the
means by which o hourd satisfies itself that a
company’s financial controls and systems of
risk management are robust and defensible
and that finaneial informadon s accurate
and can he relied on, How does Compass
Group apply this principle?

A

The Board has overall responsibility for the
system of internal controls maintained by

the Group. The Audit Committee, acting on
behalf of the Board, is responsible for regularly
reviewing their effectiveness, The Chairman

of the Audit Committee reports to the Board
on the Committee’s activities on a regular basis.

Each year the Board has a separate session
reviewing key risks and the actions being taken
to mitigate and manage them.

This year the Board has conducted a review of
the effectiveness of internal controls, We have
made i number of changes 10 make them more
robust and to improve the Board’s visibility of
the performance of the business. (More dewiled
information on the Group’s internal controls is
contained in the corporate governance report
on page 24 of the Annual Report.)

I hawe established a Corporate Responsibility
Commitice. As part of its remit it is responsible
for ensuring compliance with our Code of
Ethics and investigates all issues in relation

to business conduct, We have introduced
confidential ‘Speak Up’ lines covering 86% of
the business to cnable emplovees to raise any
concerns or alleged breaches of the Code.
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Summary directors’ report

Business activities, results and development
A review of the Group’s business activities, results and future
development can be found on pages 1 to 18 and 28 w0 35,

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Board has a pro-active approach to risk management with the aim
of protecting its employees and customers and safeguarding the interests
of the Company and its sharcholders.

Compass Group has specific policies in place (o ensure that risks are
properly evaluated and managed at the appropriate level with the
business. A risk assessment exercise is carricd out across the Group each
vear and the outcome is reviewed by the Board bi-annually.

Outlined below is a summary of what the Board considers 1o be the key
risks and uncertainties to successful delivery of its corporate objectives
and the activities the Group underakes to mitigate against these key
risks and uncertainies:

Description

Food safety

Mitigating activities

= the Group has i place policies, processes and
training procedures to eosure compliance with
its legal obligations in relation to food hygiene
and safeoy.

Client retention = our business model is structured so that we are not
reliant on one particular sector, geography or client.

People retention and motivation  — eraining and development programmes, succession
planning and performance management are
designed w align rewirds with our corparine
objectives and to retain and mativate our best
people.

Health, safety and emvironment = vuwr Safety, Health and Enviromment Forum (SHEF)
promotes policy, sets standards and monitors
best practice and reports to the Corporate
Respansibility Committee.

to reduce ask we are focusing on oaceahility, clear
specification of cur requirements 1o nominated
suppliers and the improvement of purchasing
compliance by unit managers.

Purchasing -

Litigation = though we di not operate in a litigious industry we
have in place palicies and processes in aur nijor
countries 1o mitigate against third-party litigation.

Reputation = the Group's zero tolerance based Code of Ethics
governs all aspects of our relationship with our
stakceholders. The Corporate Responsibility
Cummitiee investigates any alleged breaches,

Dividends

A final dividend is proposed for the year ended 30 September 2006 of
6.7 pence per ordinary share pavable on 5 March 2007 to sharcholders
on the register at the close of business on 9 February 2007, The shares
will be quoted ex-dividend from 7 February 2007, This together with the
mterim dividend of 3.4 pence per share paid on 7 August 2006 makes

a total for the period of 10,1 pence per share.

Environment

Information relevant to the Group’s responsibilities towards the
environment is given on page 15, The Group used Trucost PLC

1o identify the environmensal impacts that the Board believes are
appropniate for an understanding of its performance. In Trucost PLC's
opinion, Compass Group PLC has now identified the material KPIs that
it should report against in future annual report and accounts in
accordance with Government guidelines.

Directors

Biographical detatls of the directors are set out on page 19.

Sir Roy Gardner was appointed to the Board on 1 October 2005 and

he succeeded Sir Francis Mackay as Chairman on 1 July 2006. Richard
Cousins was appointed to the Board on 2 May 2006 and he succeeded
Michael Bailey as Chief Executive on | June 2006. Sir Ian Robinson
and Gary Green will be appointed to the Board with effect from 1
December 2006 and 1 January 2007 respectively. Alain Dupuis, Michael
Bailey and Sir Francis Mackay ceased to be directors on 1 October
2005, 31 May 2006 and 30 June 2006 respectively: Val Gooding will
ccasc (o be a director with effect from 31 December 2006. Details of the
directors” remuneration and interests in Compass Group shares are set
oul on pages 23 to 26.

Retirement and re-election of directors

Andrew Martin and Peter Canwdron retire from the Board by rowation.
Andrew Martin will stand for re-election at the 2007 Annual General
Meeting Peter Cawdron will not seck re-election and will retire at the
conclusion of the 2007 Annual General Meeting, Richard Cousins,
Sir lan Robinson and Gary Green are standing for clection at the
2007 Annual General Mecting.

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting will be held at the Queen Elizabeth II
Conference Centre, Broad Sanctuary, Westminster, London SW1P 3EE
at 11.00am on Friday 16 February 2007,

Summary financial statement

This summary annual review and financial statement does not contain
sufficient information to allow as full an understanding of the results of
the Group and state of alfairs of the Company or the Group, and of
their policies and arrangements concerning directors’ remuneration, as
would be provided by the full annual financial statements and reports.

Members who wish o receive full financial statements and reports

in place of the summary financial statcments for the year ended

30 September 2006 and all future years should write to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s registered office, the address of which is
shown on the back cover.

The independent auditors’ report on the full financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 30 September 2006 is unqualificd and does
not contain any statement concerning inadequate accounting records
or failure o obtain necessary information or explanations.
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Summary corporate governance report

The Board is committed 1o high standards of corporate governance and
for the year ended 30 September 2006 the Company complied with all
the provisions of the Combined Code.

Board structure

The Board currently consists of the Chairman, five independent non-
executive dircetors and two exceutive directors. Subject to election and
re-clection at the 2007 Annual General Meeting, the Board will consist
of the Chairman, four independent non-executive directors and three
executive dircctors. Biographical details are set out on page 19.

The Board meets regularly and has a formal schedule of matters
reserved tor its decision. All directors have aceess wo the services of the
Company Secretary. Any directors wishing to take independent advice
may do so at the Company’s expense. Appropriate training is available
to all directors on appeitiment and on an on-going basis as required.

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive are separate and the Board
has agreed their respective responsibilities. "The Chairman is responsible
for the effective functioning of the Board. The Chicf Exccutive is
responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group and 15
supported by an Exccutive Committee which normally meets monthly
and comprises the executive directors and key senior managers.

All of the non-executive directors are considered by the Board to be
independent in character and judgement including Peter Cawdron who,

- having been a director for more than nine years, has decided to retire

from the Roard at the conclusion of the 2007 Annual General Meeting,

Company Secretary

The Company Scerctary, Tim Mason, is responsible for advising the
Board, through the Chairman, on all governance matters. The directors
have access to the advice and senvices of the Company Secretary:

Audit Committee
The Committee comprises Steve Lucas (Chairman), Peter Blackburn
and Sven Kado, The Committee met six times during the year.

The Commitice’s primary responsibilities include; reviewing the
Company’s published financial statements and formal announcements
relating to financial performance, reviewing the effectiveness of

the Company’s internal financial controls and risk management
systems, monitoring the cflectivenuss of the internal audit function,
recommending the appointment and removal of the external auditors
and reviewing the Company’s arrangements whereby employees may
in confidence raise any concerns regarding possible wrongdoing,

The Committee reviews annually the effectiveness and independence
of the external auditors and has developed a policy on the provision of
services by the external auditors in urder to safeguard their objectivity
and independence.

Remuneration Committee

The Committee comprises Peter Cawdron (Chairman), Sir Roy Gardner,
Val Geoding {until 31 December 2006), Sven Kado and Steve Larcas.
The Commitice met five times during the vear. The Summary directors’
remuneration report is set out on pages 23 to 26,

Nomination Committee
The Commiuee comprises Sir Rov Gardner (Chairman), Peter Blackburn,
Peter Cawdron and Val Gooding (until 31 December 2006). The

Committee met once during the vear,

The Committee’s primary responsibilides include; carrying out formal
selection processes and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and reappoiniment of directors, making recommendations
to the Board on the suitability of candidates for the role of Senior
Independent Director and membership of the Audit and Remuneration
Committees,

The Committee met during the year w consider the appointment of

a new Chicf Exccutive and the Board accepted the Committee’s
recommenclation that Richard Cousins be appointed as successor to
Michacl Bailey. Following the year end, the Board has accepted the
Committee’s recommendations that Sir Ian Robinson and Gary Green
be appointed as directors,

Corporate Responsibility Committee

The Committee comprises Sir Roy Gardner {Chairman), Richard
Cousins, Andrew Mantin, Steve Lucas, the Company Secrctary,
Directoer of Human Resources and Director of Corporate Policy
& Communications.

The Committee’s primary responsibilities include; overseeing the
production of an annual Corporate Responsibility Report, Health,
Safety and Environmental praciices, business conduct, the promotion
of emplovee engagement and diversity and community investment.

Disclosure Commitiee

The Committee comprises the Finanee Director, the Company Secrctary
and certain senior managers. The Committee meets as required to deal
with matters concerning public announcements and the Company’s
obligations 1o the UK Listing Authority.

Relations with shareholders

The Company reports formally to shareholders twice a year, with the
interim and preliminary final results. The Chief Executive and the
Finance Dircctor give presentations of these results to institutional
investors, analysts and the media. They may also be accessed on the
Company’s wehsite, www.compass-group.com.

The Chief’ Executive and Finance Director meet regularly with
institutional investors to discuss strategy and financial performance.
T'he Chairman maintains regular contact with the Group’s major
shareholders. The Chairman and other non-executive directors are
available 1w meet with investors 1o discuss corporate governance issues.
These meetings facilitate an on-going understanding of the views and
any concerns of the Company’s mujor shareholders and they are
reported to the Board.

Other than in exceptional circumstanees all directors attend the Annual
General Mecting and are available to answer shareholders” questions.
There is normally a trading update and sharehalders are given the
oppertunity o meet the directors informally afterwards.

‘The Company has a dedicated Investor Relations Department and this
is a primary point for contact with investors throughout the year.
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Summary directors’ remuneration report

i This report summarises the Remuneration Commitiee’s policy on
executive remuneration given in the Annual Report for the year
ended 30 September 2006. A copy of the full report can be accessed
at \\'\\W\'.CUmpuss-gr()up.(.‘()m.

The Committee determines the remuneration and benefits of the

Chairman, executive directors, Executve Committee members and

certain other senior executives of the Group. Its key responsibilities are:

* to design specilic remuneration packages which include salanes,
bonuses, incentive payments, pension rights and benefits;

* to review executive directors’ service agreements;

* to ensure that failure is not rewarded and tha steps are always taken
to mitigate loss on termination, within contractual obligations;

* 10 review remuncration trends across the Group; and

* to approve the terms of and recommend grants under the Group’s
incentive plans,

Policy

The aims of the remuneration policy are that

* the components of the Company’s remuneration package

continue 1o be aligned to the business strategy;

there is a proper halance between the fixed and variable, and
long-term and short-term components of the remuneration package;
the various targets for determining performance-related compensation
are linked to the Company’s key business drivers

and chjectives, and are casily measurable and regularly reviewed,
the incentives are easily understood and accepted by shareholders
and senior executives; and

the Company’s remuneration policy and its various components

are in line with best practice in the market.

In determining the overall remuneration framework, the Committee
maintains an active dialogue with shareholder representatives and
continually monitors developments in hest practice,

Components of executive directors' remuneration

The tatal reward package is structured inte short-term and long-term
mcentives, and into i division of fixed remuneration and performance-
related elements,

Base salary

Base salaries are rigorously benchmarked, and reflect role, job size,
individual perfurmance and effectiveness. They are subjeet to annual
review cach December with any increases 1aking effect on | January.

Annual performance-related award

Pavment of an annual bonus is based on the achievement of
performance argets set by the Commiuee. The level of bonus is
designed to encourage performance in a manner that the Commitiee
cansiders most contributes to increasing shareholder value and meeting
corporate objectives,

The bonus award is made up of basic and enhanced elements:

+ an annual opportunity of up to 75% of base salary based on the
attainment of results against set argets ("par performance’);

+ a further opportunity of up 0 a maximum of 75% of base salary
for overachicventent of targets {'maximum performance’).

Performance targets are determined at the start of cach financial vear.
For the year ended 30 September 2006, the bonus opportunity was
based on the following key Group measures:
« profit before interest and tax (PBIT) (30%);

* frece cash flow {as determined on page 30) (FCF) (30%); and
» revenue growth (20%).

A supplementary condition was imposed whereby no bonus would
be payable unless the Group’s mininnnm PBET target was achieved.

The Remuncration Committec determined that the results of the SSP
husiness would be excluded from the bonus caleuladons following its
sale on 13 june 2006.

The amount of bonus paid to each director is shown in the table on
page 26, reflecting the maximum achievement of targets for FCF and
revenue growth, and achievement between par and maximum for PBIT.

The bonus opportunity for executive directors for the vear ending
30 September 2007 will be based on the fellowing argets:

* profit before imerest and 1ax (PBIT) (60%);

* free cash flow (IFCF) {20%); and

» personal target (1) (20%).

Asupplementary condition has been imposed whereby the amount of
FCF and I'I" benus payable will be halved unless the Group’s minimum
PBIT target is achieved.

Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

Following consultation with and approval by shareholders, the LTIP has
been the primary form of equity-based incentive for the year ended

30 Seprember 2006 and this will continue to be our policy in the vear
cnding 30 September 2007, As executive directors will not normally be
granted share options (see below), the potental reward under the LTIP
was increased during 2006.

Under the LTIP, executive directors may receive a conditional award

of shares which may vest after a three-vear performance peried, based
on performance conditions being met. With cffeet from 2006, awards arc
normally granted ar an annual maximum of 150% of hase salary, with
200% being resernved for excepuonal circumstances, 50% of any LTIP
award is based on the Group’s FCF and 50% of any award on the
Group's Total Sharcholder Return performance (TSR). The FCI
clement focuses exceutives on the free cash flow abjective of business
strategy and the TSR clement on share price and dividend growth.

FCF portion

50% of any award is based on the Group’s FCF aver a three-year
performance period. The precise FCF target for each award is linked
to the Group’s wider business targets, and is stretching and set by the
Remuneration Committee at the time of award based on Group
projections aned market expectations, No shares are released unless

the Group achieves threshold performance. 25% of the porton of the
award vests on the achievement of threshold performance. Awards vest
on a straight-line basis between 25% and 100% where FCF is between
threshold performance and the outperformance target.

For awards made in the year ended 30 September 2006, the threshold
and outperformance targets were {825 million and £900 million
respectively. For awards to be made in the year ending 30 September
2007, the Committee has determined that threshold performance will
be £950 million and outperformance will be (1,050 million.

TSR portion

The remaining 50% of any award will depend upon growth in the
Group'’s TSR relative to the FTSE 100 companies {determined at

the outset) over a three-year performance period. TSR is the aggregate
ol share price growth and dividends paid (assuming reinvestment of
those dividends in Compass Group shares during the three-vear period).
100% of the award will vest if TSR performance is in the top quartile
and 25% of the award will vest il performance is at the median.

Where performance is between the median and top quartile, awards
will vest on a straight-line basis between the 25% and 100% applicable
to median and top quartile performances. No shares will be released if
the Group’s performance is below the median.
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Summary directors’ remuneration report
continued

For awards made since 2004, there is no retesting facility. In addition,
for awards made in the year ended 30 September 2006 and subsequent
yvears, any vesting of an award at the end of the performance period is
conditional on the Remuneration Committee being satisfied that the
underlyving financial performance of the Group justifies such vesting.

The Committee considers FCF and TSR 10 be appropriate measures
for awards under the LTIP. FCF focuses on a key business target for the
Group, while the usc of ISR aligns the interests of executives with those
of sharcholders. TSR calcufations are periodically undertaken by an
external party, Alithos Ltd, and FCF measurements are subject to
independent audit.

Other share plans

Matching Shares Plan (MSP)

Under the bonus matching shares plan, directors are permitted to invest
up to 50% of any pre-tax performance related basic and enhanced
bonus in Compass Group shares. [f the shares are held for three years
and the director continues to be employed by the Group, the director
may receive a proportion of Matching Shares bascd on the Group
achieving undertying EPS average growth over the period. For the year
ended 30 September 2006, executive directors elected not to take up
the opportunity to invest part of their bonus entitlement in the MSE.
For the year ending 30 September 2007, the Committee has decided

- not to make the MSP available to directors and executives.

- Share Option Plan (SOP)

In the year ended 30 September 2006, no executive directors were
granted options under the SOP in light of the Committee’s policy

of using the LTIP as the primary long-term equity related incentive.
[t is not intended 1o make Muture grants of options to executive directors,
other than in exceptional circumstances (which would be fully explained
to shareholders at the time),

Management Share Option Plan (MSOP)

For executives below executive director level, the Company currently
operates the MSOP. Options are granted at no lower than the market
price on the day prior to grant. They may normally be exercised
benwveen the third and tenth anniversaries of the date of grant after
which they will lapse.

A performance target geared to the Company’s key business measure
was introduced into the MSOP during the year with the approval of
shareholders so that options may only be exercisable subject to meeting
a FCF target, determined by the Committee at the time of grant.

For options granied in the year ended 30 September 2006, the target
was the achicvement of a FCF target of £825 million in the three-vear
period from 1 October 2005 to 30 September 2008. There is no
retesting facility. In the year ended 30 September 2006, approximartely
700 employees received option grants,

Savings-related share option scheme
Executive directors may participate in the Compamy’s all-emplovee share
plans on the same basis as other employees. No grants were made

during the year ended 30 September 2006.

Sharehalding policy

In order that their interests are aligned with those of shareholders,
executive directors are expected 1o build up and maintain a personal
sharcholding in the Company of at least 100% of base salarv. New
directors will undertake to build up their shareholding within four years
of their appointment.

Retirement benefits

The Group's policy is not o offer defined benefit arrangements to new
emplovees at any level. Incoming executive directors are invited either
to join the Compamy’s contracted-in money purchase arrangement

or 1o take a fixed salary supplement.

At 30 Seprember 2006, there are no executive directors participating in
any Compass Group defined benefit pension arrangements. Richard
Cousing clected o receive a 33% salary supplement in lieu of pensien.

In the light of the A Day pension legislation, Andrew Martin also took

up the 35% salary supplememt election with effect from 6 April 2006, He
gave up all rights to his final salary petsion, money purchase pension and
unfunded unapproved pension with effect from 15 March 2004 and ceased
to acerue any pension in relation to his employment from this date (save for
that which he had built up during his earlier employment with Forte ple,
Grunada Group ple and Compass Group PLC between June 1994 and
September 2001). In connection with these revised arrangements, he
received a payment of £338,895 in respect of his accrued pension scheme
and unfunded pension benefits in refation to the period from 15 March
2004 to 31 March 2006, and a payment of £168,450 in respect of his
accrued money purchase penston for such period.

Andrew Martin's pension promises. built up in respect of his earlier
period of senvice with Granada and Forte on both a funded and
unfunded basis, are deferred pensions payable from age 60 which,
revalued at 30 Seprember 2006, amount to £23.694 per annum and
£27,523 per annum respectively.

Sir Francis Mackay retired as a director on 30 June 2006, but (as
indicated in the 2005 Dircctors’ remuneration report) ceased to accrue
pension benefits from 1 October 2005,

Michael Bailey retired as a director on 31 May 20086, and became
cntitled o accrued pension benefits (comprising an unfunded pension
promise 1o provide for a level of benefits broadly similar to that applying
to UK executive directors in the Executive Section of the UK Pension
Plan). The capital value of these pension benefits was 15,053,000
(equalling the transfer vilue of his accrued pension benefits as at

30 Septembaer 2005). He was entitded 1o these pension benefits in lump
sum f[orm on retrgment, OF this total amount, £1,991,302 has been
paid to him in respect of the US clement of this pension. The halance of
£ 13,061,698 accrues a market rate of interest pending payment to him.

Chairman
The fee for the Chairman is set by the Committee. ‘The Chairman is not

eligible for pension scheme membership, honus or incentive arrangements.

He is entitled to the provision of life and medical insurance for himself
and his spouse, financial planning assistance and a fully expensed car.

Non-executive directors

The fee for the non-exceutive directors during the vear ended

30 September 2006 was £30,000 per annum, adjusted where directors
held additional responsibilitics. Details of the fees paid 1o the non-
executive directors for the year ended 30 September 2006 are set out on
page 26. The base fee has been thoroughly reviewed and benchmarked
by the executive members of the Beard and increased 10 £60,000 per
annum with effect from 1 October 2006.

Non-exccutive directors are not eligible for pension scheme membership,
bonus, share options or other incentive arrangements.

Non-executive directors have letters of engagement. They are appointed
for an initial period of three years, afier which the appointment is
renewable at three-year intervals by mutual consent. Details of their
appointments, which are terminable without compensation, are set out
in the table,

Rl |
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continued
— . - L. -
i Totat length
1 service &t
1 Original date of Letter of 3(? Ssef;::?nier
. Non-executive director appointment engagoemant 2006
8ir Roy Gardner I October 2005 15 September 2005 1 year
Peter Cawdron 3 November 1993 27 Oclober 1993 12 yrs,
{rev. 31 March 2004) 10 mths
. Peter Blackburn 10 April 2002 16 May 2002 4 yrs,
: (rev. 31 March 2004) 5 mths
. Val Gooding 4 Januwary 2000 1 January 2000 6 yrs,
(rev. 31 March 2004} 8 mths
I Sven Kado 10 April 2002 10 April 2002 4 yrs,
. (rev. 31 March 2004 5 mths
| Steve Lucas 7 July 2004 17 June 2004 2 yrs,
| 2 mths
|

I - .o -

Service contracts

Richard Cousins is employed under a service comract dated 23 March
2006 and Andrew Martin under a contract dated 4+ May 20005, They
have rolling service contracts with the Company. Richard Cousing’
contract is terminable by him giving one vear’s written notice or by

the Company giving 24 months’ written notice, reducing to 12 months’
notice on | May 2007, being 12 months following his appointment, and
that of Andrew Martin is terminable by him giving six months’ written
notice or by the Company giving one year's written notice.

I the event of termination by the Company, legally appropriate
mitigation factors would be taken ino account in determining any
compensation which may be pavable,

Both contracts will terminate automatically at age 65 or such other age
as may he determined as the retirement age for executive directors.

On carly termmation of their contracts, both executives would normally
be entitled 10 an amount equal to pay in lieu of any periad of notice,
being basic salary, salary supplement in lieu of pension, benefits or, at
the Cmn])uny’s discretion, an amount of 10% of salary; and a bonus
equivateni to 75% of salary. Richard Cousins would be entitled to such
pavmernt by way ol a lump sum.

With the Board's agreement, executive directors may take up one
non-exccutive directorship and may rewain any fees.

Payment to certain former directors

Andrew Lynch

Andrew Lynch resigned as a director on 28 Septemnber 2005 and left
the Group in June 2006 with the sale of Select Serviee Partner. Under
the arrangements described in the 2005 Directors’ remuneration repart,
he received a sale-related payment of £200,000 on 81 March 2006

and £525,500 at the ume of sale, such amount determined by the level
of sule proceeds which surpassed expectations.

Alain Dupuis

Alain Dupuis resigned as a director on 1 October 2005, He received a
termination payment of 430,000 and entered into a three year fixed
term service contract at a reduced salary of (200,000 per annum, with
no change to his annual bonus opportunity and benefits during the
period, and a one-off pension contribution of £335,000 paid at the start
of the period. These arrangements also included « long-term bonus
scheme attribwable 1o the performance of the countries for which he
had exccutive responsibility. The long-term bonus was subject to a
ceiling of £4 million. In the period 10 31 July 2006, he earned
£167,000 and £250,000 by way of salary and annual honus respectively.
Following a restructure, his service contract was terminated on 31 July
2006 {26 months hefore its contractual termination date) and under a
compromise agreement he received £1,100,000 in seudement of all
claims, with two further payments of £250,000 on 31 January 2007

and 31 July 2007 respectively, subject to him not having entered into
certain categories of employment at the payment dates.

Dilution limits

All the Company's equity based incentive plans incorporate the 2005
ABI Guidelines on headroom which provide that overall dihwion under
all schemes should not exceed 10% over a 10-year period in relation 10
the Company’s issued share capital {or reissue of treasury shares), with
the further limitation of 5% in any 10-vear period on executive plans.

The Committee monitors every six months, and prior 1o the making of
any award, the effect of potendal vesting of options or share awards w
ensure that the Company remains within these limits. Any awards which
are required to be satisfied by market purchased shares are excluded
from such calculations.

No treasury shares were utilised in the vear ended 30 Scptember 2006,

As at 30 Seprember 2006, the Company’s headroom position was as below:

Plan limits headroom

5% in 10 years 10% in 10 years

D Headroom
[ Executive
LTiP

LAl
employee

IFRS

Since the year ended 30 September 2005, Compass Group has prepared
its financial statetnems under IFRS. In order to achicve consisiency
between UK GAAFP and TFRS, EPS and other accounting measures
used as performance targets for carlier vears under equity based
incentive plans have been adjusted.

Compass Group PLC share prices

The mid-market prices of the Company’s ordinary shares on

30 September 2005 and 30 September 2006 were 206.25 pence and
268.25 pence respectively. During the penod hetween these two dates,
the market price of the Company’s ordinary shaves ranged hetween

175 pence and 276.25 pence (21 October 2005 and 26 September 2006),

Total shareholder return

The performance graph below shows the TSR for Compass Group over
the last five financial years. The graph shows the value of 100 invested
in the FI'SE 100 Index, The Committee considers this to be the most
appropriate comparator group for this purpose as the FI'SE 100 index is
widely used and recognised, and Compass Group has been a constituent
member throughout the period.

Compass Group
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Directors’ emoluments
The aggregate remuneration of the individual directors of Compass Group PLC for the vear ended 30 September 2006 was as follows:

Salary penonnAg:zg Termination
. Salaryftee  supplerment] Benefits related bonus payments 2006 2005

Name of director £000 £00D £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
- Directors in service at 30 September 2006

Executive

Richard Cousins (appointed 1 May 2006) 313 109 11 398 - 831 -

Andrew Martin 461 83 79 606 1,229 472

Non-executive

Sir Roy Gardner {appointed 1 Oct 2003) 163 - 25 - - 188 -

Peter Blackburn 50 - - - - 50 50

Peter Cawdron 90 - - - - 90 90

Val Gooding 50 - - - - 30 50

Sven Kadoz 53 - - - - 33 33

Steve Lucas G5 - - - 65 59

Directors who left during the year

Michael Bailey {retived 31 May 2006)3 651 - 110 830 - 1,591 1,098

Alain Dupuis (resigned 1 Oct 2005)+ - - - - 430 430 462

Sir Francis Mackay (retired 30 Jun 2006)s 225 - 36 - - 261 546
. Directors who left during the previous year - - - - - - 1,703
. Total 2,121 192 261 1.834 430 4,838 4,583

Richard Cousins 100,600

1 Supplement of 35% of salary paid in monthly instalments io licu of peosion participation.
2 The figure shown Jor Sven Kado for each of 2005 and 2006 includes a fee of €100 in respect of his non-exceutive directorship of Compass Group Deatschland GmbH.
3 Highest paid director. Michael Bailey was paid no compensation on cessation of his employment, He was permitted to receive bis bonus for the year ended 30 September 2006 pro-rated
1o his period of employment during the vear
4 Alain Dupuis resigned from the Beard on | October 2005 and lefe the Group on 31 July 2006 (see pige 25),
5 Bir Francis AMackay wus paid no compensation on cessation of his employment,
The directors who Jeft during the year ended 30 September 2005 were Andrew Lynch, Clive Graney and Denis Gassidy (see pige 25 for details of payments made to Andrew Lynch during 2006).

Beneficial share interests of directors
tong-Term 30 Sept 2006 30 Sept 2005
. Ordinary shares Options incentive Plan total tetal
Name of director Number Number Number Number Number

Directors in service at 30 September 20086

- 727,272 827,272 -
Andrew Martin 110,027 1,018,532 603,055 1,731,614 1,191,008
Sir Roy Gardner 160,000 - - 109,000 -
Peter Blackburn 5,000 - - 5,000 5,000
Peter Cawdron 24,200 - 24,200 24,200
Val Gooding 5,502 - - 5,602 3,001
Sven Kado 12,500 — - 12,500 12,500

Steve Lucas - - _ _ _

There were no incemive plan gains for the year ended 30 September 2006.
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Independent auditors’ statement to the members of Compass Group PLC

We have examined the summary linancial statement which comprises
the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of recognised
income and expense, consolidated balance sheet, consolidated cash

flow statement and the related summary notes 1 1o 7 together with the
summary directors’ report and summary directors’ remuneration report.

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in
accordance with section 251 of the Companies Act 1985, Our work

has been undertaken so thar we might state to the Company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extem permitted by law;, we do not
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and
the Company’s members as a bady, for our audit work, for this report,
for our audit report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Review in
accordance with applicable United Kingdom law. Our responsibility
is to report 10 you our opinion on the consistency of the summary
financial statement with the full annual accounts the directors’ report
and the directors® remuncration report, and 1ts compliance with the
relevant requirements of section 251 of the Companies Act 1985 and
the regulations made thereunder, We report whether the auditor’s
opinion on the full annual accounts was unqualified or qualified.

We also read the other information contained in the Annual Review
as described in the contents section, and consider the implications for
our report if we beecome aware of any apparent misstatements or
matertal mconsistencies with the summary financial statement.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our work in accordance with bulletin 1999/06 The
Auditors’ Statement on the Summary Finanecial Statement issued
by the Auditing Praciices Board for use in the United Kingdom.

Opinion

In our opinion, the summary financial statement is consistent with
the full annual accounts, the directors’ report and the directors’
remuneration report of Compass Group PLC for the year ended

30 September 2006 and complies with the applicable requirements
of section 251 of the Companies Act 1983, and the regulations made
thereunder. The auditors” report on the Company’s annual accounts
was unqualified.

JM«M{ £ Tonte (LS

Deloitte & Touche LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London

29 November 2006




28 Compass Group PLC
Annual Review 2006

Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 30 September 2006

Before Exceptional Before Exceptional
exceptional items Total excepiional items Total
items {Note 2) 2006 items. {Note 2) 2005
Notes £m Em £m Em £m £m
Continuing operations:

. Revenue 1 10,815 - 10.815 10,073 - 10,073
Operating costs (10,309) - (10,309) (9,577} {108) (9,685)
Operating profit 1 506 - 506 496 {108) 388
Share of profit of associates 2 - 2 - - -
Total operating profit 508 - 508 496 {108) 388
Finance income 15 - 15 4 - 4
Finance costs (160) - (160 {156) - (156)
Hedge accounting ineffectiveness 11 - 11 (3} - (3)
Profit before tax 374 - 374 341 (108) 233
Income tax expense (113) 44 {69} (96) (1 (97}
Profit for the year from continuing operations I 261 44 305 2435 {109) 136
Discontinued operations:

Profit/{loss) for the vear from discontinued operations 3 17 (27) {10) 114 {41) 73
Profit for the year 278 17 295 359 {150) 209
Attributable to:
Equity sharcholders of the Company 268 17 285 345 {(150) 195
Minority interest 10 - 10 14 — 14
278 17 295 339 (150 209
Basic earnings per share '
From continuing operations 13.7p 5.7p
From discontunued operations (0.4)p 3.3p
From continuing and discontinued operations 13.3p 9.0p
Diluted earnings per share !
From continuing operations 13.7p 57p
From discontinued operations (0.9)p 3.3p
From continuing and discontinued operavions 13.3p 9.0p
Consolidated statement of recognised income and expense
for the year ended 30 September 2006
2006 2005
- Notes £m £m
Fair value movemnent on cash flow hedges 4 7
Currency translation differences {7 |4 ,
Actuarial losses on post-employment henefits (37) {157
Tax on items taken directly 1o equity 3 33 I
Net loss recognised directly in equity {(37) {103) |
Transfer to profit or loss from equity of cumulative translation differences on discontinued activities 2 o
Transfer o profit or loss from equity on cash flow hedges (6} -
Net expense recognised in cquil_\'_ (41} {103} I
Profit for the financial year 295 209 !
Total recognised income and expense for the year 6 254 106 |
Attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company 248 92
Minority interest 6 14
] 254 106
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Consolidated balance sheet
as at 30 September 2006

2006 2005

Notes £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill 3451 4,220 |
Orther imangible assets 152 168
Property, plant and equipmen 756 1,657
Interests in associates 39 45
Other investments 9 6
Deferred wax assets 237 198
I'rade and other receivables 117 140
Derivative financial instruments 22 44

4,783 6,478

Current assets

Inventories 212 253
Trade and other recevables 1,424 1,574
Overseas tax recoverable 10 9
Dervauve financial instruments 9 2
Cash and cash equivalents 848 281
2,503 2,119
Total assets 7,286 8,597
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Short-term horrowings (119) (150)
Derivative financial instruments (2} (20
Current tax liabilities (357 (334)
Trade and other pavables (1,990) {2,437)
Provisions {65) (10
(2,533) {2,951)
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings (1,835) (2,580)
Derivative linancial instruiments (18} (2)
Post-emplovment benefit obligations (282) {555)
Provisions (242) (143)
Deferred tax liabilities (18) (17)
Other liabilities (46} (71)
(2,441) (3,368)
Tota! liabifities (4,974) (6,319 I
Net assets 2,312 2,278
Equity .
Share capitul 5 210 216
Share preminwm account 6 96 94
Capital redemption reserve 6 15 9
Lasst own shares - m
hher reserves 6 4,288 4,137
Retained carnings 6 (2,303) {2,204}
Total equity shareholders’ funds 2,306 2,251
Minority interests 6 6 27
Total equity 2,312 2,278

Approved by the Board of dircctors on 29 November 2006 and signed on their behalf by

Richard ] Cousins, Director
Andrew D Martin, Director
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Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 30 September 2006

2006 2005
£m £m

Cash generated from operations 754 699
Interest paid (186) (161)
Interest element of linance lease rentals {3} (3)
Tax received 4 23
Tax paid {101) 91
Net cash from operating activities for continuing operations 468 467
Net cash from operating activities for discontinued operations 29 181
Net cash from operating activities 497 648
Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of subsidiary companies and investments in assoclated undertakings (167) (12%)
Proceeds from sale of subsidiary companies and associated undertakings 1,807 75
Contribution of disposal proceeds 1o pension plans (280} -
Purchase of property, plam and cquipment (206) (248)
Proceeds irom sale of property, plant and equipment 27 35
Purchase of intangible assets (30) (20)
Dividends received from associated undertakings 2 4
Interest received 15 4
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities by continuing operatons 1,168 (271)
Net cash used in investing activities by discontinued operatons (59) (63)
Net cash from/{used in} investing activities 1,109 {336)
Cash flow from financing activities
Issue of ordinary share capital 2 |
Purchase of own shares (net) {148) -
Net decrease in borrowings (647) (32
Repayment of obligations under finance leases {15} {16)
Equity dividends paid (213) (205)
Dividends patd to minority interests (11) (19)
Net cash used in finaneing acuvities by continuing operations (1,032) (267)
Net cash used in inancing activities by discontinued operations - (1)
Net cash used in financing activities (1,032) (268)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 574 44
Cash and cash cquivalents at heginning of the year 281 233
Exchange gains and losses on cash and cash equivalents (7) 4
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 848 281
Reconciliation of free cash flow from continuing operations
for the year ended 30 September 2006

2006 2005

£m Em

Net cash from operating activities for continuing operations 468 467
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (206} (248
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 27 35
Purchase of intangible assets (30) {20
Dividends received from associated undertakings 2 4
Interest received 15 4
Dividends paid 10 minority interests (11) (15)
Free cash flow — continuing operations 265 227
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Summary notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 September 2006

Noerth  Continental United Rest of Central
. America Europe Kingdom the World activities Total

1 Segmental reporting £m £m £m £m tm £m
Year ended 30 September 2006
Revenue
Total revenue 4,437 3,283 2,805 1,777 - 12,302
Less: inter-segment revenue - {21} - (17 - (38)
Revenue from external clients 4,437 3,262 2,805 1,760 - 12,264
Less: disconunued (147) (399) (848) {55) - (1,449}
Revenue from external clients — continuing operations 4,290 2,863 1,957 1,705 - 10,815
Result
Total operating profit 247 181 129 49 {77) 529
Less: discomtinued (2} {12} (15) 6 - (23)

245 169 114 55 (77) 506
Sharc of profit of associates 1 - 1 — - 2
Segment result — continuing operations 246 169 115 55 (77) 508
Finance income 15
Finance costs (160}
Hedge accounting ineffectiveness 11
Profit before tax 374
Income tax expense {69)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 305
Year ended 30 September 2005
Revenue
Total revenue 3,937 3,554 3,254 1,680 - 12,425
Less: nter-segment revenue - (26 - @) - (3)
Revenue from external clients 3,937 3,528 3,254 1,675 - 12,394
Less: discontinued (176) (698) (1,272 (175) - (2,321
Revenue from external clients — continuing operations 3,761 2,830 1,982 1,500 - 10,073
Result
Total operating profit 221 211 193 87 (58) 654
Less: discontinued (3) {(42) (79} (34) - (158

218 169 114 53 (58} 496
Share of profit of associates = = - - - -
Segment result - continuing operations before exceptional items 218 169 114 53 (58) 496
Exceptional items {note 2) 2 (107) (L - (2) (108)
Segment resuit - continuing operations after exceptional items 220 62 113 53 (60) 388
Finance income 4
Finance costs (156)
Hedge accounting ineffectiveness (3)
Profit before tax 233
Income tax expense (97
Profit for the year from continuing operations 136
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Summary notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 September 2006
continued

\ , 2008 2005
2 Exceptional items £m £m
; Continuing operations:
Charged within operating profit:
Impairment of goodwill - Italy - (107
Loss on disposal of husinesses - (n
- (108)
Credited/(charged) within income tax expense 44 (1
Continuing operations 44 (109
Charged within discontinued activities:
Profit afier tax on disposal of businesses 20 -
Settlement of UN contract claims and related expenses (39 -
Middle East military catering business (8) {(13)
Tax credit on discontinued activities - 4
Discontinued activities (27) {40
Total 17 {150)

The exceptional tax credits arise in respect of previously unrecognised tax losses and tax deductions in respect of pension prepayments in the UK

1ax group that onginated in previous years.

In 2006, £39 million has been charged to complete investigations and to setde lawsuits for lost profits brought by two competitors of the Group,
ES-KO International Inc and Supreme Foodservice AG in relation to contracts awarded o Eurest Support Services by the UN.

The Group has discontinued its military catering operations in the Middle East, which were formerly part of the Rest of the World geographical
. segment. In 2006 £8 million has been provided to settle claims arising in 2003, Related asset write-downs and provisions resulted in

an exceptional charge of £45 million in 2005,

—_—  — — a
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Summary notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 September 2006
continued

—_—— —

3 Discontinued operations

Following the decision to focus on its core contract catering business the Group disposed of its Inflight catering operations, which operated principally
in Continental Europe on 19 December 2005 and its travel concession catering business, Select Service Partner, including Creative Host Services in

the US (together, "SSP on 15 June 2006. Gross proceeds were £1,863 million and costs incurred were £67 million. In addition, the Group has
discontinued its Middle East military catering operations and withdrawn from or disposed of various other businesses, shown as “other” below:

Details of net assets disposed of and disposal proceeds are as folows:

s5P Other 2006
£m m £m
Goadwill 798 51 849
Intangible asscts 10 - 10
Property, plant and equipmem 755 125 880
Investments 5 3 8
Inventorices 29 9 38
Trade and other receivables 74 49 123
Cash at bank 94 24 118
Gross assets disposed of 1,765 261 2,026
Trade and other payables (208) (51} (259)
Post-employment benefit obligations (10 (4) (14)
Tax (6) (6) (12)
Minority interest (N (3) (6)
Other liabihtics - (5) {5)
Gross liahilnies disposed of {225) (71) (296)
Net assets disposed of 1,540 190 1,730
Liabilities retained 88 21 109
Cumulatve wranslation exchange loss recycled on disposals 2 - 2
Profit/(loss) on disposal 168 (54) 114
Consideration, net of costs 1,798 157 1,955
Consideraton deferred o future periods (37 (8) (45}
Cash disposed of (94) (24) (118)
Cash inflow from current year disposals 1,667 125 1,792
Deferred consideration relating 1o previous disposals - 15 15
Cash inflow {ron: disposals 1,667 140 1,807
SsP Other 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m
Financial performance of discontinued cperations
External revenue 1,238 211 1,449 2.321
Operating costs (1,209) (217) (1,426) (2,163)
Exceptional operating costs (note 2) - 47) (47 {45)
Profit before tax 29 (53) (24) 113
Income 1ax expense (7) I {6) (40)
Profit after income tax from discontinued operations 22 (52) (30} 73
Reported as exceptional (note 2):
Profit on disposal of net assets of discontinued operations 170 (54) 116 -
Cumulative translation exchange loss (2) - (2) -
Profit on disposal before tax 168 (54) 114 -
Tax (99) 5 (94) -
Total profit aficr income tax on disposal of net assets ol discontinued uperations 69 (19) 20 -
Profit/(loss} for the vear of discontinued operations 91 (101) (10} 73
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Summary notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 September 2006
continued

Altributable  Attributable
profit profit
. 2006 2005
4 Earnings per share £m £m
Profit for the vear attributable to equity sharcholders of the Company 285 195
Add back: loss/(profit) for the year from discontinued operations 10 (73)
Attributable profit for the year from continuing operations 295 122
Exceptional items net of tax {note 2) (44) 109
Attributable profi for the year from continuing operations before exceptional items 251 231
Hedge accounting ineffectiveness net of tax (7) 4
Adtributable underlying profit for the year from continuing operations before exceptional items 244 235
Ordinary Crdinary
shares of shares of
10p each 10p each
2006 2005
millions millions
Average number of shares for basic earnings per share 2,147 2,156
Dilutive share options 3 2
Average number of shares for diluted earnings per share 2,150 2,158
Earnings Crdinary
per share per share
2006 2005
pence pance
Basic earnings per share
From continuing and discontinued operations 13.3 9.0
Irom discontinued operations 0.4 (3.3)
From continuing operations 13.7 57
Exceptional items (net of tax) (2.0} 5.0
From continuing operations before exceptional items 11.7 10.7
Hedge accounting ineffectiveness (0.3) (.2
From underlying continuing operations before exceptional items 11.4 10.9
Giluted earnings per share
Irom continuing and discontinued operations 13.3 9.0
Fromy discontinued operations 0.4 (3.3
From continuing operations 13.7 5.7
Exceptional items (net of tax) (2.0 5.0
From continuing operations before exceptional items 11.7 10.7
Hedge accounting ineflectivencss 0.3) 0.2
From underlying continuing operations before exceptional items 11.4 1.9

The caleulation of carnings per share is based on earnings alter tax and the weighted average number of shares in issue during the vear. The adjusted
undlerlying earnings per share figures have been calculated o show the underlying trading performance of the Group and are based on carnings
excluding the eflect of goodwill impairment charges, other exceptional items, hedge accounting incflectiveness and discontinued activities.
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Summary notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 September 2006

continued
2006 2005
. pence 2006 pence 2005
5 Dividends per share £m per share £m
Amounts recognised as distributions to equity shareholders during the year:
Final dividend for the prior year 6.5 140 6.2 134
Interim dividend for the current year 3.4 73 3.3 71
9.9 213 9.5 205

A final dividend in respect of 2006 of 6.7 pence per share is to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting on 16 February 2007 giving a total
dividend in respect of” 2006 of 10.1 pence per share. These financial statements do not include the accrual for this dividend,

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

Share Capital
Share premium redemption Own Other Retained Mincnity
o X X capital agcount feserve shares reserves earnings interests Total
6 Reconciliation of movements in equity £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At 1 October 2005 216 94 9 (1) 4,137 (2,204) 27 2,278
Total recognised income and expense - - - - (12) 260 6 254
Issue of shares - 2 - - - - - 2
Fair value of share-based payments - - - - 25 - - 25
Share buy-back (6) - 6 - - (149) - (149)
Transfer on excrcise of put options - - - - 138 .3 (10) 131
Other changes — - - 1 - — (6) {5}
210 96 15 - 4,288 (2,090 17 2,536
Dividends paid w Compass sharcholders - - - - - {213) - (213)
Dividends paid to minority interest - - - - - - (11) (L
At 30 Seprember 2006 210 96 15 - 4,288 (2,303) 6 2,312

7 Contingent fiabilities

On 21 October 2005 the Company announced that it had insiructed Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer to conduct an investigation into the relationships
between Furest Support Services (‘'ESS’) {a member of the Group), IHC Services Inc. ((THC) and the United Nations. Ernst & Young assisted
Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer in this investigation. On ! February 2006 it was announced that the investigation had concluded.

The investigation established sertous irregularities in connection with contracts awarded to ESS by the UN, The waork undertaken by Freshfields
Bruckhaus Deringer and Ernst & Young gave no reason to believe that these issues extended beyond a few individuals within ESS to other parts
of ESS or the wider Compass Group of companies,

THC’s relationship with the UN and ESS is part of a wider and on-going investigaton inte UN procurement activity being conducted by the

United Stares Attorney’s Office for the Southern District of New York, and with which the Group is co-operating fully. These investigators have access
to sources unavailable to the Group, Freshficlds Bruckbaus Deringer and Ernst & Young, and flurther information may emerge which is inconsisternt
with or additional to the findings of the Freshfields Bruckhaus Deringer investigation, which could have an adverse impact on the Group. The Group
has however not been contacted by or received further requests for information from the United States Attorney’s Office for the Southern Disuriet

of New York or the UN in connection with these matters since January 2006,

No provision has been made in the financial statements in respect of these matters and it is not currently possible to quantify any potential hability
which may anisc. The directors currently have no reason to helivve that any potential liability that may arise would be material wo the financial position
of the Group.
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Shareholder information

Registrars and transfer office

All matters relating to the administration of shareholdings should be
dirccted to Capita Registrars, The Registry, 34 Beckenham Road,
Beckenham, Kent BR3 4T, telephone within the UK: 0870 162 3100
and from overseas: +44 20 8639 2157; email: ssd@capitaregistrars.com.

Shareholders that receive duplicate mailings because they have multiple
holdings can write to the Registrars requesting that the holdings be
amalgamated. By logging on to www.capitaregistrars.com/sharcholders/
and fellowing the link to The Share Portal, shareholders can access a
range of online services including registering to receive future corporate
documents by email. Registration will require input of investor codes.
Shareholders are advised to refer to their share certificates for details.

Share dealing service

Compass Group has arranged share dealing services with Capita
Registrars which provides a telephone and online share dealing
service for UK resident sharcholders in Comnpass Group. To deal,
shareholders must provide details of surname, posicode, date of birth
and investor code (set out in share certificates). To use the service
telephone 0870 458 4577 or visit www.capitadeal.com.

Individual Savings Accounts (ISAs)

Compass Group has introduced corporate sponsored Maxi and Mini
[SAs. The ISAs offer UK resident shareholders a simple low-cost and tax
cfficient way to invest in the Company’s shares. Full details together with
a form of application are available from HSBC Trust Company (UK}

Limited, Corporate Personal Equity Plans & Individual Savings Accounts,

Ist Floor, Courtwood House, Silver Street Head, Sheffield S1 2BH,
telephone 0845 7456123,

Share price information

The current price of Compass Group shares is available on
Cleefax, Telewext, FTCiyline (operated by the Financial l'imes),
telephone 0906 843 3250 and Compass Group's corporate website.

ShareGift

ShareGiit is a charity share donation scheme for shareholders
administered by the Orr Mackintosh Foundation. It is particularly
useful for those shareholders that may wish to dispose of a small
quanttity of shares where the market value makes it uneconomic to sell
on a commission basis, Further information can be obtained from
ShareGift telephone 020 7337 0501 or from its website
www.sharegift.org.

American Depositary Receipts (ADRs)

Compass Group has an ADR programme. Each ADR is equivalent
to one Compass Group ordinary share and trades under the symbol
CMPGY. Further information can be obtained from The Bank of
New York, Investor Relations, PO Box 11258, Church Street Station,
New York, NY 10286-1258, telephone: within the US 10ll free

1-888 BNY-ADRs and from overseas +1 212 815 3700, email:
shareowners@bankofhiy.com and from websites: wwwiadrbny.com
and www.stockbny.com.

Financial calendar

Annual General Meeting — 16 February 2007

Half year results announcement — May

Full vear results anntouncement — late November/early December
Dividend payments:

Interim — August
Final — March

Warning about unsolicited investment contacts
Over the last year many companies have become aware that their
shareholders have received unsolicited phone calls or correspondence
concerning investment matters. These are typically from overseas bused
‘brokers’ who target UK shareholders offering to sell them what often
turn out to be worthless or high risk shares in US or UK investments.
Shareholders are advised to be very wary of any unsolicited advice,
offers to buy shares at a discount or offers of free company reports.

If you receive any unsolicited investment advice:

+ Make sure you get the correct name of the person and organisation.

* Check that they are properly authorised by the Financial Services

Authority before getting involved. You can check at

www.fsa.gov.uk/register.

The F8A also maintains on its website a list of unauthorised

overseas firms who are targeting, or have targeted, UK investors

and any approach from such organisations sheuld be reported

to the FSA so that this list can be kept up to date and any

other appropriate action can be considered. If' you dea] with an

unauthorised firm, you would not be eligible to receive payment under

the Financial Scrvices Compensation Scheme. The FSA

can be contacted by completing an online form at www.fsa.gov.uk.

= Inform our Registrar’s Compliance Department on 020 8639 2041
or crmall compliance@capitaregistrars.com.

More detailed information on this or similar activity can be found on the
FSA website www.fsa.gov.uk/consumer/.

Unsolicited mail

Compass Group is legally obliged to make its register of members
available to the public. As a consequence of this some shareholders
might have received unsolicited mail. Shareholders wishing to limit the
amount of such mail should write to the Mailing Preference Service,
FREEPOST 29, .ON20771, London WIE 0ZT. Alternatively,
sharcholders may register online at www.mpsonline.org-uk or request
an application form by calling 0845 703 4599.

Number of Shares
Shareholder analysis “""n’c'i’.iifi Home;/: smr:q?u:fr?: hel;:
Type of holder:
Individuals 66,158 91.3 88 4.2
Institutional & other investors 6,109 8.5 2,011 95.8
Total 72,267 100.0 2,099 100.0
Size of holding:
1-100 13,841 19.2 ] 0.0
101 =200 11,758 16.3 2 0.1
201 =500 17,853 247 6 0.3
501 — 1,000 11,879 16.4 9 0.4
1,001 - 2,600 8,575 11.9 12 0.6
2,000 —5,00G 3,329 7.4 16 0.8
5,001 - 10,000 1,361 1.9 9 0.4
10,001 - 50,000 803 1.1 16 0.8
50,001 - 106,000 178 0.2 13 0.6
100,001 - 500,000 351 0.5 85 4.0
500,001 — 1,000,000 101 0.1 73 3.5
1,000,001 — 5,000,000 167 0.2 354 16,9
5,000,001 — 10,000,000 34 0.0 241 11.5
10,000,001 and above 37 0.1 1,262 60.1

Total 72,267 100.0 2,099 130.0
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice is herehy given that the sixth Annual General Meeting of
Compass Group PLG (the ‘Company’) will be held in the Fleming
Room at the Queen Elizabeth I Conference Centre, Broad Sancruary,
Westminster, London SW1P 3EE on Friday 16 February 2007 at

11.00am in order to transact the following business:

Resolutions

To consider and if’ thought fit to pass the following Resolutions of which
Resolutions numbered | to 11 will be proposed as Ordinary Resolutions
and Resolutions numbered 12 and 13 will be proposed as Special
Resolutions.

Resolution 1 - Report and Accounts

To receive and adopt the financial statements of the Company for the
financial year ended 30 September 2006 and the reports of the directors
and auditors thercon.

Resolution 2 — Directors’ Remuneration Report
To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the financial year
ended 30 Seprember 2006,

The Directors” Remuncration Report is set out in full on pages 28 to 35
in the Annual Report 2006 and in summary on pages 23 to 26 in the
Annual Reviesw 2006.

Resolution 3 - Final dividend

To declare a final dividend of 6.7 pence per share on each of
the Company’s ordinary shares for the financial year ended
30 Seprember 2006.

Subject to passing this Resolution, the final dividend will be paid on
5 March 2007 1o sharcholders on the regisier at the close of business
on 9 February 2007.

Resolution 4 - Richard Cousins
1o clect Richard Cousins as a director,

Richard Cousins was appointed to the Board on 2 May 2006 and
he replaced Michael Bailey as Chief” Executive on 1 June 2006,

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Assoctation and the
Combined Code on Corporate Governance, Richard Cousins is
standing for election a this year’s Annual General Meeting,

Resolution 5 — Sir lan Robinson
To elect Sir Ian Robinson as a director.

Sir [an Robinson was appointed to the Board on 1 December 2006
and, in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association and the
Combined Code on Corporate Governanee, is standing for election

at this year’s Annual General Meeting, The directors believe that

Sir Ian Robinson will bring to the Board valuable experience that

has been gained in both the hospitality and service industries and in
international business.

Resolution 6 — Gary Green
To clect Gary Green as a director.

Gary Green is Group Managing Director - USA, Canada, and

Latin America and he will be appointed to the Board with effect

from | January 2007, Gary Green has been with the Group for

over 20 years and his achicvements include leading the successful
development of the Group’s business in North America. In accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association and the Combined Code
on Corporate Governance, Gary Green is standing for election at this
year’s Annual General Meeting.

Resolution 7 — Andrew Martin
To re-elect Andrew Martin as a director,

Andrew Martin is Group Finance Director and, in accordance with
the Company’s Articles of Association and the Combined Code on
Corporate Governance, is subject to retirement by rotation and is
standing for re-election at this year’s Annual General Meeting.

Biographical details of alt the directors propesed for election or
re-election are set out an page 20 in the Annuoal Report 2006 and
on page 19 in the Annual Review 2006.

Resolution 8 — Deloitte & Touche LLP
To re-appoint Deloite & Touche LLP as auditors.

The Auditors are re-appointed annually and the Board, on the
unanimous recommendation of the Audit Committee, following its
annual review of the effectiveness and independence of the external
auditors, is proposing the re-appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP
as auditors to the Company.

Resolution 9 - Auditors’ remuneration
To authorise the directors to determine the auditors’ remuneration.

This Resolution proposes that the directors be authorised to determine
the remuneration of the auditors. Details of the remuneration paid 1o
the auditors for 2006 and details of the safeguards the Company has
developed 1o ensure the objectivity and independence of the external
auditors are disclosed in the Annual Report 2006.

Resolution 10 - Politicat donations

“T'hat the Campany and any company which is or becomes a subsidiary
of the Company during the period to which this Resolution relates be
and is hereby authorised 0;

(i) make donations w EU political organisations; and
{1} incur EU political expenditure,

during the period commencing on the date of this Resolution and ending
on the date o’ the Company’s next Annual General Meeting provided
that any such donations and cxpenditure made by the Company together
with those made by any subsidiary company while it is a subsidiary of
the Company shall not exceed in aggregate £125,000 during that period.

For the purposes of this Resolutien, the terms ‘donations’, ‘EU political
organisations’ and ‘EU political expenditure” shall have the meanings
given to them in seetion 347A of the Companies Act 1985 (as amended
by the Political Parties, Flections and Referendums Act 2000)."

It is not Compass Group policy 10 make donations to political parties. !
However, it is possible that certain routine activities undertaken by the
Company and its subsidiaries might come within the broad scope of the
Political Parties, Elections and Referendums Act 2000. Any expenditure
that is regulated under this Act must first be approved by shareholders.
This Resolution is to renew the directors’ authority until the Annual
General Meeting to be held in 2008 to make donations and incur
expenditure which might otherwise be caught by the terms of the

Act up to an aggregate amount of £125,000.

Resolution 11 — Authority to allot shares {section 80)

“I'hat the power conferred on the directors by Article 11 of the
Company’s Articles of” Association be renewed for a period expiring
at the end of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company afler
the date on which this Resolution is passed or, if earlier, 15 May 2008
and for that period the section 80 amount 15 £68,700,000.
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27 December 2006

Dear Shareholder,
Annual General Meeting 2007

The sixth Annual General Mecting of the Company will be held on Friday, 16 February 2007 at 11.00am in the
Fleming Room at the Queen Elizabeth I} Conference Centre, Broad Sanctuary, Westminster, London SWIP 3EE.

Enclosed with this circular is a form of proxy for the resolutions being proposed at the Annual General Meeting

and whether or not you intend coming to the Meeting, you are requested 1o complete the form and send it to Capita
Registrars to arrive no fater than 11.00am on Wednesday 14 February 2007. Should you prefer, the form of proxy can
be completed on the Internet at www.capitaregistrars.com/shareholders/. If you choose this method you will be required
to register for ‘The Share Portal (if you have not done so previously). To do this you will require your investor code which
is printed on the enclosed form of proxy and on your share certificate(s). Whichever method you select to complete the
form of proxy, you are still entitled to attend the Mecting and vote in person.

"The directors belicve that the proposed resolutions set out in the Notice of Annual General Meeting which follows
this letter are in the best interests of the Gompany and the shareholders as a whole. Accordingly they unanimously

recommend that vou vote in favour of each resolution as they themselves intend to do in respect of their own
sharcholdings in the Company.

Yours faithfully

Us Sg

Sir Roy Gardner

Chairman

Compass Group PLC
Registerad Office; Compass House, Guildford Street, Chertsey, Surrey KT16 98Q
Registered in England and Wales Registered No: 4083914
Tetephone 01932 573000 Facsimile 01932 569956




Notice of Annual General Meeting
continued

Notes

{iy A member entitled to attend and vote at the 2007 Annual General
Meeting (the ‘Meceting’) may appoint a proxy or proxies (who need

‘ not be a member of the Company) to attend and {on a poil) vote on

his/her behalf. Proxies may be appointed by:

* completing and rcturning the proxy form enclosed with this Notice;

* going to www.capitaregistrars.com/shareholders/ and following
the hink to The Share Portal where instructions are provided on
how to register (if you have not done so previously) and vote; or

* by having an appropriate CREST message transmitted, if you are a
user of the CREST system (including CREST Personal Members).

Return of the form of proxy will not preclude a member from attending
the Meeting and voting in person.

(i} To be effective the form of proxy must be completed in accordance
with the instructions and received by the Registrars of the Company
by 11.00am on Wednesday i4 February 2007. To appoint a proxy
or to give an instruction to a previously appointed proxy via the
CREST system, the CREST message must be received by the issuer’s
agent (ID RA1G) by 11.00am on Wednesday 14 February 2007.
Please: note, however, that proxy messages can not be sent through
CREST on weekends, bank holidays or after 8.00pm on any other
day. For the purpose of this deadline, the time of receipt will be taken
to be the time (as determined by the timestamp applied to the
message by the CREST Applications Host) from which the issuer’s
agent is able (o retrieve the message. GREST Personal Members or
other CREST sponsored members and those CREST members that
have appointed voting service providen(s) sheuld contact their
CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s) for assistance with
appointing proxies via CREST. For further information on CREST
procedures, limitations and system umings, please refer to the
CREST manual. We may treat as invalid a proxy appoinument sent
by CREST in the circumstances set out in Regulation 35{5)(a) of the
Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001,

(i1i) Pursuant to Regulation 41 of the Uncertificated Securities
Regulations 2001, the Company specilies that only those
sharchelders registered in the Register of Members of the
Company as at 6.00pm on 14 February 2007, or in the event that
the Mceting is adjourned, in the Register of Members 48 hours
before the time of any adjourned meeting, shall be entitled to attend
or vote at the Meeting in respect of the number of shares registered
in their name at the relevant time. Changes to entries on the Register
of Members after 6.00pm on 14 February 2007 or, in the event that
the Meeting is adjourned, less than 48 hours before the time of any
adjourned meeting, shall be disregarded in determining the rights of
any person to attend or vote at the Meeting,

(iv) Copics of the service agreements of the executive directors, the
letters of appointment of the non-executive directors, the directors’
deeds of indemnity and the Register of Directors’ Interests will be
available for inspection during normal business hours from the date
of dispatch of this notice until the datc of the Mceting (Saturdays,
Sundays and public holidays excepted) at the registered office of the
Company and will also be made available at the Mecting for a period
of 15 minutes prior to and during the continuance of the Meeting,




Notice of Annual General Meeting
continued

Resolution 11 - Authority to allot shares (section 80j continued

Resolution 11, which will be proposed as an Ordinary Resolution, seeks
to grant the directors’ authority to allot, pursuant to Article 11 of the
Company’s Articles of Association and section 80 of the Companies

Act 1985, relevan securities with a maximum nominal amount of
£68,700,000 {the ‘section 80 amount’}. This represents 687 mitlion
ordinary shares of 10 pence each in the capital of the Company, which
is approximatcly one-third of the Company’s issued share capital as at
13 December 2006. The Company does not currently hold any sharcs as
treasury shares, This authority would, unless previously rencwed by
shareholders, remain in force up to the conclusion of the Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held in 2008 or 15 May 2008 if earlier.

Whilst the directors have no current plans 1o utilise this authority they
consider its renewal appropriate in order to retain maximum flexibility
to take advantage of business opportunitics as they arise.

Resolution 12 — Authority to alict shares for cash (section 89)

“That, subject to the passing of Resolution |1 above, the power conferred
on the directors by Article 12 of the Company’s Articles of Association
be renewed for a period expiring at the end of the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company afier the date on which this Resolution is
passed or, if earlier, |5 May 2008 and for that period the section 89
amount is £ 10,300,000,

Resolution 12, which will be proposcd as a Special Resolution, seeks to
renew the directors’ authority to issue equity securities of the Company
for cash without application of the pre emption rights pursuant to
Article 12 of the Company’s Articles of Association and section 89 of
the Companies Act 1985. Other than in connection with a rights, scrip
dividend, or other similar issue, the authority contained in this Resolution
will be limited (o a maximum norminat amount of £10,300,000 (the
‘section 89 amount”). This represents 103 million ordinary shares of

10 pence each in the capital of the Company, which is approximately
3% of the Company’s issued ordinary share capital as at 13 December
2006. The authority would expire at the conclusion of the Annual
General Mecting of the Company to be held in 2008 or 15 May 2008

it earlier.

Whilst the directors have no current plans 1o utilise this autherity they
consider its renewal appropriate in order to retain maximum flexibility
to take advantage of business opportunities as they arise.

Resolution 13 - Purchase of own shares

“That the Cornpany be generally and unconditionally authorised,
pursuant to Article 58 of the Company’s Articles of Assaciation and

in accordance with section 166 of the Companics Act 1985, to make
market purchases (within the meaning of section 163 of that Act) of
ordinary shares of 10 pence each in the capital of the Company subject
to the following conditions:

(i) thc maximum aggregate number of ordinary shares hereby
authorised to be purchased is 206 million;

(ii) the minimum pricc {exclusive of expenses) which may be paid for
cach ordinary share is 10 pence;

{iii) the maximum price {exclusive of expenses) which may be paid for
each ordinary share is the higher of: (A) an amount equal to 105%
of the average of the middle market quotations for an ordinary share
as derived from the London Stock Exchange Daily Official List for
the five business days immediately preceding the day on which the
purchase is made; and {B) an amount equal to the higher of the price
of the last independent trade and the highest current independent
bid as derived from the London Stock Exchange Trading System
(SE'TS); and

Resolution 13 — Purchase of own shares continued

(iv) this authority shall expire, unless previously renewed, varied or
revoked by the Company; at the conclusion of the next Annual
General Mecting of the Company or 15 August 2008, whichever is
the earlier (except in relation to the purchase of ordinary shares, the
comtract for which was concluded prior to the expiry of this authority
and which will or may be executed wholly or partly after the expiry
of this authority)’

Resolution 13, which will be proposed as a Special Resolution, seeks to
rencw the directors’ authority until the Annual General Meeting to be
held in 2008 or 15 August 2008 (if carlier) to purchase up to 206 million
shares in the Company representing just under 10% of the Company’s
issued ordinary share capital as at 13 December 2006,

The directors intend to continue with the £300 million share buy-back
programme announced on 9 April 2006 (the ‘Programme’). Further
information on the Programme can be found on page 22 of the Annual
Report 2006. The authority granted by this Resolution will be used to
continue the Programme and, in the cvent that a successful sale of
Selecta (as announced by the Company on 29 November 2006} is
achieved prior to the expiry of this authority, the directors may consider
using the authority to extend the Programme. Beyond this, the directors
have no present intcntion of exercising this authority but they consider
it desirable to provide maximum flexibility in the management of the
Company’s capital resources. The directors would only purchase shares
if; in their opinion, the expected effect would be to result in an increase
in earnings per share and would benetit shareholders generally.

Any purchases of ordinary shares would be by means of market
purchases through the London Stock Exchange. Should the directors
exercise such authority any shares so purchased may be placed into
treasury in accordance with the Companies (Acquisition of Own Shares)
{Treasury Shares) Regulations 2003 and subsequently cancelled or
transferred to satisfy awards arising under the Company’s emplayee
share schemes or issued for cash as provided for by the Regulations.

As at 13 December 2006 there were options outstanding over
approximately 147 million ordinary shares in the capital of the Company
representing approximately 7.1% of the Company’s issued ordinary
share capital, If the authority to purchase the Company’s ordinary shares
were exercised in full, these options would represent approximately 7.9%
of the Company’s issued ordinary share capital.

By Order of the Board

Tim Mason
Company Secretary
27 December 2006

Registered Office:
Compass House,
Guildford Street,
Chertsey,

Surrey

KT16 9BQ




Compass Group PLC
Compass House
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United Kingdom
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Compass Group PLC (the ‘Company’) Annual General Meeting to be ol

held on Friday 16 February 2007 at the Queen Elizabeth |l Conference d‘}

Centre, Broad Sanctuary, Westminster, London SW1P 3EE at 11.00am. ’ C O M S S
. GROUP

This proxy may be completed on the internet at
www.capitaregistrars.com/shareholders/ via The Share Portal.
The process will involve using the investor code set out below.

Event Code

Investor Code +

Please mark ‘% ta indicate
how you wish to vate

Resolutions

! Viote withheld

_: Note 7
Discretionary

For
' Against

1 Receive and adopt financial .
statements and reports therean [

VY

S
s

2 Approve the directors’ v i
remuneration report o . ,"i i

3 Declare a final dividend on the o
ordinary sharas ’

4 Elect Richard Cousins as a director

5 Elect Sir lan Robinson as a director

6 Elect Gary Green as a director
1/We being a member(s) of the Company hereby appoint the

Chairman of the Meeting OR (see note 5) 7 Re-elect Andrew Martin as
a director

8 Re-appoint Deloitte & Touche LLP
as auditors

-
T S TR

9 Authorise the directors ta determine
the auditors’ remuneration

of 10 Donations ta EU political .
organisations e
11 Authority to allot shares (5.80)
12 Special Resolution — Authority
as my/our proxy to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Annual to allot shares for cash (s.89)
General Meeting of the Company to be held at the Queen Elizabeth Il 13 Special Resolution — Authority
Conference Centre, Broad Sanctuary, Westminster, London SW1P 3EE to purchase shares

at 11.00am on Friday 16 February 2007 and at any adjournment thereof,
in the manner shown opposite on the resclutions set out in the Notice
of Meeting dated 27 December 2006.

Dated this day of 2007 Signature

When completed, please detach and return this form. No pastage stamp is required. To be valid this form should be received by the Company’s
Registrars, Capita Registrars, at the address printed overleaf by no later than 11.00am on 14 February 2007. CREST systermn users may appoint one
or more proxies via the CREST system. For further details please refer to the Notice of Mesting or to the CREST Manual.

Notes

1 For each resolution, pilaase indicate with an X in the box provided how you wish to vate. If you salect ‘Discretionary' or fail to select any of tha given options on a particular resclution, the proxy will vots or abstzin as ha/she thinks
fit in respact of your holding. .

2 Inthe case of joint holders tha signature of any of them will sutfice, but the names of all joint holders should be shawn, and the vole of the senior holder who tanders a vote whether in person or by proxy shall be accepted to the
axclusion of the votes of the othar joint halkder(s} and for this purpose seniority shall ba determined by the order in which tha names stand in the register of members in respect of the joint holding.

3  Inthe case of a corporation this form of proxy must be under the common seal of executed by an authorised officer, attemey or other authorised person.

4 This form of proxy to ba valid must be signec and lodged togsther with the pawer of attomey or other written autharity (f any) under which it is signed or an office or notarially cartified copy of such power or authority n later than
48 hours betora the time of the Meeting (or adjourned Meeting at which the person named on the form proposed to vote) with the Company's Registrars, Capita Registrars, The Registry, 34 Beckenham Read, Beckenham,

Kent BR3 aTU.
5 HyuuwishsomaonentharmanthaCnairrnanlubeyourpmxyddem'mechairmanuthsalinQOR'and'nsenmanameardadaesscﬂhepersonyouwishloappoimaminitialmamﬁm.Suchpmxyneednmbeamsmber
of tha Company but must attend the Meeting in person 1 represent you. Any alteration 1o this form of proxy must be initialed by the appointer.

You may appoint mora than one proxy to attend the Meeting. Compietion of this form of proxy will not praclude you from attending and voting at the Meeting in person if you wish.

B
7  The ‘Vote withneld' option is provided to enable you to abstain on any particular resohution. It shoukd however b noted that # is not a vota in law and will not be counted in the proportion of the vates ‘For' and "Against’ a resolution.

Compass Group PLC Annual General Meeting
Attendance Card

If you or your proxy wish to attend the Annual General Meeting to be
held at the Queen Elizabeth I} Conference Centre, Broad Sanctuary,
Westminster, London SW1P 3EE (please see map overleaf) on
Friday 16 February 2007 at 11.00am, please sign this card and
hand it in at the reception desk on arrival at the Meeting.

Signed by Shareholder/Proxy
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BUSINESS REPLY SERVICE
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‘ fyiafzic]  Directions to Compass Group PLC
T eimeen =24 Annual General Meeting at
iteesssee=<cl The Queen Elizabeth Il Conference Centre
ittt | Broad Sanctuary, Westminster
prniiiisiiirl London SW1P 3EE
Zereiinaziny
AL TR Directly opposite Westminster Abbey
Rt i - A short walk from Westminster or St James'’s Park underground stations
R‘«Zié - Victoria and Waterloo main line railway stations within waiking distance
e c s - 4 car parks nearby (contact NCP: 0870 6067050 for details)




